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F) e qae
« Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015 FHITTH <& qor faxig Femes dar Capital
Adequacy Framework,2018 FHITH qaTaTR faeT& Sars ameuaT Counter Cyclical

Buffer 3T d. 059/ &I AN [T F(qd HTIH TRTH B |
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TRTeEr F |
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Tehel UTEeh bl QIHATHT GEe=

Sep e faira gwarer ga=ter fadr g yare T FATHT U e F G T
YO @ HTIH TRTH 3 |

frdros SISIRAT RN T HET I TATIAT HUHT FLAW ANl 8 &kl FATRT
JaTe g AT Tehiceb! FaR Il otiehl ¥.9% FIISH Uhd ATEH Holl AT EeTeUH
X

Loan To Value Ratio T T SThTAT AT AAITHT HIe=

SeF T faiTg TeaTewel TART AT Fll YaTe Tl TAAE JATTTHT AT FaTLT
AIT @RE T ARl AT AT ST GATSTAHT ATHIT A7 TR FTIAH] THHT
AR ATITRT HOHH AAAT &0 FANTHFH HTIH T Alhel TN TRTHT T |

TR W @RE /Ao yarsar garfed wSrET aifeueat [gaver samatied T W\
AR ATRTAT 9T (Debt Service to Gross Income Ratio, DTI) &1 stfarseas AT
9o JITT HTIAH TRUHT T |

TR AT GYET

TATTATAIT FATA &3 FRISHFHB] QAT IJcdrad, qerdell, HeAITa, Hitept
AT TEar’lt AW, HT AR Ieared, Haras= S9E, e%qsdr qar daHes
I, AT Gal, TIEARMAT ATARE IHARANT FFrad SaH Fqad T
oTagiaeTd @aefl F=AT URTIHT ARG IOTeAHAS FANT FoaATATRT AT
(ATATAEFIAT SAFATIATEF) FHAT FATE QT ATAR AT I FATqqTH /A
99 TR U] TS Alda Tl TRTH G |

HIAT GG FIYTHT 99/ FLE

AT AR STHET ITAT 95 gordT TUHT F91 (Forced Loan) &1 EFHT ATTIH
FY R059/53 AT Tk I ATGT ATHHT | Il HO T JEed qeTelrs brel
T FHTEET T{IT AT RS G, |

@<elT Private Equity Venture Capital (PEVC) S¥TehT L O Tt AT |IFT %H YT
AT TEHT AT qAT WYRIAT AN FIel FATHT GhT RO WA =l
PrivateEquity Venture Capital (PEVC) F=dTaTs FTal GATHT FHELT Ag A<
MRUHT |

STHTAARTATATS Tl GATHT FATAL YA O RETNEE &Y IR far foerd T
AT TTI LT TRUHT G | TXAT GETETS T AT T AHG Aebepl AT
THH FTHT IEHT FIbl qRAHT AT STHTHARTATATS {0 famel 7T IarT Ta+
AT TRTH G |

FTAT GATAT AT AUHT Aeh, TH, FFIAT, FRITA FIATTHITH AR FRETT
AT TaH U7 THH 9T T TSR] AT @I @lod b T HBTATTARINTH T
AU e, AHIiSTE qRET 91, TraTa el THH [Aehled dicbe qaen
TRTHT 3 |
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TR/ TAXANABIRT T T SFALT TRTHT F |

o AEAE MEEETE A AHARET He TRATSIATH] FHOT BT T TUHT FT (FH0T
FI WZTEP! AR AHIA! T g dlehl Taehl (AT AGITATATS JAT8 AUHT (A0
AT FFAegd FATHT HOTRT FGHT TEYATE [T T ATF9THAT T
Sifercaepl ATITTHT TATTITAITG FLATA FATRI TALATABIHII T/ AT ARG THAT
T I TRTH 3, |

o ORFAITEY FHATHAT WHT T3 FSHFHEFT AMBTRT &7 (BN, Fol T T, =,
AT TAT FRIAT ITH) AT FaTe TUHT F1HT FFHT HUNRI SATHT AT H
FISAT AT AGTATE ATIADT TETERT AT LT AT T SR ATATTHT
RIS TRl FRIMT Q0 F(ANT THH FIASIR T T TIhab! ATRT FHofehl
QAR AT ER ¥/ AT TATEL A AT T a4l MU G |

() AT YT FTFHT ARG, 09 | e
o TTA IS FHATTEIRET AEELH, 09 AN TUHT T 309, /09,09 T9 JaTe TTHT
AT GSTl FoATeATs ARTELASTAR qfeal Tash TAREAAST a7 Taehe0T TaT HIaerel
rehepT ATHTAT &7 JaTE TUHT B THET qThTHT &1 ATl HARFHATS 053 FAX
TG {ThTHT & T ST HIHT AT T FaedT IEHHET a1 AT s
FeF&aT TR TR 05 ¥ AR HATTAFAAT THTT g T qhTAT (AT HaRT T
HIASIX T Flehr T TRTHT T |

o T IS FHFdl ARG, 2098 AT HUH Variance T¥I=dT A& 053 ATIH
q AR AT AN g T TRTH 3 |

(5F) SfEH TR T qeE
o ARHI EERTAST TAT AT FATHI ANMGH AR 100 FIATT FTIH TRTHT 3 |

o T YO A@IFHF! JIX Il FHSAMHT FIRGH AR Q00 FfAerd T a1 HIIFeT FHT
QY I TEHAT THIO FAR fdr FSET SAMGH IR Q00 Jiaerd I TRTH
e

@) FHST GBI ATEITHT FLeT
o HIT JATE W TIATIAT THUHT IUNT/ IRATSHAT/ TFATT TRIEATTT=T HTRU ToATATH
THAT AT QAR SHAATATTHITH FSATebl FoT AT (T FTHT AThTAT A
T JART/ ARATSAT/ FAIHT FATed Holals G&H IR a3HT JUR9T T
AT TRTHT 3 |

o [AHIT EAEET THET AT 95 (ST 9UET wei (Forced Loan) &1 6HT It
FST AMIF T R050/59 HI AN R0 [THAFH AqAT qAHE @I FAT AMMHI
AT d! ATCITHT TN FAATS ALA. 059 /5% AT Hofleh! AT ATEh AT
HATITRHT AT TR FIETAHITH Bl ATHTAT HTAH T AT TRUHT G, |
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HIT AT TACIATAT JLET

g a1 fadior dRaEwd q9d FWT AHETd HAH TG B AR
ATATATS .00 T HTIH TRTHT F |

faa=T Tt T QfPust FTaEE! AaHT FHET

fT= a7 FAT AATIEHIAH FHT FATTATAI AT B Tk g qehl
TATTATTIT HEITHT AR TATE TH FA A1 HSI[hl ATIHAH ¥O Faaraded
T ATk HAT JATE THAH TILIT MRTHT 3 |

S qar fa<i TR 05y, HER HARTGEHHAT IATH 4% FIT9Td ol o, T,
AT TAH FRIAT STHFT &THT JTE TITHT ITh FHAThT AT &3 IS HTIH
MRUHT |

I &AHT FHITId qTasTeh G T UfecAeh fAfiee FrIrIg®e AT THT o
FrSAMIATHT S Fe=d] HITTTHAT Tl TMAATs ISl &FAHAT AT THAT T
ArfepTerT JTHTHT 0T T qTEH AGLT TRUHT F |

Regulatory Retail Portfolio (RRP) &I dTHTATS &% FRISATE TR ATTHAH &% FIS
YO TG HTIH TRUH 3 |

ATFTET &TTHT JATE T FoI1eb] THAGHT [ARTAATERT T AT TFAT ATTRThT
Al d AHT TATIT 05 ¥ FAR HATIAF FHY YT TRTHAT Ih THIATS
R05Y FER AT HTIH TRUH G |

TR STETRRIT AT SATAFHI BIGAT AT T AR ST

TEIRT AETHTOT AR TF qa7 FoATai|T quel Fea=adiay o qa1 fadm
T AT AT A dewers e SRy Ak g

THR SEIRRT AR T dl ga% ATl Gl T aacadhl areagHl
Guideline on Targeted Financial Sanctions for Financial Institutions STT<T TTRTeHT 3 |

AT T(CT SFhaTa ATHIN FIET PTTETE THART METHTT TAT ATTFHTL HTIAT faier
AT AR aa=aaT qfeeidesd FeerT AT IRTE g | Iy, FEIfead U q9an
fTIgTEasaT U FUTTAATs AW FHAR! o9 B¥, ANKE AT Y I
FTHATIAIT BT Tl HoAl [&r HFIATH] ATRT TR TETHI JAT AT FAT
HTIAT fa<iTa T ARt sraemgr 9T TRUs! § |

FATF @I “High-Risk Jurisdictions subject to a Call for Action”, “Jurisdictions under
Increased Monitoring” AT F=Tec Al T UN Sanction List AT HHTELT HUHT HAHHT
“Tp” FTHT Aehgecls TG, AT / FIAT HATAR TITIAT T T TeRfd J&TT AR
AT TRTHT 3 |

S U E R | FACH

% da fadm GEe @Y ATETIl d@rEd g9 Sddd ST WUs
NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 FHITH U= =Taedm
TRTHT 3 |
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@0

Fep e fa<irr Feurer @ive TRET b a9 FATd AU IS Teb ATfdeh ToHT
AT GSiTepl 0 GIAeTd THRGFART AT AT [Goh! THHE el B+ TRTDT
3 |

Sep e T TRATer ATTATd EYHT AMIT TRATTH T TlehT TEIHT ATRHT GIAT
Gl el (AT I sgaedr TRUHT & | faaeTAT sy TRIEHT Farell ART e
faer® a1 ATATSTHIRT SATTATAIT FEATHT GTAT Gledqal e aR=aq ar
T IRTIIT AFRATedhd] qT AEAYTF HESATT (U THT @rar dred qa
AT TMRUH T | 1Y, el ITAed TRIUH] HIASd "FaReh! a9 (s qeFd
¥ /TR GEREd 9 Mied SIMGHE ATaRAT G qEaed® Gedd 9giq
FATEET T AT TR |

SATST ISR T TRUEHT Y O HITATE a1 FITT TET STHATH! STATTI TATSTATRT FTHTT
HT 0 FIATT FFI~ ATRT FHIVTA USRI AFLATAT Interest Capitalized Term Loan
(ICTL) ®T 2! THHATS Interest Capitalized Reserve (ICR) T2 €T Afsad FATH
feameraT AT AR AT AT SATHOT ARTHT 7 ARATTATHT EFAT TRATAAT
AT F TIHT =ATATHT ATTHT ATLATHT |CTL HT Teehl ¥ IFHATS ICRATE
TaTE Alsad HATRT fEdTadT AT Ileh a1 MRTH B |

AYfaar SAALATHT 99/ JLE:

T HEATEEA AqA FSATHT HIAH AT HSIl AT Faerars 1.0 Fiqerd
FAH TRTH T |

T i dearesdl HiEEas 98s ®IHT el JaTe T G qHmE i
AfTglg T IeeTS F.]Y EIRIFHB] H[ IRATRE STHHHAT TF Y&E T T

AT RTHT G | A7, JAIMREAR TEHAT &3 AGIGFIR] I ATHAT G2 w70
(Low cost housing) FITSThT AEHSIT ITAH IRTIT Fichw HAALAT TRTH |

fereTherair AT Hfe e STHIATAT a7 fIcre! GRETITHT Tedsl TaTd TaT I8 ATTITTH I STHH
1 ATHT FHATE T TS RS Afray R g i Teare w91 JaTe T+
o FFXIT TRTHT T |

AT AT FeAERd GEArad ATIE TUR T HATHIR! AEF T HIHT
IETTH THH 05 AFWAT 4.4 FIqeTd, 2053 FARAT R I ¥ 0¥ FAAT 3
gTeTd HTIH T FTTIT TRTH G |

AT A TRATEE AT AATIE AT ATHwET AITTR HHART BAre, q2aT,
AT, TSLATIT AT HATSA TaT I<h FHATIB! [aqeh! TS [T IR AT
e O 9T MR aifaH TaH ST ET STIRAT 917 TG I SEamrT
fevoe =aaear IRUHT B | T, FHARTR! SIS, T&AT, TGAT TIT TILATIT IT&T
AMAHIIT Teatead FicheraTd HI¥ (Certification Courses) fTUehT AT Tr faere
JEATATs THT SATIRH] BIHT Ao Tz TRTH G |

gl o FEEd ditE EOET gWEG gerEd 9fddsq (Corporate
Governance Report) TR TRT ATASTHe SATTRRIRT ANT ATHT TTATSIHT T
T ST RS B |
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o AT fa<i deEe B1 fdg afad wofeede difeudr sarer Haaasr w=
i =it ¥ aRkfetqaer: sor Afq ol TR g5 FIHT aHHI0 THaA AT TR
B | 91y, erefad fad gearer afkfeafaaer o afad aofesarg #7 guar s
FIAGATHAT FHTALT TP T AT Hal THT Y& WA Hl JI0E T Frar
HATTHT T FhHT T A HITATS ARTHT & HIGATRT AT HTATGH TS FATSH Hed
LT MRTHT 3, |

o afad faxdia deaeE T4t F90 gAE TET T FaT Tekars .4 Jiqeraare gar
9.3 JiqeTd HTAH TRTHN G | FAT JaTe &I AR bl IHHATE AMBTRT AT
STehATEd AT F I TPl THH FET T ol SIHT AT UG G
TRTHT |

o TgfaT AT TRl T AFAHT ANT H FITHPT ATHATAATE T FaY fafa
HIATSH YT HFT TNTHT B | A1, ARG YT Tl GAaTg T qre
AT TAT AT GAATSHT (AT AT G ARTBT ST SHAFTATHT AT AT
I GORAT THT Joeid TR e ST TRueT g |

o UMD AT GeATE®E Furd [a<d1g gfdasTHE (NFRSs) HTER faiia fqave qar
THIA FFe] MRS B | A9 fada Gfqagaa T FAEe TWRE AeEH]
FrRIEd A FiqaaTH (IFRSS) @5 ATERHT TIHT [dqI AT TRTH T, |

o AUET [T RS YEHAT FAH a7 SATSTER T T&l ATHT AR THT
FerHT 3 gfderaaed MHad 99 TR ATTIT FEAH THIH FT TRUH G | TI]
TSI FHTAH TaT AT TFewh! Tgedd! AT ATIR THT & T IT T HIAH
g VAT el & TR SATSER (IR0 T e+ Faedl TRUH g |

97 TRTH Maaee

o TIATTAYAIT S JAT [T TRATewaTe g Hol FaTe TaH AHIETE ATaracordr
TS TAH ITh ThIeh! oI &1 Twa% ATHUTST FANT T Aicb+ T Nepal Green
Finance Taxonomy, 2024 SR TIRTHT F |

o WU IMST SHATE Shadr faiar TITHT Gifeuer! GraT aepT e TAT T[N I[aehT
EHT GIaT FehAT THAFET AALAATS 99 TICE, TREI T AR T “Se @rar
TFRRT AT AT vAT (TR, 059" STRT TRUHT 3 |

o TET qAT AR T FRIAR T TEHRT LR FRIARATS Faredd, qraelf 2
JATIHTET TATSTRT AT AT IT e Teel fAfese TRAqET T I ArIeve
ek d TRTH 3 |

o d% dur [gdT FeaEEd NG HENNE JAveidead=aid T4 @9 qeedf,
TATIHN] T IELAHAE FATSA T HeAheh! dear el cadel JaN A= T
iy “a qur g SR SR A e JaveEideaarl HREe,
059" I TRUHT G |

o Sfhg FUX TAT AT TA, R0%¥ (EHT AT, 05 THA) TT b AT
[T AUHT FeTIT FHEL W TAA MGt TR AqET “F AR Kbl Ha ]
AT T wrEAfET, 059”7 SRT ARTH F |
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o AHET (I ALATEETHT FAT AALIMAA, ATARE AT JOTAT, FHAT T,
AT FoATA TAH YEdh AR [qudesed] qeegHl agEad [aard
FRIATATS ATATNAE SfF TP ATTRUTAHTHT ATARHAT oo TdA T “TATTAIAITG “8”
FIHT AT (AT FATETATe e HEELIH, 30597 ART TRTHT & |

o THMET AT AAEEH AMGH ATEAIAGTIA FAATE TAEHRT a9139 Risk
Management Guidelines for Microfinance Institutions STT<T TRTHT B |

ol Tonfae giqaes qon qers JenEm

AR

RO

AT A6 bl At T faig wnfrer gfaesT (Financial Stability Report) TebTeTeT T+
TR B | TET HTAT 059 FAR AiEATH! TATTHAT AART Ael G e gfaaas
(Financial Stability Report) FeTRTd HTHT 3 |

SfF AT [T FEATEEHT AT ST Ul (M aTATHINTH Tl IST AT YT TS
AIRAT FAfaT TIAT ITATSTHTR T AT H [Fa07 TR T FebTTH TRTH! S |

fadir we T sfrgia
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AR
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fa<frr deamesd Toare AR Al 9E dage TR G | TAA AERP! TAH WH
TE|T FRITAT TIT A0S Shehl MET TATIT A& A ET 053 AR FATHITH Tl
T e ATTST ST Iufeafa wEE 3

QAT 2.9 TNT TEAT AT Sebept Iqteter

=T qEE aiforedr S BT WA TEH qIE
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Bkl 939 939 930 9309
EER 93% 93% 93 93%
FTTHAT AR R AR 9%
TMUgehT (=44 =44 (=44 (=44
AfFAT 0%, q0% q0% q0%
FHITAT 3 o, 9, S
ﬂﬂg—QﬁW (=4~ (~\) [\ g
ST & R R &

2053 YR AATAIHHAT S qa1 i Geaess 9ger Q0 (qadr FH™ dwafd)
HIIH TEHT G | 0GR AAR AATTAT e T4 [T FRAEweh! 9@l IS 99 3% BT
qUHT B | MEARET dfFT JaT Y& T brge®dl TSI 053 AR AATTAFT 53 TEH
T | 059 FAR HATTHT HATET STAASRT YRR TEHMAT 053 AAR FATRIAT Y 30 HTIH
ATH T |

0GR IR HITAHT FoATATHT TEHT R0 AU Sehgeebl TTAT FhT ol €.354 o9
33 IS TEHN T 9 (BT TFbT w3 AT L HIS T fad FEATRN T9U A 30 FIIE TWH
B | AT, QLT qUHT Ab qAT AT FRAEEAT EH A [HT 9R.¥Y giqeraer qfg 9
%9303 99 [H G | TR, T q7 o< FAes JATE TR FABST AftTeddl THHT
TAATHT 5.9 Fqad qlg 95 F.4,4%9 F& T 3 |
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Y AF T 3059 /5 AT AU TE< [l AIRTT AqTATTara=dl [aiq= HTaead, AT F I
fTaIRT, HTTAT FAT FEATEI, ARTAR TEIANT ATIATT AT, THATI FEhRT ATLITIT
TFTRT FATATTEAT (HebTaeRT RIS TaT faciiar FRATHT TEHT @I TFbT ITET, Bl
T 9T a2 qRT T4 61T TRUH S |

TEfeaaqul &t qr fau=r a¥ 1wl
Y “FEfATAYU FATHT AT AT AARTAIFT Tk FHTATaTd, 094 " THINH 053 FAR
AAT-TEFIHT & ¥ ,%,30 HUTATS &.95 I $& FIS H AT TEHT G |

e ATF qT 2059 /05 AT “&F”, “@” T “T” FIHT TATTATAIT FLATE® ST HA BoATeh]
ATH Y AT FHSA [T FIH YATE I AT THHT 305 FHR AT ATorsg
&, fara Sk T [T FFA-TEE HHA: L. ¥0 Yiqerd, .89 Waerd T K. ¥5 Gfqerd &A1 9418
TRHT B |

AT PRIGRST AT HoAT T T bl Ta
R0 TAUTH WF T [Afqageh! [RaeHTy STt T S UH, 045 &I THT %% FHITH
3 IR FTHR AEATEEATS AN BRI AT HAT FaTe T9 AT I MRS B, |

e qur faxir e quiasor

S afeareroT

3G HF T 2059 /53 AT SATGHAT AT GURAETor fafy sereras 1 & R0 arfrey dhee
TAT YT TRATECTIR o [ ge! GHET et <I&To (Full Scope Onsite Inspection)
TF RTHT T |

QAT I R059 /5 AT ¥ ST Shewd! | T and Cyber Risk ITFwdT @féTa TrevTa feretor
TrI~T TRTEHT T | T ARI&TITeRT SHHHT ShewdT Information Security, IT Governance, I T
Operations, Outsourcing Management @I &T7HT MGUHT FHI FHS K@ &dTs AT RIS
AT SFEwATE YT [AaROreT SATRHAT R ®THT SFehgwal HeaTsd T H1 TRUH B |
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EREE

THTET FIHT qHitETd T @Td e e ary e eres T afeaa saar g
T STUHT el IR0 TAT Io(LT AT [ATHTEERT ATRHT ATV Sehdehl T ¥ TR -TITd
farery e FFoe W Ik ISR qAT [ATAIE®d] g TRUHT G | A IR ewHd
9.5 JIqeTT S STHIAT STeT SThTHIRF=dT, 23,3 Tiqerd g Jar qeaeadr, ¥ Y gidqerd
Seh FHAHEIAT, 3.5 GiqeTd AMIadr qve=aHT ¥ &5 giaed o= faoee T aefad
TEHE G

TR - QIR A LT TF A0S She®dld (HatHd STHT TS g TIehl AT
TEATHITHERT FTIEE TEI TR G

o AMEAT AT WISATT AT (CRR) I T5 /T3 ECTHT AFTHA Iqaae qaR T MRTHT |

o T (8T AU (CD Ratio) 1 I FFHT LI AITEF Taasd qaR RIS |

o JTITE TAGT AT (SLR) TT TS a7 (Spread Rate) Twa=4T gz Fafga s
T /I gfdqasd TaR TR |

o AU a7 HWAT (Deprive Sector Lending)®T AT LT JTRAEF YfTaae qam R |

o TTafar YT & FT (Priority Sector Lending) T S=ITH T W1 qiqasd qaR
TR |

o ATTS SehEwehl Tofl TATAAT FFImHT W FRTHT TR |

o TS S TAT YATTY AT Sebepl AT FRTTOT TF4T U, FoAferd I, (Haa, et

qar e qrAATRl FHA, CAELS Analysis, Early Warning Signals (EWS), Stress
Testing Result g THET FHIRTEF FIHT T -TIENTT IR Tqaa qaR TRTH |

o TS ShEwEdl [qTTd fTIeTTIureT ATaRYT AATged ®IHT Key Financial Indicators T4
TR Sehepl ATHTSEHT TehTT TRTEHT |

o o qur faira TeaeESr At A1fdE 99 2050/ 59 &1 AU AT yiqaeT ATIEUE
THITTHET faxiiar faa=orer smamar 0 FMIeT T qaT TIT FFBTEIFAT oAb o, ATg
fairr o gepTere T TR IaTH TR |

o fa<i faaeor gt T SeEfa ga el Seeeat wWenTd e qar TR -2
QU AT FHHAT IGURT BRBITIT ATed AGTIIAHA AATTHT FRTTEE T
T qIT T BRRIAE® I IEMT G awn HArg=er AT deewarg Meer

feguer |

Tq Share T TRUST g, @fera qar faae wera Faeo qoun fafra ok
TR -TJAIT GARAETIHT TR AT THTHT FTTTAEHT Feold THTHT R Ide® JAT I
FEIHT AT MRUHT METTERH qAAT AU/AATHT HTART AT AT T TR 3 |
YU AT Feheaehl AT H STHT FATTHT YiTaaT TR TRTHT 3 |

AT Sfehgweehl THISIITT AT T fa<ir feafdert faverovrafed awamtas Furaaes
QHIT AMH T 050/ 59 I AT Sob AR GfTaa= Jeprard TRTHT |

R



AT TG dFFHT FTAFIEE

I  AHEEATE I & FAT ATHRATHT AALATIFIT [TaOTeRT ATURAT AR AL TAATTHT ool
T A& FHoIl AT FALT TR AR BT FEI= T ST gfdasd TaR TRTH F |
W ATUreT ShEware Supervisory Information System (SIS) ATHRT Ul g+ qeATs e faaeor
FITHA T Jqaad qIR T TRTH G |
3% T o WE®HT Interconnectedness TFwAT FYeIToT T qFI= TRTHT |
38 Sehel U9 T ICAAP Report &1 HTITRAT Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP)
TRTHT F |
i AT Fehehl HET TNGAFEE SETATHINTT TEHT B (ATTAHT R.5) |
AT .5 : AT SpepT H&T IRGAFEE
%.9. IRgAFEE R05q 3[R HHR R05R HAR HAT
1 | ® FgEn R0 (fwrafed ) R0 (MwTafed )
3| FA FAHT IS (. HASHT) 392,03 3TL.R3
3 | wrafa® qSRI (. eHT) 4%9.¥% %00.09
¥ | ® GSWET (& A SERC %Y &g
4 | A AT (3 e ETEACY TL¥9.EY
% | ®BR FA (T AR ¥Y4%%.05 ¥R%3.94
o | grafa® qSirEy ara (Ffqerd) 90.90 90.0%
S | YSTeIT st (gfderd) R.5¥ 9.9z
] | FWr-gra aR=rAn A (fdera) 95 %% R &3
0 | @E AT AU (Ffaera) EE 34.00
q | Farfae aRerar eeara (wfqerd) 35,93 3093
R | =BT F0 T (faerd) 3% ¥.¥¥
3 | a9 a FAA AT (AT .03 Y. %9
forirr e gafvasr
_R HAF qT 3059 /53 AT TSATATHT TEHT 9 [ &6 T Q0 fa FFIwep! qutasra/ aferd
IS (ETET0T T G TRUeHT B | AHET & AFT Feheeeh! AM@HAT AT JARTET0T
U qUHT T | el HHAT FHAUL 2 [ FFAR GHT M TRUE § |
Y0 HAWRES TaH A= Meraere i ATeHgRT AT TATHHT ATRHAT GHIET dAATIHT
q feoreprr Sp ¥ ¥ faT wEaeRT a9 Fererer vrey TivueT o |
XYY T e arge wg e yiqaaaar Sfeafaa Firadewer qawer @it Tz
FEeTTe®ad HRATHIT T&TH AT MRS 3, |
¥R AT ATITOT T FATTHHT ATNT 4%, e e T 93 fad Fraiesars aiids a9 2050/ 59
1 i [aeor qehrerd 9 Srefd J&T= TRTH § |
R¥3  [HafHa EUET R -1 QU ST H0 T (e S T O Framesd! TSt T,

A TaTd ARG AT (CRR), S8 qRerdl d¥aTe (SLR), F1 q47 8T +ard (CD Ratio),
AIR T, TS X, &0 Hol, (I HA1 AMAAHT MAHTRR] FATAEHH ATTHA T
AT TR -TITT URAET Jqasd TR RIS 3 |

o3



Tl ay 2059, /57 F1 aTfiaw gladed

RY¥Y

R¥Y

R.¥%

¥

R¥%

YT BTV, WATel IS¢ SehgIRT SIRT TRUHT (T Haear qa7 feguet fAaeTe! sarer
THURIA 3 BIGATT HEAT ¥ q [FhTa SFbellg AT 99 059 /5 AT AMed Q3 3 |
T, ¥ FqET S T W B HEAATS ToT TRIGUHN B 99 R BIAT HHAT a4l
q faera SepaTs AT AT RUHT G | 79 At q e dwdrg ofry qurRTeHSE FRaw!
(Prompt Corrective Action) TRT®I & 99 q fa&ME debcdis U ETOUT T SFebebl
e fgusr 3 |

TEferaaqul FoTar=dT AR T 79 Hepdre TR Fefaaaqul wsiravaedy Mo Swagaq
T O [T Feb AT & BIZAT HEIATHT THE HTAFRT AfTETeEg I T b U,
045 %I THT 100 %I IUGHT R Bl GUL (&) THISTH F=T TRIZTH! T |

TG FhATE AT T&TT MRUHT @’ T T F7hT (G40 Geqrewedt aiids a9 3050 /59 &I
AT FARAET GRTaET AT TRUHT B, |

R0SR HER HATH] fahrg dwewd quRkegRd fade Harueaar egg w=i s
FIATAT ¥.§3 UFAeTd TEHT B A HA YIS AT AGAHT 43,23 IAqT &R G | 4T
FUTT R059 R HATTAT FHI: 3.5 T 43,35 YT T&ehT T | &y, quierr safreht
T fa FFEEel sk ST AT AT 5 4R TEH B T EHA LS AT
AT 93.3% I TEHT B | SH AAAT 059 FI AR HATIAT FHHT 843 IiF9rd ¥
Q¥.99 gfera el foar |

0GR AR HATTH] FTIH TEHT [HE e T a0 Frarewd! qIeEHd yHa bda qgaFee
TEAGHISTH Tl B (ATAHT R.2) |

arfereer R.R : frepre % T faa s THE WREEEeE (iR

.9, qAFEE faerar S fa i
q. | FA =AW IS (T ASHAT ) ¥3.4Y 9%.93
3. | wrata® dSir (%3 1949 qR.4%
3. | R OO T () .30 1¥.53
¥, | & T (3. 4.5 139.9%
Y. | T T (3.3 439.5% 909.%¥0
g, | orafae 95T AT (gfqeraHn) 9.33 99.33
o, | ®A IS AAAA (HTLTTAT) 93.3 93.3%
5. | & F/FET A (qfqeraEn) ©¥%.0% 90 53
] | A AAIT (FfqLTTH) %R ELE|
q0. | AuTi® TRAAT FAqATA (AfqeraHT) R¥.%0 %35
qq. | ffep ®=t sara (afqeram) ¥.%3 542
qz. | faa= a1 ® Aqara (Ffqerasn) TR 4.3
q3. | fachra &= ®r (wfqerasm) 4R R0.3Y%

AT © UREHFEEAT THTATIET SO FUMET (qhra eh, qUTel $AY HIhd UUE HIgATg fd. ¥ FIMaee Hve e
TUE FIEATH HFOAT (o1, Bl TN TATAL TRUHT T |

Y



AT TG dFFHT FTAFIEE

wefad faia gear qaieaemr

¥R

.o

49

RAR

LR T

ALY

R4Y

AT AL STFATE FATTATAIT AT AT FEAEERT Tg&AT 05% HAR FHATIHT
YR TEH B | THHE] 3 dTh oAl GETIF A=AT T ¥R GET Holl JATE T AHad AEATE® e eh]
T | R05R AR HATRAHT LG [T HLATHT M@ ST L, 0% TEHT G T Al FEITEHHT
FA ¥ q@ U5 TR THE, &R A ] TR I T 9 A § &A1Y AT ATg T8l S |
GGT FAThT FRIGAR T ¥Q THET AdT Ferded I GOl FaargrRuare e agerer
HTAIT qTTHT B | YR GATEEHEY 3% ML, & TR T ¥ AT bl e fair
T TEHT G |

AF a9 059 /5% AT ¥O TG [axia GeAe®d! TR Tad e ¥ 3 qefad
fa<irar qearee! a9y MEeTr qeae TRTH! 3 |

TUTET Fafa|T e a¥ 050,59 HI MGl ATAME T AMYF a9 059/53 & GIH
FeATRIE FEATIT qiqaaT (Enforcement Report) T AT I 2050/ 59 w1 =TT IHTTE,
AT T 2059 /&R T TIH, TGT T T FHGE TR -TIATT UARTET FIqAET TATR TRTRT
g |

T i FearEEa A1idd a¥ 3050/59 HI AMIE UM T GURAST Fiqaad
THTITH TTRTHT |

T AARTHT TR DT T2 FITITATET 6T FLATF JIR @R/ fhl TaT 79 SepepT TTR{T
Afers Tar @itz /ot 79 et e v wrafad fa<dr dearer gsarees afafa wra s
AlTRd T FFAT Graaars dod REUH S |

AIF 9 2059/ 5% AT AHET AT FLAT HTIH AT FATH GBI ATAT HTIH T
T AT T GRATeTg S qAT fa<ir SeareT ofrer GERTeHes FRate T fafreramaed,
R09¥ FHINHE HRATET UERAT ATNE TSTZUH 3, |

05X AR FHAAFAAT AT Tl FRIEAR T & FH G el qred, ard
JoT IUANTH! el IETAHINTH @R g (ATt .90) |

et .90 : e a¥ 059/ B AEA, A qA IIANTH =1t

(& HOGH)
[CERL] R050 AR R05q IEAR R05R IFR*
9Sl q9T SEIET B 4R3I %30% TR
Fod qar fqey 9%\90% QR&R Q]9
qracr RQ¥RY¥ RI09¥ RIR¥R
S ¥\90% L]\ A=
qTRT feara 9%, %5 %3
STHT |1E LASSE 43¥03 L5\He
WA FY % ELESS WY
AT R3¥ Q09% Q043
FHAT FAT ATIS ¥3I¥ YU ey ¥950
S IIY¥ IRR¥ ¥R
T feara 904, ¥ %R
ST SR ¥%3%3 43¥03 15\H

*ratesgd



HIffF a 2059/ 57 # ATHF gladaT

UK

LR

L8 3

ER QN

R.%0

&9

RE&R

RE&R

- faefr e gufkagror

FURAETHT ITAXTHT TEehT TFIU HEATEER] (ARG TAT AR AT AFIAT HTUHT ATNT AT
Y 2059 /53 AT THEHAEIHT TR~ g Fer Mermr qa7 quikasr sEEt, 059
TR TR FATIITHT ATSTH! T |

THTET AafrAT AU FRIER T 93 FFHEEET QAT Td (HLe70 ¥ Q0 Shew 0
FET R AU FRMEAR T S/ FEAIERE] ML R e IRTE @ | 9y,
BTSSRIl T UUE SHATHE FTHT {1, ¥ AMIT bl b fafHage! e
feTeTor TITET I TRUS B |

UL AT JTAFNTTRT 3¥ AR FFAEI, ¥ T TAH N fFF FFIAT,
S BRRY=S HFAT, 4R Eled, § FEAl, & HE HFIAI, & QRAEE ¥l T 37 9 W
5 HFAEE qIT STIHBIATETHT QR A== TAT 4R &1 T q I qIT THE®, R FTET
T q I T THT 5 FFIATE®E! LA (M7 T ¥~ TRTEHT 3 |

FHa LEIoT Ao gaiaeror

AIF AT 059/ 5 AT ¥ TR0 AR FARTLT FIAERT AN Gg HETATET TATIHAT
TRTHT |

ATIE T 2059 /SR AT ¥O T FLATEwH! T A0 Harorawa=dT fafaa qafeaeror
qAT I3 FEATHT RO Tk fa9Te FEeTe ARUBT & | Fial A AT AT [a<drd FRame! (Targeted
Financial Sanction) T HT T SATTATAITA “%” T[T AT Fehgeebl LA LT
TRTHT F |

THTEAT AARTHT THITT GBI, ATAGHIRI BRATHATT TAT ATH-[TATITHTRT BT T (HTrHT
fadrr el e grafaa yefaa #E, U9, WA qar dware I quewr
FESTE®dT SATATAAT THURT FRI < FIUH] AMVST SF 9, “@” FH qFE FFew R T
ARTHT GAT YGTIF R AF GEAEEATS G 997 I i FRAer TRt 3 |

AT IS bl TEPT TFATT AMETHIW [AaRIT TAT ATATHRT HTIAT fa<iiar amar o
(AML/CFT) &=l aTities Tfdfatael qiqasd Hafad S99 Tamaa= aar AaqRuges!
FTATAT (OPMCM) TS FHNT GTdeHTRT TSS TRTH G |

o IERT gHTE (FIU) I ARBRar ¥ ¥ HMaH 9 goAML Iw=eT are YR T+
TRUT B |

facel fafwa sgaem=

faeefr fafrwa A=

&Y

I T 059 /53 AT S qAT g =g fagerane fasamuer fageft qarer o Miea
fafaar Siifgw =TT o7 SAFEIT I AT 62 qeh W HRIAR [Gaaa«d, 3059
ST TRTHT |

&%



AT TG dFFHT FTAFIEE

&Y

R&%

&Y

&5

RE&R

R.\%0

R.9

R

R.e3

faaeft fafraa frafaa ™) T 2092 Far el amr aur wfata sxaraRor U=, J09Y AT
qUehT FATITTHITH T e seb [qgeft et qa fazefT o sy fafreraras, 2005
(ST FegAElEd) SR MR 3 |

aitacd fqeelt AT qhl g4 T ARAee® q HAFewale Jdaqs des Documents
Against Payment 4T Documents Against Acceptance @1 HTETHATS ATATA T ATTHTH AT

FARSHT TAX 9,00,000 HTIH TRTH! 3 |

afvacd faeelt 73T TRl g4 TR AR S 9 HAFewalegrae /a1 &l. &l HIeHaTe AT
T AT AT THRET TAX L0,000 FTIH TRUH 3 |

THIET AATHT FAAGl ATAT T FANTA ATQMHT IRIEAT, FATCHE ], AISThST TS
TATSH ATHIRTE F=aT TRTIHT TAHT AR FATATRT ATHT <ATET ATATT TET F(qIeh AR
TR 3,00,000 FT & aR[EXH AT IR fazefl HITAT TN 9 Fa W GHAT H1IH
TRUET ¥ o7 FA=al FFEATArg =AET AATT Tl Jiqqes THRE e §,00,000 a1 |
SRR A IR fqefl WETAT qhrl T T AT BTIH TR & |

ARAATEF I HeAheh! FHITHT ST TATAT AR FEEATE TEEHETIT FfTqd THRHT TeAR
3,400 AT |7 aRTaRH! GRac [aaell AaTae dcal qadr YaTd T4 Al FaedT TRTH g |
T, TAHNTETE bt Teniad & fqead (R G #ER dER T Afhes aed)
¥ TAARETE Ao AAFE® (ARAAeH) HT ({1 FHIT AT Afheedrs arairad 9Tl e
TUHT Uk IFHHT TEMHT THRHT AR 4,000 T Uk 3k TUAT TEHT FAHARH A 3,000
HTIH TTRTHT 3, |

YT FARAT S qar fa<ir geaese y=fad g var 9fg aRkac fagefr qamr
7 fearataeT™ I AAHT GTATHT ST Tl AARATHT JHRET TR Y, 0001- TFT @
T Qb T Hige FTS ART T T ATHT HTTH TRUHT G |

TATCAT AR BEEhT ATHHT GIATHT F 9f frfawert qivacd fazefr 7ar @rdEme awafea
Grarardr ¥ sl IRARET qeeewdrs (el dearare fagusl da1 qite g9 Areavasd
FITSATAR] ATIHAT FHAIT FLATATS AT THREHT TAT IY,000 FFT HTRIAE[ T Al
AT TRTHT 3, |

farefl HETHT AT TSI T faSell HETHT @TdT SUHT ATl AN EeE [qael FHIAT SATaT
AAYTF HISATT [ ATEHT @TATHT TUHT el F5T J=ida AaearawitTs SIERT T ATHT
faefr WaT HiSaTdaTe UF I AT Ik TIFk T TUHT TEMT AHRHT AT I, 0001~ T AT
T aRTeRHT 9= A el AT Sfhs STRTTHTRT SN T T ATHT HTaH TRTH
3 |

AT a9 2059 /5R AT ARINTT FT-GEAEEAT HH TR qad AT T I q=ehl &qHT
frzaft gt SISt T FTel AR FPEET AT P FRISATIRT ATARHT TATAT FebgEHT GITATRT
fazeft w1 @TATAT STEAT qUHT IRE fFeelt 731 y=faa s @= T g fSuar a5
HATATT T, 9 T FaT @REHT AN A1 MU & afeacd fageft qarer vo yiqera
FRTATAFHT IRAT [ FET ITANT T Fiche AT TRTHT B, | O, TN el qraem
T UTHAT FAREH] TAT W,0001- A IT Uk Yk TRI Uh JUAT JAFAT AHARHI X
30,000|- FF YT &1 Ifeafad o JiqeTdes! AT AR qer AaEdr RS 3 |

T\9



HIffF a 2059/ 57 # ATHF gladaT

R.\9Y

R.\9Y

R.\%

.90

R.\95

R

.50

.59

&R

vE3

&Y

FHTET At givacd faefl AT @IfUaRT @rarare AT qar ATHT Sister Concern T @ATHT
fagelt deameme fav fafgg F@r, swgew s (Invisible Import) fa@/ el qfte g+
BT /[t AThehl ATIRAT Wb TAHAT TMAT THRBT AT Y, 0001- IFA FEafedd
TETATs TThTHT 9 b AT MRTH |

fgeror FRIER ST G I MR UeRT el Fearere ure YUe! HHg arade! Afed TEHare
Grerep! faaell HaT @rardre AT TATST AR ATNT T {Ad STaeT THITH TR ATTAH] AR
T Flep Tl THH AHRBI AT IY,000|- FHTIF TRUHT T |

A, IFF, FMT, BRI, Bed, WA qd7 Il Mg /M uae ¥ o Haaeed
ReTieuer™ @rarare RATeuerT W qihl 8H el Harare daHREr AR 3¢,0001- a7 4T
TRTERTFHFT FaT auarda faeelt deaers qhml T GaSTTa! AT @9 9 afbd TR0
FHTEIH TRTHT T |

A a9 059 /53 HIAMIH Q00 (UF TF) TEH HTHIR TSSH ISR IR AFTATH
H / FFAT / HEAE®H] AR a8 @, Ao @HeId ATTHE® 2T FHIHT Sl
fraaerT amaAT ArET fageft AT @rareTe S aur faxie gRaeE aUHT U 9k A1 9w
qaF T TEET HHREN TAX IW,0001- TV FLT 9T &7 Al aear TMRTHT 3 | I,
FIHT Q00 AT HET FGT FTAIR TSTIH AT TSR FHIAE®ER] gHAT TTAT Ueh T T

T qeh T TEHT AHRET TAX 30,000~ FFH Feel AadT fad Fiebw azar TRTH! J |

TF FHATE TATTIIIAYTT “F” Gl S qdT AT TRHT “@” THT [FhTd Tehgwel
TR-ATAT FATell J97 IR -ATGEE Aareiiate yatgd i g e qsaq T
GIfTTHT GIATHT HISETd IR @TATHT TEHT THAATS TITHTE 7T Uh G a7 ok -Ieh
T Jiqay qHRkaHT A (00,0001- ¥ @ g4 T N [GIaE #e a1 a4 [@gare
ATRTATHT STHT TRT T Flehw a1 TRTHT G |

JATITHTR T ST &l Copy Document T AT AT fa.fa (. w19, ¥ /¥ (1) SIRT syuest fafaer
%0 f@ala Original Document T& WEHFIA FIT TNTH! F |

THTET AARIHT AR F 9l HAFETATE TATqIA (&A1 I/ E1.&1 T ATAAETE AT TaT
el Fiadr YT TUH 30 [TAT e Aard TRAFI SFadr TRTH 3 |

EATSIETS, ISR T AIGHe SATHIZHT TIETSTE® Tkl [A3ITATE IS TALHT ATTITH]
¥ fersharel SARMAT fTTAT Afaerad AR AR ,00,000 FFAHT T ATHMES AT
frAT = AR ATHTATE ATATT T Fib qqLT TRUH! |

AT AT a1 (aide! faafaarr aré Sdiidl, gamr/ Feear qargardsd a1 qraeaedl w
T e/ FearHT fq e SHST (Demurrage) T fSd=a (Detention) 2Teshehl ATRT FFafrard
AT/ AT AT TR AURT @l BT fafaid ¥ A0 ATl wRTSTIae
TERTHT Jool@ WS AEITd ehTd / TRATATE AT TUehT faAfarsiehep! STETRAT TEET &I T
Fiepe SqFTAT TRTHT T |

FIRTEH IFIEAT ASIAAT AT AATAT AR BATE GHA TSI ARTBTH AT TolR
Y00 FIEl el ITAed TRIIT ATLIT TRTHT G |

foreoTfedd reqarer T T2 ATTHTIHR RIS T ATAAF ATTST GRE T FATSTART ATRT AqTeAT
AR FEEaTs o6 qaT [T Femese qiitie AHNF ok 94,000 FIET FfaaT Fa T
T



AT TG dFFHT FTAFIEE

R.6¥

ek

59

.55

EES

R.R0

9

QR

13

R.R¥

R.R%

T FALT TRTH G | T FAeTaTe ITART ITHIIIHT @RE T Alh AT TRTHT
ER

afvacd fazefl HaTRT A1 TUHT FXATdTe qRacy [qaefl AErHT qiivtie g T TR AITeHT
FTART ARAMT AN AT TR [l TETHT 6T aieaiabel RATiaaeT qiadr 9am T
Fiep SqFTAT TRTHT |

AgF a9 059/53 AT FAAUAITT b qar fadia deaeed faaefr freafammaeer
FIGTH] AT HRB] ATA [d8 GART AqTARET Q16707 HeAETedATs qraead, TRIETT
TAAHT Mehateehl HhRTAT ATAT AHRB AT IY,000 HTIH TRTHT G |

9 / TRiTaT®! a7 MATH! AR TRA™ H, FFIET, a7 FITel qhTAT 919+ T Jiq qary
AT F.Y ATGETHET TIET e o6 qar fadiiar Fmane ga I A saer TRues g |

faerae faell JET U TUFT STARHAT FH, FFIAT, T, AT ART T9T AT HAHHT Fam
HAATT T 7T HAF (ART FHA) AT a7d AR T fazell 737 9 T qeatega arorsa
Sreper a3t TaTeRr T Juered RIS T TN TRTHT F |

A== drgee % ol (A1.31.0F.), FAR FISRNIATH] [FAT HATFHATE el FiadT
fe o ST SR ATTITEF TIH AT RS |

TATAHT FRERA TET A faaeft Harar qiifie are T 9RO AR el g1 |1 THITT
g RIS ATGRHAT aRac el HamAT @TdT @i 9T F==aTerd T Aleh AT TRTHT
ER

afvacd fagelt HamT s o e @mat, =) ot aRkfeafas= sroer gt
WH /FFIAT/ FATEwd! [geefl AT ATFaTl 99w aRacd fa3efl HamEr sqehmr T T9id
HITIT AUAT 053 AR AITTATHET ATNT Grefvard seb-faxir gearer g=fad &t raa avar
feamerer AT FYATHT A RIS o HFAT TRUHT |

gleAag®d IiTes® AfTHaH AHRET SAX 1,000 ¥ aRacd el 731 v Farg d@kmm
T GeH a7 TEh-Uch T FLET TS T Al qa<dr TRUHT 3 |

“HTe TS e Fardyeror fafraETEeT, R09R 7 AHINTH SRTTATAIT AT FEIHI ATEF AT
A -USve / FF-RIGST=efed (aeh T 79 ga<dr IS 3 |

aRacd faeefl aaTer FEMT A= RArd (OMR) 99 TRUEST 3 |

SATTAIAITT “F” FThT bl Proprietary A=Al Derivatives RIS AT TR

@itg T [T (Buy/Sale) TaHT SIS WATHE IofTepl 30 Gfaeras=aT oidT g9 A8+ T GHAT
FTAY TRTH 3 |

fadelt W1 FREAR T T

R.R%

05X FEAR AT J9 Fehald SRI TRUHT “qUe A6 g faaelt Afqwg #REr
FATTAYS qaT fereror fafaaaraed, 00 (@ mgaated)” aatas Tl Ffaag FREr ™
SHATTATTYT FLATERHT AT b R0, [T T , BIEATE FFAT O, FMGAT © T q




HIffF a 2059/ 57 # ATHF gladaT

R.R0

FEEE RS EH B | TR, “HUTT AT b ATASAR gATTAATT qar HARIETor
fafraraTae, 00 (Fetg afed)” THITH 305 AiFTE=ITE®ATs TTSTATS &I MRUH G |

“quTer IS A fageer fafammTEe, 09 (@ luaed)” aHifH FUTT FRER T
THATTAYAIT FEATEEHT AT Sk 9%, fahra I Y T o= GRAEEAT ¥ Y907 Frqies
TEHl B |

I AT Jar AT/

Rz

2R

AT ratgAT el ®H, FEAT TAT GRITET AYTAHT Tl JURT FH, HHAT a7 FIqTA
JERIAT T AT @RT TRATIT AT SFebeee YaTd T+ qa Fgefl o Ieer qiaarer
ArATeET AfdRTh o9 AT TF & ATTHT 4,592 BISAATRA .29 A YR FS axraweh faefi
HATH el qaeT JaT TRTH g |

AT SRS GITET T Seedd [T ATl WY, w97 RAERdrs ey
SFFEEATE qThTHT TUHT & 9 A Q% FIS 90 A aRTAXHT HATTHT AG AAITT THHP]
AIFAT IJTTH TRIZTHT 7 |

faeehr fafra fsaia aor s

R.900

R.909

Q0%

R.q0%

R.qo0¥%

R.q0%

059 FAR HHTIHT T4 bl faaefl fafraa afs=afa @ safiaT se=ar 43 o4 R #=Is
TEHMAT 0GR TAR HATRTAT TAT THH FHRKET SATHT 90 3T YO TS Teh B |

fazeft fafraa afsaiqesr TaTa®RT saaearad T4 GRE, T qdT TRl ATIHT A= 1T
TS [T SepeaT Arafad (Herd, S Sehare ST g+ ool o a1 Araw, Dt
TRFRT TUE, Tk BT Fradaaqd JTAAEA AT WHT FIXBIS T Medium Term Investment
(MTI) FATHT JTFUMEEHT birsd TRTHT B | TH AATTAT ARIT TSRHAT bl T HT
TR IAR TSTAHT HROT AT ATogd ATHTATIR AT & qebebl S |

Sehel FHNFN ToR, I, TSV wfelg, Aot e, Ja=T a9, oeaferad goy, FieaT
TR T ARATT FUAThT AHIEATT IUBITEEHT T T8 ATTHT B | 053 AR FTITTAT
FHA AT T 6T AHRBN TAX (U&.0% FFATe) Teehl G |

HTHRHT ST RAT TFeIIT AT Feald dehgdect AT 5 TTTHT FIRI ATTIF qT
2059/ &R AT faeelt fafraa afs=fdare g gfawa ¥ .3 9iqerd @ 3 |

ATE T 3059/ 53 AT Sebed NI FTLATAT T (FafqerdT CIMB Bank Berhad, Singapore;
Mashreq Bank PSC, UAE ¥ Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore ®Ts &RMHEART
FTSURITTEEF] ®IHT AT T | Tehewd™T Relationship Management Application
(RMA) =997 % FRIER & TH B |

faaelt fafrwa afsafa FazarIaarE 99 TATEHRT 13 TSI AN AR HET HITel
JUed TRTUH Fiiatde Feraar giqasd (Technical Assistance Report Nepal: Improving the
Foreign Exchange Reserves Management Framework) aTe 9Tl q¥hTd FHET TIR TRTH

warer Treg Sk fageft fafaaa e ifa, 059 EEEEEET ATgUar 3|
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s a9 R059/53 a1 fazeft qar fmmed o a9 Fearsg fagw fafeq SHerETRa
TH FT IR FIAS, X WA IRFATATRT AATAT FJAWTHT FIAH TEHT HeA  AITeAT
TIRIAEER] AR AT T T HUH el FrH! A & 5 o0F ¥ FE qdn
AT HIT TTHTATRT &.33 FRS T Fd &9 37 R FG aRTaRap! faaefl avm=rarad
fazeft w1 Rremmes amfa gem IRuewr @) @Y SR dEhmAT a9 Seare dqwia are
S / i TRATATE F.5 A S FRST AT FANT/FFACE & Uq qF 95 FIE W &
F.50 ¥ ¥3 FIG ARTATHT TSRTH HO (A3 Awfea Iar= TR 3 |

FHTETT FAIHT .99 A 30 FRIS SRTAHT (G A T LY AT 53 RS aRTEHT (a9l
FUTh! A@TFT ATHT T | T, Ioh AT To7eT el e fmar, orarhd fafraer fagefr
RMHTR! AT T aare, faeft emerare sfsta amaier, gfafa e oraaradert Adaedl qar
fazeft FERRT FFatgd fafa= qeke® TRl AR STFAT %33 o9 § FRS aARTaARHl
fazefl HaT AEErHl FMEd I TRTH F |

THTAT Ol

ATl YT AT FATTATAIT seh TN oiTT FRAMEEeATE qhTHT JaT T&TAHH! STHAT FTA
T AETTT Y& T FaEATET AGEF a9 3059 /53 F ATTFTHA R0 FMTed e,
Qo s e, U fa FFET T QR dufad fade geareEdarE daHiaT e AR g |
THTET AT 93 ARTATAFAT BT T FLATEETH ATHTTS AAHT0 TRTH T |

ARl T T HEATEEATS [ HEATEEET AEHT T ARSI HThAT FRIE R
Acquiring FaT F==ITee T4/ 9ERAT 9fr TaTsT TRl YA MRS & | FAE, BT T
affE fd. TS AITHT SART TUHT ATHTAT ITHINEE (FTSaTeh) Bl AN TR ARTHAT FRATT
HEHTRT Person2Merchant®l WThTHT HRIGTR 9 Issuing FaT T=aATAd 9 Elehid IaTT
TRTHT 3 |

“STERTHT AT T FafaaTae (Feaaadd), R099” HT SAFEATEHINH R TR JaT I&TH
FEAEEATS Ueh ATTHHT MAE THIEhd FRIAR q& T ATH AR TaTT TRTH B |
“TTRTHT T &I UW, 09L”, “OehTI ad1 ®gdid [EHaamEdl, 008", “qohrr
JUTAT el Tahlehd (a9, 0597 qoT “FFITT TEIHI0 (FAl ATgveRS) Mar UF, 208%”
T [T~ TTaaTagER! Ielg TH] AU R FThTHl HaT TaTdeHH! ATHTIT @IS TRTH
e

ATHI FAILNG HRIEAR TR AT @R § AhTAl GaT TTIHRT ATAITTT TR0 TRUH]
T | TR, 7 AepebT ESTRT qUT TATSAAT AT Q RTAT AT TRTAFHT AT @IS
TRUHT |

fagdr TRt qaTaRAT TUET (G, [ Tl FRIERS! qIN TRTE deded <
FAFTIRH! [TTAT AR TR FTANTHT TGaT ARATHHT HRU AMIE 99 2059 /5 AT
frgd FRER Ired aeh! g (@Ndsr 299 T 93 |
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¥ | ATE FAIERAr R,3% %1909 R,%3,%Y, %0 9%.0%
Y |Sfae #TE 9,35,23,43% 9,3%,%4%,9%R 1.2%
% |hfse &€ R,5%,%3% 345,%¥35 j0.0%
¢ |fre F1E 4,59,9R% R,40,%%Y 36._Y%
c |Hrenge afbg gATTHAT YR ¥G TS| R,99¥ Y 9R.4Y
? | gmezae Al wATTERAT 19,9%,3%% RR,4%,3%1 99,53
90 |RTGS @EHTI % ¥ 0
99 | ConnectIPS T JaIITHal 1%,9%,55% 1%,%9, %9 5%
9 |ECC 9T Fewri 1% 4% 0

RTGS Yorrefer R0 F1forsy e, 99 fasra o, 3 fad FFr 7 q97er qarar faswme s w8
BT STHAT %% % T fa<iia WEqE® ATag TUHT Bl | FHIET SARAT RTGS TOMeTHIh
TETITHINH FRIEAR AUH T (ATAHT 2.93) |

et .9% : RTGS YUITeHTR A HUSHT HRISR faao

Types of Transfers FRITR q&AT FRIAR IHH (3.39 99@)
Customer Transfers 3,%5,%%% 18,35,
Interbank Transfer 45,005 10 3% ¥ 3%
NCHL Settlements 34R,053 G%,%3,R0V
NRB Payments 5R,5%% 4,41,00,05%

Mg a9 059/5R AT T9 Ahare TRTHIAFET B8 T ATATIIIT T FoATATHT

TEHT ATHTAT YaT Jarde (Payment Service Provider -PSP) 43 @91 {hi=l YUl g=lTcleh
(Payment Systems Operator -PSO) 3 TR 9% HEITEwh! TIAIT (HLT&T0T, ¥ Il AML/CFT
Focused feTsr Term T feTetor T IR WRAEES! TR-TITT UARAEAT T TRTH! 3 |
frdreroraT SRauer Bithadewr sarHT T © FEEEarE gud 99T BRIER! TRUH 3 |
AT, AL AGRTAT & Sk TAT 0T FRATETRT RTGS FoATATHTT =T T (L1700 Trg=
TR 3 |

ATHTAT YUITATeRl YRETT, AMGHEBT fe= ¥ a9, GIRT GUTHA, AraRaeiia qhtar
FRIER, ATTHRE A IAFT ] FTLATAITRT [GTTHT FHATARA IR TR R
JUITATFe=T Ueblehel (MaeTd, 2059 ST TRTHT G |

ARTHIEFET T T STAH AT FAT (e TAT fa<ieT ARATaTE ) < ATSI TR HATHTHT
FIGHIE qAT AT faaRureFa=d] Fazarare IRl TaH FaRId adarsd  AIrae
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CTRTHIEEVT T W AAUAIT ST (SF qar g GRaraneed) Hr AT arrer
ot ATTEeTe, 057 AR MRTHT 3 |

SfeFg TAT TTRTHT YOI &ehT T Aagadhesdls HaTHHaTH Tesl 8o faer w1
AAYaaaATs 99 SRA T Ieedd I+ MATH® TaH, auierarar Maerd T s &mewr
FEATRTAT g9 TRT TIMIAT TRUHT Digital Finance Innovation Hub (DiFI-Hub) & T qR+
T |

FR I AhTAT HRIAHT FFTHT SWIFT HT AfaRh a7 qehrl STHIIEHT HTHR
T T Thlehd aRTT Ferad TRTHT T |

TG FpATE qTRTHT JUTET F=ATARE ATHTIAITT F= Visa Worldwide Pte. Ltd. aTE ST
HUHT Visa B2B Connect ITHEII AITAHT ToATATHT AT TFI-IHT b J&ATd Sk
YT TRTHT Digital Finance Innovation Hub (DiFl-Hub) AT SA®d 95 Fa=Td Ith AeaTdTs
Non-Binding Guidance =T TRl & |

USSD JUTeliars IHd Yagd 9 T JUTATHT AR HhTAT BRIRH! ArAT MR Teaw
AT GRETAFIHT HFATITHT ATNT (ST AT TTRTHT 3 |

THIET FAMTHT 1O AR FaT JIAF TIT Y ATHAT JUTell Foa1ad Aed IR FLAEEATS
fairr fa=or geprere T WIehid IaTH TRUHT 3 |

TAA FHUHT AT TICHdATs AfTd T IS HISHAT ATITRT Tourist App, fa3eTdT T8
TTEAT ANTRFET FART T fHerd TR FOe0r FRIAR 6T AT Remit as Merchant Payment,
fa3eTHT STRT TUHT FIEE® fddeh TN AT ATTHT 3ol ARFEEA FAR BISHATDT [FIATA
qRRTHI FRIER T AT Digital wallet for Travelers, aTeT afeTsh® T AT AT FeHHT
TEH KYC T¥=l fqazur API Sharing ATRd IS TRT ATeld Il 9 ik a1, ATRAT
eFEEATs Point of Sale (POS) ARTTHTRT AcATAAF Afhg JATE® Ml HIIATHT TATIT
Door Step Banking ST&T TEYECFHT ATETRT FATTET FaT8% oaTelTeh! AN Tlehid Fard
TRUET 3 |

TF I 3050/ 59 HT TR JAT HRITEGFERAT Oversight TTTaaT TaR TR 3 |

F41 S faeir {31 FoaTeHT @ArgHeT @it CBDC Base Prototype Version 0.1 T 14T
LTI TRTHT B | 1Y, FAEIIAT Sbehl FHARTATS ATTHRT RIS Virtual ATEARETE Ih

JUITEATeRl FoAT@+aal GARTcHE J&id (Demonstration) TRTEHT |
AR HGT FIATE F1T A fATea AFraFaeel et TeanT I TUH 3 |

ATk 99 059 /5% AT SHAT YA d32&®T Human Resource Information System ©Tg

Payroll, Pension, SRFSYS, DISP @A =1 JurTeir&T Application Programming Interface
(AP1) |THT Integration TRTHT ;|

T Tkl AMepg AT, qET HTATAT TAT GGl FEATAFAAT Upgraded ECC 4T New RMIS
(Risk Management Information System) FUTTeil F=aTATHT SATSUHT S |

SWIFT System @Ts FR{TA, AYIET q9T SFARIT qavdl goarad T+ SWIFT Alliance Entry
e SWIFT Alliance Cloud AT Migration I+ &Td I~ 7RI HTATFAATHT ATZUH! 3 |
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FHTET s@frAT Consumer Price Index (CPI) Software @97 T foaiis o Payment
Messaging ST F=afrd ACUMER System F=ATATHT ATSTHT S, |

ATEAR FRET SN HP! qiE =T, THATE g AR FATHII T AR YRATAFI [ TEATHT Al
FEIATH AT faig &9 FFAER ATHRHE Feraar d9e  (Financial Sector Computer
Emergency Response Team, FInCERT) &+ TRUHI & |

T SHNTT AT AR qaATIREERT G FIRGHATS SAa€TI+ T Cyber Security Framework
¥ IT Governance Framework TR IRUHT & | AT, AT Fiafd JOATHT g FATad
ATEAR ATHHUER! TE=TTHT AN THHT TN TTHT &TH fqeed®T Log fazures dwiehd
TOAT qgaAd T TRAT AT dg®er! I T HFh! AT Security Information and
Event Management System (SIEM) JIRTHT SATSTHT T |

faug sraeaTaAer ART S Critical Business Functions 7 Processes g%ehl fA¥waedTelrs
gHf=ra T 1T Disaster Recovery Plan TR TIRUHT & | Thebl AT TREATATE a7
FIEIHTIHT ATRT Chief Information Security Officer (CI1SO) T Information Security Officer
<R T Cyber Security Unit ®IT9AT TRTHT & |

FIAT g aaas ergwaaa |ifd, 2059 (Information Technology Change Management
Policy, 2081) ¥ F=IT fafy aRRadd =Fa<dmas &AM, 2059 (Information Technology
Change Management Procedure, 2081) TaR T AT ITHT ATSTHT B |

SHHT oA TEHT Web Based Applications &aTg Data Breach gAare SRS Web

Application Firewall HTATAATAT ATSTHT B, |

STepTaepT FRETUT fFITOAT qAT AICHT TN g Wi fereh TRTRHTTATS Ararifted TRATIAR
yaTafad  IRAT T Te ShArears 99 QRETT 97 ORI SHISe ANTTH & | SeHre

fE<TTE, BUTE qAT AT ATNT & FRIMET YRR Red FFodeedrs q@aaraar T
UM TRTHT |

i a9 2059/ 5R AT FEFATERES! M a2eHT A1 gurgarr=T &1 TS &

® TY TTHN Y BIE I SFhAIE HIR TERIATTAISTH TEdl deiIdhbl 93 HIS 9
SFATe AT 9T FHST ST TTHT G |

® 90 TYH 3¥ FIIE AT FehriTa (SIS, TUATS TAT ATITHT ATRT FIR FERIATTHITH
qieel ACATIADT & FIE I SFAIC AT T ghT I TTH G |

® %30 TH 3 FIIE A AFATE FIR TRHIATAHINTH ATI(T TS TR G TTHT |

R05R YR HIATTHT [T TTHT T Y] AT L BIUS o) a1@ ¥ R SRR TAT Al
TEF HISATd TEH G | Aol a9 FEAT Hisard 5.9%Y A" 9 FE ¥ o % B TEeh
forar (@rfererr 2.93) |
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i e TFTIIT TWH G |

ST AT UGIAeATs HHT: AR T8 AT AeTATET GRIHT A1 geaT3+ Banknote
Shredding and Briquetting System (BSBS) ATHd faébas adTIH HTddTs ME=avdl fGgTaH 3 |
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R.4¥3

¥y FHTET AARIHT AT FHEEHAT TEHT ATdehIT HRIAR Reporting T Note Chest Transaction
System (NCTS) FTATITHT STZUH! B, | ATCHTAFEH] FRIARATS 9 TATFAHRT TATIT

AP TEEH! FLTET0 TIT ATTAT T HIATs MRl [GeUeHl g |

CIEERCEIEE IR EIDIRE ]
05 AR FIATRTAT THAT FATATTE 9998 T WARIHTH 85 T HA 9928 T FHAREE
FTITT TEHT T | e FHAREEA ATRTTH ¥, FEHAh ¥ ¥3 T AL HAed
FEARIA® SO ST TEH G | 063 AAR HATHT FERT FHARCER ATTHaedTHT
FHARET FeTIF T HATAT GeaRT FHARID! A79Td §.35:9 Tehl B | GedRT JaTHT HIRHET
s IR STAEATATER 063 J@R HATTAT [T THE /98 Ad 6 AT HIRX JaTHT
HTART TEhT B |

R9¥Y

Mg a9 059 /53 W b JATHT AeTdeh HaeTdh (Afred JAr i) IHT &% T9T AeTTH
(TeTae fgeirar ofh) qear W3 TR FA 998 T TAT FHART (IR TRUET B | FA ¥3 T
FHARIEE b AT AT AUHT S TAHET YO ATl AFTATT ATHTT ITTHT,  STAThT
STATAT ST TURT T I AT (T qTH F |

ST WIFE FETEA ATSAAT (050/59-305Y /5¥) &I HAI-FM0b Ffe faaor qam aivwe
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LT FATTHT “FUTel 6 S FHATT A JAT FART FREATIFT A1, 059 " ST
TRTHT B | WA AARHT T 6L S FRAGFTEA HATGHAGFIT FTAMAT, 3059”7, “Fa1e
I A, FHART A6 TSI (JbvgH=g) TEa=dT Hrafafs, 0597 “Hurer g o,
RIS ATTATRT AT Fervaravaval A, 059" SRI TRTEHT B | T, “ATHTT I
frad FHERIET TG G FErEar Srafafn, 06 7 T g b AR aidad
AT, R06R”; “TITe AT A FEAT FaT FRAT fqTara=d1 Frafafy, 096”; “Jarer IUeg A%
AT RHERAE] RERIFEE] FEMEY, 005" T AAE Q. dF AARE
FTHBTTATIHT FTAFT, 309”7 /T ATTITE LT TRUHT 3 |

“JaTer ITST Sk FHAEET fafrawmEen, j0%s” @ faftmw qur T qwe g S dar
REFRAFT Frafaf, 00c” FTHINHST Ger T YERATATEAR T9 Sbdl 0T
ATMPITAHT JTALAHT AT IS Aeh GaATcehtE T QRTHR § AT T AT T S It
YT REFR ¥ AT FHAREEATS T TR 3 |

ATdE a9 R059/53 AT Reh 8T WAl UEe®H] HHLTHAN HATgH dgareie ¥o ST,
AT ® ITANTATHE rerare 39 A1 T Gl JqANTarcHs GRIETere 4R STAT 989k
TRTHT B | AT, ATIE T 3050 /59 T FHATIT T AT FTaTH &7 STl TEHT A=A D
FITATRTATCHS® GRVETT 4T et (@elr adr gHraelT) gfaaifirdreas w@erarhd gfd IR 95es
THT 78 A TUAT I TRTHT G |

FHTAT AGRIAT FRIRET TSETHT 18Tk ¥ AT, (qurel & <=1, faarer afesr 3 =, far @ 5+,
AR =A% 99 ST X STAT ] STAT IR AT 39 A7 (e TRTH 3 |
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EALE
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AT I(CZ Sk T LA, FTATEAT TIH AT (TIRTEHT, 09 AT JURT ATLTTHITTH
Al a9 R053/53 BT AN sehebl TP TTeT=ATAb FHITH [HidT 057/ 03/ 33 &I
TSFATE TTHRT qTHT T |

FHTET At AT Business Continuity Plan, 2025 AT TRT FIATIATHT TSR 3 |

THTET At e 9T 050,59 ®T AT TR AT ATIE 9 059 /5% BT GEHT,
AT T TG TIAHH! FRGH TGO qHET giqaed aur TRTRT @ qiy, Gt
[ IRT/ FraATed / AETeET / SHISHT SIRgH AT GeegHl (AL&T0 W 9T G¥hiaes
FATAITHT ATSTH B |

THdE AT BT
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05 AT HHAAFEHH! G [FaRT ATURAT T bkl <Al TOIAE AT
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&R

ufqar @fathe FHE (Asia Pacific Group - APG) & &9 R033/33 AT AML/CFT &=l
TATART qREARE HATEH, T TIHATAHT GBRAT T TATAATS BT, 0%, AT < FRATET
FTIT ((RTETEH) & I9 AFTEAERT AT TGS 99 GERATHT AT i Ay garg
(FIU-Nepal) & 9Tafq® ¥ a3t ®IHT F1 TReh] q97 ATqeTF THAT / TEhrdaH

e ATTHT 3 |

[ SATH&RT 375 (FIU-Nepal) ©f H&T Aa=dTHoRT T9T MATHE Habraasa T goAML &
HATHATE HEIT FRIEAR /AT T HATTATATRT [FIATTeHT FTIHT JATE, TEEUTE, e
TN ARG FHAAAAIADT FAAAT AT J&TH T ATTHT G |

TREARE HeATsT THAT TFIIHT APG AHaTaddrs ATaede® I TSN, TEEIHI T
FTTSTAEE ATRTAIRT T HRAAT IHTE AT AHEH (18 Ta ATTEH 3 |

QT ETHRT (AAT ATIreRF) AR UF, 0%% aHINH Th1sd g YRATEEHThT GIAT
FRIER G339 (TTR), 3T FRIEAR /(A qfdasd (STR/SAR) ¥ ATFLIFATATIAR 99
FAATEE Y T T T | Feb o facirar am, qehTl Far Jardes, ShTel TUTel qoeTeeh,
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qTAPT 3 : APd GRTA Brgae oamaa AqTHEE

S.N. Training Name Venue Date Days
1 Regylat_lon and Supervision of Microfinance Financial Bode Saun 21-24, 2081 4
Institutions
2 | AML CFT Regime and Supervisory Aspects Bode Saun 27-32, 2081 6
3 | Training on Arbitration Bode Bhadau 5-6, 2081 2
4 yr:/?\lr;?op on Income Tax of Staff and TDS Calculation Bode Bhadau 11, 2081 1
5 | Financial Stability and Macro Prudential Policies Bode Bhadau 16-19, 2081 4
6 |Risk Based Internal Audit Bode Bhadau 24-27, 2081 4
7 | Central Banking Training Bhairahawa | Asoj 6-11, 2081 6
8 | Monetary Management Theories and Practices Bode Aso0j 20-21, 2081 2
9 | Payment and Settlement System of Nepal Bode Katik 11-13, 2081 3
10 | Pre-Service Training for Assistant Directors Bode Katik 25-Mangsir 6, 2081 12
11 | Research Methodology and Report Writing Bode Mangsir 9-14 6
12 | Ethics and Behavior in Organization Bode Mangsir 16-17, 2081 2
13 | Pre-Service Training for Assistant Directors (1.T.) Bode Mangsir 16-21, 2081 6
14 | Procurement and Inventory Management in NRB Pokhara Mangsir 23-26, 2081 4
15 | Foreign Exchange Management in NRB Bode Poush 1-3, 2081 3
16 | Pre-Service Training for Assistants Bode Poush 24- Magh 8, 2081 12
17 | ToT for Financial Literacy Trainer Bode Magh 06-11, 2081 6
18 | Central Banking Training Biratnagar | Magh 06-11, 2081 6
19 | Training on Core Banking Software of BFls Durbarmarg | Magh 13-14, 2081 2
20 | Macroeconomic Management in Nepal Bode Magh 20-25, 2081 6
21 | GL Software Thapathali | Magh 27-29, 2081 3
22 | Risk Based Supervision Bode Magh 27- Falgun 02, 2081 5
23 | Supervision of LC Transactions Bode Fagun 4-5, 2081 2
24 | Currency Management in Nepal Thapathali | Fagun 11-13, 2081 3
25 | Training for Drivers and Other Mechanics Dhulikhel Fagun 16, 2081 1
26 | Management Development Program Bode Fagun 18-23, 2081 6
27 | Training for Office Subordinates Pokhara Fagun 22-23, 2081 2
28 CenFrgI Bank's_ Law & Application in Department Level Bode Fagun 25-27, 2081 3
Decision Making
R e e
30 |Financial Literacy Bode Chaitra 6, 2081 1
31 | Banking Operation Thapathali | Chaitra 10-14, 2081 5
32 | Active Directory and Email Operational Training Bode Chaitra 17-18, 2081 2
33 Orler?tatlon Progran_1 on Curr.ent Eco and Banking Thapathali | Chaitra 17-18, 2081 2
Affairs for EconomicJournalists
34 | Coin Design, Engraving Modelling Bode Baisakh 21-23, 2082 3
35 | Financial Inclusion and Literacy Bode Baisakh 24-26, 2082 3
36 | Consumer Protection and Market Conduct Supervision | Bode Jestha 1-2, 2082 2
37 | Macroeconomic Modelling and Forecasting Bode Jestha 4-9, 2082 6
38 | Letter and Memo Writing Skills Pokhara Jestha 11-12, 2082 2
39 ﬁ]esgi;ﬂjattig):ss and Supervision of Non Bank Financial Bode Jestha19-21. 2082 3
40 | GL Workshop 2 Thapathali | Jestha 25-27,2082 3
a1 i(;yﬁ;;;ecurity Issues in Payment and Settlement System Bode Asar 1-3,2082 3
42 | Pre-Service Training for Assistant Directors Bode Asar 8-19,2082 12
43 | Pre-Service Training for Assistants Thapathali | Asar 30 to Shrawan 9,2082 | 12
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9%. | China Banknote Printing and Minting E
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XX. | Federal Reserve Bank 3
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Nepal Rastra Bank

As at 32 Asar 2082

Statement of Financial Position

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS Note 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Foreign currency financial assets
Cash and balances with banks 4.1 195,522,615,444 131,658,377,029
Derivative financial assets - -
IMF related assets 4.2 23,552,113,844 23,991,803,148
Term deposit with foreign banks 4.3 561,777,218,459 598,508,477,426
Investments in foreign securities 4.4 1,668,276,021,551 1,127,741,874,366
Other receivables 4.5 - -
Total foreign currency financial assets 2,449,127,969,298 1,881,900,531,969
Foreign currency non-financial assets
Investment in Gold Certificates 4.6 118,193,529,311 83,322,433,218
Tota foreign currency non-financial assets 118,193,529,311 83,322,433,218
Total foreign currency assets 2,567,321,498,609 1,965,222,965,187
Local currency financial assets
Balances with banks 8,394,919 6,144,630
Investment in Government securities 4.7 15,185,270,309 23,047,152,978
Investment in bonds & term deposit 4.8 6,822,515,860 7,381,089,826
Advances and receivable from Government 4.9 260,548,220 1,946,658,278
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 4.10 118,231,579 118,433,601
Other loan and advances 4.11 9,144,728,192 9,399,741,857
Equity investment 4.12 5,005,736,072 4,302,806,764
Other receivables 4.13 2,063,528 1,745,467
Total local currency financial assets 36,547,488,679 46,203,773,401
Local currency non-financial assets
Gold and silver assets 4.14 55,416,574,175 44,003,521,309
Inventories 4.15 1,922,307,587 1,449,807,211
Property, plant and equipment 4.16 6,309,276,910 6,437,994,139
Intangible assets 4.17 35,291,595 43,330,321
Other assets 4.18 3,687,102,248 3,662,986,225
Total local currency non-financial assets 67,370,552,515 55,597,639,205
Total local currency assets 103,918,041,194 101,801,412,606
Total assets 2,671,239,539,803 2,067,024,377,793

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey

Board Member

Financial Management Department

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra
Deputy Governor

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Deputy Governor

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel
Governor

Place: Kathmandu

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya
Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti

Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali
N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA Sudarshan Raj Pandey
S.R Pandey & Co.

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal
B.K Agrawal & Co.

RV

Mr. Baikuntha Bahadur Adhikari
Deputy Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities & Equity Note 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Foreign currency financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - -
Deposit of bank and financial institutions 4.19 10,493,587,420 12,868,855,095
IMF related liabilities 4.20 41,237,741,376 38,953,389,315
Total foreign currency financial liabilities 51,731,328,796 51,822,244,410
Local currency financial liabilities
Bills Payable 54,245,636 111,732,583
Deposit of bank and financial institutions 4.19 388,635,552,440 290,718,269,398
Deposit of Government 4.21 70,837,099,174 63,953,391,009
Deposit of other institutions 4.22 12,502,055,256 20,063,196,070
Currency in circulation 4.23 750,112,422,154 680,048,802,701
Due to bank and financial institutions 4.24 654,050,000,000 355,450,000,000
IMF related liabilities 4.20 12,464,816,036 11,859,006,209
Surplus payable to Government 42,000,000,000 37,223,820,561
Other liabilities 4.25 2,027,025,539 1,592,587,318
Total local currency financial liabilities 1,932,683,216,235 1,461,020,805,849
Other liabilities
Pension and other employment benefits payable 4.26 10,798,671,487 5,363,189,944
Total local currency liabilities 1,943,481,887,722 1,466,383,995,793
Total liabilities 1,995,213,216,518 1,518,206,240,203
EQUITY
Capital 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Reserves 4.27 671,026,323,285 543,818,137,590
Total equity 676,026,323,285 548,818,137,590
Total liabilities and equity 2,671,239,539,803 2,067,024,377,793

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director
Financial Management Department

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey
Board Member

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya

Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra

Deputy Governor

Deputy Governor

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali

N.B.S.M. & Associates

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal

CA Sudarshan Raj Pandey
S.R Pandey & Co.

Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082

Governor

Place: Kathmandu

=

B.K Agrawal & Co.

Mr. Baikuntha Bahadur Adhikari
Deputy Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Statement of Net Income and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
OPERATING INCOME
Foreign currency income and expenses
Interest income on foreign currency financial assets 4.28 96,167,221,419 79,785,220,115
Interest expense on foreign currency financial liabilities 4.29 (1,352,545,497) (1,618,999,680)
Net foreign currency income 94,814,675,922 78,166,220,435
Local currency income and expenses
Interest income on local currency financial assets 4.30 1,627,366,258 3,336,345,665
Interest expense on local currency financial liabilities 4.31 (9,132,334,287) (2,186,034,052)
Net local currency income (7,504,968,029) 1,150,311,613
Net interest income 87,309,707,893 79,316,532,048
Other income
Fee and commission income 4.32 18,162,871 120,714,523
Income on Gold Certificates 4.33 537,156,642 422,354,601
Gain or loss on sale of securities
Realized gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction (89,057,429) (257,261,092)
Other income 4.34 997,072,635 920,665,908
Less: Fee and commission expense 4.35 (61,268,732) (92,444,169)
Net other income 1,402,065,987 1,114,029,771
Allowance for ECL (loss)/gain on financial assets 4.36 (244,294,013) (185,852,877)
Total net operating income 88,467,479,867 80,244,708,942
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel expenses 4.37 5,063,361,907 3,873,034,981
Note printing expense 773,605,902 410,882,145
Administrative expenses 4.38 1,662,687,548 1,815,754,984
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 4.39 485,174,069 382,716,123
Total operating expenses 7,984,829,426 6,482,388,233
Net profit/(loss) before revaluation gain/loss 80,482,650,441 73,762,320,709

Revaluation gain/(loss)
Gold and silver revaluation gain/(loss)
Net foreign exchange revaluation gain/(loss)

46,886,685,765
45,029,959,182

26,596,033,683
14,995,429,467

Net profit/(loss) for the year

172,399,295,388

115,353,783,859

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director
Financial Management Department

Board Member

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra

Deputy Governor Deputy Governor

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel

Governor

Place: Kathmandu

EEQS

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya

Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali

N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal

B.K Agrawal & Co.

CA Sudarshan Raj Pandey
S.R Pandey & Co.

Mr. Baikuntha Bahadur Adhikari
Deputy Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
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Nepal Rastra Bank
Statement of Net Income and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:

Net unrealised gain from Equity Investment at FVOCI

172,399,295, 388

693,191,508

115,353,783,859

635,186,270

Sub total 693,191,508 635,186,270
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Property revaluation gain/loss

Re-measurement gain from defined benefit plan (3,783,833,487) 101,846,034
Sub total (3,783,833,487) 101,846,034
Total other comprehensive income (3,090,641,979) 737,032,304
Total comprehensive income 169,308,653,409 116,090,816,163

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey
Board Member

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director
Financial Management Department

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra
Deputy Governor

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Deputy Governor

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel
Governor

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082 Place: Kathmandu
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Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya
Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali
N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal
B.K Agrawal & Co.

CA Sudarshan Raj Pandey
S.R Pandey & Co.

Mr. Baikuntha Bahadur Adhikari
Deputy Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Gold and Silver Open Market
Note Capital General Fasarve Monetary Liability Financial Exchange Equalisation Fair Value Acturial Gain Operation D Retained Total
Reserve Stability Fund Equalisation Fund Reserve Reserve Stabilization Earning
Reserve Fund

Balance as at 1 Sawan 2080 5,000,000,000 76,120,125,947 15,194,655,781 11,997,141,783 206,818,097,401 65,766,495,953 3,025,140,244 2,532,245,736 2,196,772,113 81,300,467,030 - 469,951,141,988
Net profit/(loss) for the year 115,353,783,859 115,353,783,859
Other comprehensive income for the year 635,186,270 101,846,034 737,032,304
Appropriation of profit : =
General reserve 11,274,655,157 (11,274,655,157) =
Monetary liability reserve 3,688,116,035 (3,688,116,035)

Financial stability fund 3,688,116,035 (3,688,116,035)

Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund 10,666,821,436 (10,666,821,436)

Exchange equalisaiton fund 14,995,429,467 (14,995,429,467)

Gold and silver equalisation reserve 26,596,033,683 (26,596,033,683) -
Other reserve 7,091,153,478 (7,091,153,478) -
Net cumulative surplus fund 129,638,007 (129,638,007) -
inter fund transfer . -
Administrative expense reimbursement/ adjustment of RSRF - -
Surplus transfer to Government (37,223,820,561) (37,223,820,561)
Balance as at 31 Asar 2081 5,000,000,000 87,394,781,104 18,882,771,816  15,685,257,818  221,813,526,868 92,362,529,636 3,660,326,514 2,634,091,770 12,863,593,549 88,521,258,515 & 548,818,137,590
Balance as at 1 Sawan 2081 5,000,000,000 87,394,781,104 18,882,771,816  15,685,257,818  221,813,526,868 92,362,529,636 3,660,326,514 2,634,091,770 12,863,593,549 88,521,258,515 - 548,818,137,590
Adjustment for Prior Period Income(Expense) (100,292,215) (100,292,215)
Restated Balance 5,000,000,000 87,394,781,104 18,882,771,816 15,685,257,818  221,813,526,868 92,362,529,636 3,660,326,514 2,634,091,770 12,863,593,549 88,420,966,300 - 548,717,845,375
Net profit/(loss) for the year 172,399,295,388 172,399,295,388
Other comprehensive income for the year 693,191,508 (3,783,833,487) (3,090,641,979)
Appropriation of profit :
General reserve 16,250,973,601 (16,250,973,601)
Monetary liability reserve 4,024,132,522 (4,024,132,522) -
Financial stability fund 4,024,132,522 (4,024,132,522) -
Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund 10,473,483,632 (10,473,483,632)

Exchange equalisaiton fund 45,029,959,182 (45,029,959,182) -
Gold and silver equalisation reserve 46,886,685,765 (46,886,685,765) -
Other reserve 1,807,077,854 (1,807,077,854) -
Net cumulative surplus fund 1,902,850,310 (1,902,850,310) -
Inter fund transfer - -
Administrative expense reimbursement/ adjustment of RSRF (175,499) (175,499)
Surplus transfer to Government (42,000,000,000) (42,000,000,000)
Balance as at 32 Asar 2082 5,000,000,000 103,645,754,705 22,906,904,338 19,709,390,340 266,843,486,050  139,249,215,401 4,353,518,022 (1,149,741,717) 23,337,077,181 92,130,718,965 = 676,026,323,285

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director
Financial Management Department

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082 Place: Kathmandu

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey
Board Member

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel
Governor

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya
Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali
N.B.S.M. & Associates
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Deputy Governor

CA Sudarshan Raj Pandey
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Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina
Deputy Governor

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal
B.K Agrawal & Co.

Mr. Baikuntha Bahadur Adhikari
Deputy Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082
(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest income received

Fees, commission and other income received
Interest expense paid

Personnel expense paid

Fees and commission Expense paid

Note printing expense paid

Administrative expense paid

96,650,221,494
1,464,987,442
(10,484,879,784)
(3,411,713,851)
(61,268,732)
(773,605,902)
(1,662,687,548)

83,121,565,780

1,381,653,043
(3,805,033,732)
(3,117,608,908)
(92,444,169)
(410,882,145)
(1,815,754,984)

Net cash flow from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 81,721,053, 119 75/261,494,885
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets

Loan and advances to BFls 175,498 1,549,797,399
Other loan and advances 254,669,451 (1,473,964,953)

Advances and receivable from Government
Inventories

Other receivables

Other assets

Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Deposit of bank and financial institutions
Deposit of Government

Deposit of other institutions

Due to Bank and Other Financial Institutions

1,462,289,498
(472,500,376)
(458,623)
(24,116,023)

95,542,015,367

6,883,708,165
(7,561,140,814)

298,600,000,000

(340,658,278)
137,330,122
33,594,325

(1,325,127,414)

16,481,621,279
18,863,943,393
2,111,402,574
295,450,000,000

Other liabilities 301,776,858 200,978,422
(Easf'l .fl‘ow from changes in operating assets and operating 394,986,419,001 331,688,916,869
liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities 476,707,472,120 406,950,411,754
Cash flows from investing activities

Net purchase of property and equipment (344,833,759) (1,196,280,524)
Purchase of intangible assets (3,584,354) 3,913,729
Sale of property and equipment 4,029,006 8,014,435
Net Sale/(purchase) of securities (215,258,485,440) (298,843,488,875)
Receipt from/(Investment) in term deposit (6,601,053,610) (104,620,791,992)
Net purchase of gold and silver - (360,615,532)
Net purchase of equity instruments (9,737,800) 1,843,877,778
Dividend income received 82,940,200 70,973,442
Net cash flow from investing activities (222,130,725,757) (403,094,397,539)

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director

Financial Management Department

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra
Deputy Governor

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey
Board Member

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Deputy Governor

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel
Governor

Place: Kathmandu

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya
Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali
N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal
B.K Agrawal & Co.
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in currency in circulation
Lease payments

70,063,619,453
(25,293,298)

54,260,930,171
(10,606,821)

Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities with IMF 2,958,852,264 (213,996,617)
Interest paid on IMF related liabilities (68,690,376) 10,016,248
Surplus paid to Government (37,223,820,561) (25,000,000,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities 35,704,667,482 29,046,342,981
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 290,281,413,845 32,902,357,196

Exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents
ECL effect on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

44,940,901,753

672,804,191,641

14,738,168,375

625,163,666,070

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

1,008,026,507,239

672,804,191,641

The significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Cash and cash equivalent includes following assets:
Assets

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Foreign currency cash in hand 23,999,547,422 25,243,089,889
Balances with other central banks 100,360,702,752 51,280,897,155
Balances with banks 71,173,713,139 55,129,172,928
SDR Holdings 23,405,205,370 23,791,069,016
Term deposit with maturity upto 3 months 274,000,000 43,819,360,000
Treasury bills with maturity upto 3 months 788,813,338,556 473,540,602,653
Total 1,008,026,507,239 672,804,191,641

Mr. Rajan Dev Bhattarai
Acting Executive Director

Financial Management Department

Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra

Deputy Governor

Dr. Ghanshyam Upadhyaya
Secretary MOF/Board Member

Date: 28/07/2082

Dr. Ravindra Prasad Pandey
Board Member

Dr. Neelam Dhungana Timsina

Deputy Governor

Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel
Governor

Place: Kathmandu

Dr. Shankar Prasad Acharya
Board Member

Mr. Chintamani Siwakoti
Board Member

As per our report of even date

CA Durga Prasad Gnawali
N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA Bijay Kumar Agrawal
B.K Agrawal & Co.
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2.2

NEPAL RASTRA BANK
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
Fiscal Year 2081-82 (2024-25 AD)

General Information

Nepal Rastra Bank (hereinafter referred to as ‘'NRB'or 'the Bank’), the Central Bank of Nepal, was incorporated under
Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2012 as superseded by Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058 (amended on 2073). The Bank is

domiciled in Nepal and its central office is located at Baluwatar, Kathmandu. The Bank’s jurisdiction is spread
throughout the country. The primary objectives ofthe Bankare to maintain economic stability; price stability as well
as external sector stability, promote financial access and develop secured, healthy and s table paymentsysterrs.Inorder
to attain these objectives, the Bank's principal functions include:

Formulating necessary monetary and foreign exchange policies

Issuing Nepalese currency notes and coins and maintaining record of Nepalese currency in circulation
Foreign reserve management

Promoting stability and liquidity required in banking and financial sector

Developing a secure, healthy and efficient system of payment

Regulating, inspecting, supervising and monitoring the banking and financial system

Promoting entire banking and financial system of Nepal

Q@ = o o o T

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The Bank's financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standards Board, Nepal which are generally in compliance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued and applicable, except mentioned hereinafter. NFRS also include interpretations (IFRIC
and SIC) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board.

The Bank's financial statements include Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Net Income and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to Accounts. TheBanks
assets and liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position in the order of their liquidity, and expenses
are classified as per their nature.

Basis of Measurement
The Bank's financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for following material items.

Items Measurement Basis

Financial Instruments at Fair value through profitorLoss | Fair value

Debt Instruments and other similar financial Instruments Fair value as well as Amortized Cost

Equity investments Fair value
Monetary Gold Fair value
Inventories (Including gold& silver kept for further Costor Net realizable value whichever is lower

processing)

Net defined benefit liability/(assets)-gratuity & pension Fair value of plan assets lessthe presentvalue of
fund and staff security fund the defined benefit obligation
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

Responsibility of Financial Statements

The Management ofthe Bank s responsible for preparation and presentation ofthe Bank’s financial statements and
for the estimates and judgments used in them. The Bank's financial statements are approved by the Board Meeting
held on 28" Kartik 2082.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Bankhas presented its assets and liabilities broadly in order of liquidity in the statement of financial position.
Income and expenses are presented in the statement of net income based on nature ofincome/expenses. The Bank’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, and theirassociated income and expenses are further distinguished between
foreign currency and local currency.

The Bank's Cash Flow Statement has been prepared by using the "Direct Method" in accordance with the NAS7-
Statement of Cash Flow. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equivalents as defined in point No. 3.2 of the NAS 7- Statement of Cash Flow.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Bank's functionaland presentation currency is Nepalese Rupee (NRs). All financial information are presentedin
Nepalese Rupee except otherwise indicated. The figures have been rounded up to the nearest rupee.

Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

Offsetting

Financialassets and liabilities are offset and the netamount is presented in the Statement of Financial Positionwhen
and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it intends eitherto settle onanetbasis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Bankhas offset the cash at vault with the currency in circulation and presented the net amount of currency in
circulation as liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Comparative Information

The comparative information is reclassified whenevernecessary to conformwith the current year’s presentation. The
narrative and descriptive information has been given in notes to the financial statements, where relevant, for the
understanding of the current year's financial statements.

Fiscal Year

The financial statements relate to the fiscal year 2081/82 i.e. 1% Shrawan 2081 to 32" Asar 2082 corresponding to
Gregorian calendar 16" July 2024 to 16" July 2025. The previous year was 1 Shrawan 2080 to 31% Asar 2081 (17"
July 2023 to 15" July 2024).

Use of Estimates, Assumptions or Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make judgment,
estimates and assumption that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual result may differ fromthese estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis. Estimated and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future period affected.

Information about significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgment in applying accountingpolicies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:

+  Keyassumptions used in discounted cash flow projections

«  Measurement of defined benefit obligations

«  Provisions and contingencies

«  Determination of net realizable value

«  Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment

«  Determination of capitalization value and useful life of the intangible assets

REL
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2.13

2.14

Controlling Body

The controlling body ofthe Bankis the Government of Nepal (GoN) holding 100 percent ofits share capital. In the
normal course of its operations, the Bank enters into following transactions with GoN and state controlled
enterprises/entities:

« The Bank shall be the banker and financial advisor of Government of Nepal and a financial agent of the
Government of Nepal.

«  Government of Nepalshall consult the Bank on any matters that are within the jurisdiction of its competence. It
shall be the duty of the Bank to advice on matter consulted by the Government of Nepal.

. Government of Nepalshall, while preparing annual budget, consult the Bank on the domestic debt including
overdrafts.

«  The Bank shall submit a pre-budget review report to Government of Nepal each year on the economic and
financial matters.

The Bank does not generally collect any commission, fees or other charges for services, which it renders to the
Government of Nepal or related entities except where agreement states otherwise.

Basis of Consolidation

As per NFRS 10- Consolidated Financial Statements, “an investorcontrols an investee when it is exposed, orhas
rights, to variable returns fromits involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns throughits
poweroverthe investee.” The Bank's investment in Rastriya Beema Sansthan and A griculture Project ServiceCenter
is in excess 0f50% of the paid up capital of those entities. These investments were made under the specific directives
orpolicies of the Government of Nepal and other relevant statutes. Accordingly, the Bank did not exercise controlor
significant influence on the entities except forregulatory purposes. As the requirement of NFRS 10- Consolidated
Financial Statements does not meet for consolidation, the consolidation of the financial statements of thesubsidiaries
is not done. These investments are accounted at fair value through other comprehensive income as per NFRS 9.

Basis of Accounting for Investment in Associates

NAS 28 mentions thatan entity with joint control of, or significant influence over, an investee shall account for its
investment in an associate ora joint venture using the equity method. Further, the standard clarifies that significant
influence is the power to participate in the financialand operating policy decisions ofthe investee but is notcontrolor
joint controlofthose policies. The Bank's investment in National Productivity and Economic Development Ltd. isin
excess 0f 20% of the paid up capital of the entity. These investments were made under the specific directives orpolicies
ofthe Government of Nepaland other relevant statutes. Accordingly, the Bank did not exercise significant influence
on the entities except forregulatory purposes. As the requirement of NAS 28- Investments in Associatesforbeingthe
associates ofthe Bankdoes not meet, the equity accounting for such investment has not beendone. Theseinvestments
are accounted at fair value through other comprehensive income as per NFRS 9.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The bankhas applied its accounting policies consistently and there is no any change in any accounting policy followed
by the Bank during this fiscal year.

Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability orequity
instrument of another entity.

A. Financial Assets
A financialassetis any asset that is cash, an equity instrument of another entity, a contractualrighttoreceivecash
oranother financial asset fromanother entity orto exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity.

(i) Recognition
The Bankinitially recognizes loans and advances, deposit with other bank, investment in securities onthedateof
which the Bank becomes a party to the instruments. All other financial instruments (including regular-way
purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade date which is the date on which the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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(ii) Classification and measurement
The classification and measurement of financial assets will depend on how these are managed (the entity’s
business model) and their contractual cash flow characteristics. These factors determine whether the financial
assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Bank classifies its financial assets into one of the following categories:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are non-derivative financialassets with fixed or determinable
payments forwhich the business model ofthe Bankis to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
cash flows include solely payment of principal and interest only. Financialassets measured atanmortized cost
are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, such
financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method less any impairment
losses.

Following financial instruments are measured at amortized cost:

a)

b)

c)

e)

Cash in hand and balance with banks

Cash in hand and balance with banks includes notes and unrestricted balances heldwithbanks domiciled
domestically and at abroad. This also includes balances at current account of foreign centralbanksand
Bank for International Settlement. These balances are measured at amortized cost and the transaction
amount is the initial fair value ofthe asset. There is no any transaction cost on these balancesand interest
income if any on bank balances is recognized at effective interest rate. The Bank has recognized
allowances for impairment on these assets using expected credit loss method.

IMF related assets

International Monetary Fund (IMF) related assets include Special Drawing Rights (SDR) holdingofthe
Bank at IMF and interest receivable from IMF. These assets are measured at amortized cost. Initial
measurement is made at fair value which is the transaction value and there is no any transaction cost.
Interest income is recognized at effective interest rate. Due to the nature of the transaction with IMF,
the allowance for impairment loss on this asset determined at zero.

Term deposit with banks

The termdeposit with banks includes termdeposit with foreign banks as wellas domestic banks and
financial institutions. These are the interest bearing deposit with banks for specific periodoftime. These
assets are measured at amortized cost. Initial measurement is made at fair value which is the transaction
value and there is no any transaction cost. Interest income is recognized at effective interest rate. The
Bank has recognized allowances for impairment on these assets using expected credit loss method.

Investments in Government securities

Investment in Government securities includes investment in coupon bonds, treasury bills andtreasury
notes of foreign Government. This account also includes investment in development bonds, citizen
saving bonds, foreign employment bonds and treasury bills issued by Nepal Government. Theseassets
are measured at amortized cost. Initial measurement is made at fair value which is the transaction value.
Transaction cost is recognized in this account. Any premiumor discount paid/receivedontransactionor
at the maturity of the investment is amortized over the tenure of specific instrument using effective
interest rate. Interest income is recognized at effective interest rate. The Bank has recognizedallowances
for impairment on foreign Government securities using expected credit loss method. Allowan ce for
impairment loss on Nepal Government's securities is determined at zero due to nature ofrelation with
Nepal Government.

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bankand financial institutions stand for loan and adv ances made aspernonetary
policy instrument. This includes standing liquidity facilities, repo transactions, lender of last resortand
refinance facilities. These assets are measured at amortized cost. Initial measurement is made at fair
value which is the transaction value. Interest income is recognized at effective interest rate. The Bank
has recognized allowances forimpairment using expected credit loss method. Allowance forinpairrent
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(iii)

loss on standing liquidity facility and repo transactions are determined at zero due to nature of
transaction. These transactions are fully secured by collateral of Nepal Government securities.

f) Other Loan and Advances

Loan and advances to others include loans to employees, pension advance, construction advance,
travelling advance, otheradvances etc. These assets are measured at amortized cost. Initialmeasurerrent
is made at fair value. Since, the loan to employees is subsidized or interest free loan, its fair value is
measured by adopting valuation technique of projected cash flow method. Fair value of otherassetsis
taken as transaction value. Interest income on loan to staff is recognized at effective interest rate. The
Bank has recognized allowances for impairment using expected credit loss method.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Financialassets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include investment in equity
instruments of other entities. The Bank has made irrevocable election at initial recognition to recognize the
changes in fairvalue through other comprehensive income. Allinvestments in equity instrument of other
entities are classified underthis heading. These investments are initially measured at fair value. The initial
fair value is the transaction value. Transaction cost, if any is recognized in the investment amount. The
subsequent measurement ofthese assets is done at fair value. The fair value is market value of particular
instrument. If market value is not available for any instruments, its fair value is determined by adopting
valuation method. The change in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Allfinancial assets otherthan measured at amortized cost and at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. Assets classifiedunder
this class are measured at fair value. Transaction cost is recognized in statement of net income. The change
in fair value is recognized to statement of net income. There is no any asset classified under this heading
during the year.

De-recognition

The Bank derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow fromthe financialassets
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
allofthe riskand rewards of the ownership ofthe financial assets are transferred or in which the Bankneither
transfer nor retains substantially all of the riskand rewards of the ownership and it does not retain controlof
the financial assets.

On de-recognition of financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion ofthe assets derecognized) and the considerationreceived (including
any newassets obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in income or expenditure. Anyinterest
in transferred financial assets that does not qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained bytheBank
is recognized as a separate assets or liability.

B. Financial liabilities

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash orto exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with anotherentity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity,acontract
that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instrument.

Recognition and Measurement

Allfinancial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the bank becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument except for Debt Securities which are initially recognized on the
date that they are issued. Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directlyattributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costsusing
effective interest rate method.

ii) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
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C. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends eitherto settlethem
on a net basis orto realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Please refer to Note 2.7 for further
details.

D. Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortized cost' ofa financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial assetorfinancial
liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between initialamount recognized and the maturityamount
minus any reduction for impairment.

E. Fair value measurement
The Bankmeasures financial instruments, such as, investment in equity instrument, at fair value at eachreporting
date. The fair values of financial instruments measured at amortized costs are disclosed in Note 5.6.4.

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount forwhich an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the assets ortransfer the liability takes place in the principal market.
Quoted market values represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquidmarket.
Where quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by othertechniques such as discounted
cash flows. Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest levelinput thatissignificant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level1l —  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3—  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

Details related to fair value hierarchy is presented in Note 5.6.5.

F.  Impairment of financial assets
The Bankrecognizes loss allowances forexpected credit loss (ECL) on the financial instruments thataremeasured
atamortized cost. Loss allowance on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensiveincome
is not recognized as this class ofassets includes investment in equity instrument only which are measuredatfair
value. The loss allowance is recognized in profit or loss.

The Bankmeasures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12 months ECL for Stage 1 financial instrurents.Stage
1financial instruments include financial assets which are not due or due forup to 30days as well as assetswhich
are in investment grade i.e. sovereign and other investment grade rated assets. Life time loss allowance is
measured on financial instrument which are classified as “Stage 2 financial instruments”. Stage 2 financial
instruments includes asset which are past due for more than 30 days but up to 90 days. Stage 2 financial
instruments also include assets which are referred to non investment grade investment. Life time ECL is also
measured for credit impaired assets which is referred to as “Stage 3 financialinstruments” A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following
observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- theassets is past due for more than 90 days or a breach of contract such as a default;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
Measurement of allowances for expected credit loss

The Bankuses "internal default experience” method for measurement of allowances forexpected credit loss.For
the financialassets on which there is no any default history, allowance for expected credit loss is measuring by
adopting "mapping to external data™ method. The mechanismofthe ECL calculations is outlined belowwiththe
key elements.
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3.2

3.3

- Exposure at Default

The Bxposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. The exposure at default
includes principalamount and interest receivable. The committed amount of investment is also included in
exposure at default.

- Probability of Default (PD)

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period. The Bankconsiders a particular obligor has
defaulted in any of following two events:

- The obligor is past due for more than 90 days, or

- The Bankconsiders that the obligor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the banking group in full,
without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realizing security if any held.

The Bankuses credit rating specific PD’s ofissuers/counterparties from S&P forallits foreign investments
amortized cost. Sovereign credit rating is used for central bank, foreign government and bank for
international settlement. PD's forlocal currency is calculated based on default history. In the absence of
default history, a floor rate for PD is used as backstop.

- Loss Given Default (LGD)

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including fromthe realization of any collateral. The Bank determines LGD
forlocalassets based on historical recovery rates. Floorrate, for financial assets without default experience,
is used as backstop.

Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering afinancial asset in its entirety ora portion thereof. This is generally the case when theBankdetermines
that the borrower does not have assets orsources of income that could generate sufficient cash flowstorepaythe
amounts subject to the write off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.Recoveries ofamounts
previously written offare included in “impairment losses on financialinstruments” in the Statement of Income
and OCI.

G. Designation at fair value through Profit or Loss
The Bankhas designated financialassets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss in either of
the following circumstances:

- The assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include notes, unrestricted balances held with banks and highly liquid financialassets with
original maturities of three months or less fromthe acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk ofchanges
in their fair value. The Bank holds Cash and Cash Equivalents for management of its short-termcommitments and it
is carried at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial Position. Allowance for expected credit loss is recognizedon
Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs principallyforthepurpose
ofselling orrepurchasing in the nearterm, orholds as part ofa portfolio that is managed together for short -temmprofit
or position taking. These assets are accounted for on trade date.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position with transactions cost recognized in statement of income. All changes in the fair valuearerecognized
as part ofthe net trading income in statement ofincome. Further, the difference in the book value of the tradingassets
and the disposal proceeds is recognized in statement of net income.
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3.6

3.7

Gold and Silwer

Gold and silverassets include papergold deposit, trading gold; and physical gold and silver held at reserve.Goldand
silver is measured at fair value. Fairvalue of papergold deposit and trading gold at initial recognition is measu red at
transaction price. Subsequently, the fair value is taken as fixing rate fromLondon Bullion and Metal Association. The
fairvalue ofgold and silver held at reserve is measured as market rate offered by Federation of Nepal Gold and Silver
Dealers Association. Transaction cost is recognized in statement of net income. The change in fair valueis recognized
in statement of net income. Revaluation gain/loss arises on gold and silver is appropriated to “Gold and Silver
Equalization Reserve” at the time appropriation of profit.

Foreign Currency Transaction
Income and expenditure denominated in foreign currency are translated into Nepalese Rupees on thebasis ofexchange
rate prevailing on the value date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated intothefunctional
currency at the rate ofexchange prevailing on that date. The foreign currency gain orloss on monetary items is the
difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year/originationdate,adjusted
foreffective interest and payment during the yearand the amortized cost in the foreign currency translated at therate
of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the rate ofexchange prevailing at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non -monetary itensthat
are measured based on historical cost in the foreign currency are translated using the rate of exchange on the dateof
transactions.

An amount equivalent to the net exchange gain/loss during the year is transferred to/from ‘Exchange Equalization
Fund’ through Statement of Appropriation.

Income tax
Income ofthe Bank is exempted from taxes under section 8 ofthe Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058 as wellas Section 10
of Income Tax Act, 2058.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipments are tangible items that:

a. are held for use in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; and
b. are expected to be used during more than one period.
i. Recognition
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipments is recognized as an asset if, and only if:
a. itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank; and
b. costofthe itemcan be measured reliably.

However, any asset having value below Rs.25,000 other than land is directly expensed to statement ofnetincome
in the year of purchase.

The cost of construction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipments is capitalized underthe
respective head of Property, Plant and Equipments only on completion of the construction work.

ii. Measurement
a. Initial Measurement

The cost ofan itemof property, plant and equipments comprises its purchase price, includinginportduties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable ofoperating
in the mannerintended by management. However, administration and other general overheadcostsarenot
be capitalized.

b. Subsequent Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipments are measured using cost model. Hence, the value of theassetsisrecognized
as cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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3.8

De-recognition

The carrying amount ofan item of property, plant and equipments is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property and equipments (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds fromdisposaland carrying
amount of the items) is recognized within other income in Statement of Net Income.

Depreciation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciable
amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Land is not
depreciated. All other property, plant and equipments are depreciated fromimmediate next month of the date
they are available foruse orin respect of self-constructed assets, fromthe date that theconstructionis cormpleted
and ready for use. Similarly, while disposing any depreciable assets, the depreciation is charged till the
immediate preceding month fromthe date of disposal.

Depreciation is charged on straight line method over the estimated useful life of current and comparativeyears
ofsignificant items of property, plant and equipments. The Bank estimates the useful life and residual valueof
the depreciable assets. Since the Bank does not have any intention to sell or dispose the items ofProperty, Plant
and Equipments before the expiry of their useful life, the residual value of allsuch assets has been considered
to be Re 1. Useful lives are reviewed on each reporting date and adjusted if required.

The estimated useful lives of the significant items of Property, Plant and Equipments are as follows:

Class of assets Estimated useful life

Building Above 33 years
Building- Temporary Structure 5 years

Office Equipment 5 years
Computer & Accessories 4 years
Fixtures and fittings 10 years
Machinery Equipments 5 years
Vehicles 4-5 years
Others 5 years

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets under Property, Plant and
Equipments to determine where there is an indication of impairment. If such indication exists (i.e. if Book
Value > Recoverable Amount), then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Net Income. Any reimbursements received fromInsurance
Companies related to the claims of the impaired assets are recognized separately as “Other Income” in the
Statement of Net Income.

Assets receivedin grant

Grant at fair value is not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the bank will comply with the
conditions attaching to themand the grant will be received. The Bank follows the alternative approach to
account forthe assets received in granti.e. it records boththe assets and the grant amount in nominal value.

Accordingly, equipments acquired under grant are recognized as " Grant Assets" at nominal valueandincluded
under respective head of property, plant and equipments.

Intangible Assets
An Intangible Asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets include
software purchased by the Bank.

Recognition
An intangible asset shall be recognized if, and only if:

a. The asset is identifiable
b. Itis probable that the economic benefits that are attributable with the item will flow to the Bank; and
c. Costof the asset can be measured reliably.
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3.10

ii. Measurement

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. The cost ofaseparately acquired intangible asset conprisesits
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deductingtradediscountsand
rebates; and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.Subsequently, theintangible
assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. Costs incurred in the
ongoing maintenance of software are expensed immediately as incurred. Subsequent cost on software is
capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it
relates.

iii.  Amortization

Software, useful life of which have been defined by terms of contract orconditions foruse are amortized on
straight line basis over the useful life of asset. Software, useful life of which have not been clearly defined by
terms of contract or condition of use as wellhave a definite useful lives due to technological obsolescenceare
amortized on straight line basis over estimated useful life of ten years and five years forbusiness application
software and other software respectively.

iv. Impairment

When there is an indication of impairment (i.e. if Book Value > Recoverable Amount), then the impairment of
such intangible asset is recognized. Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Net Income.

V. De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromitsuse
or disposal. The gain or loss arising formed-recognition of an intangible asset shall be determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, ifany, and the carrying amount ofthe asset. It shallberecognized
in Statement of Net Income on disposal.

Leases

Payments made under operating leases are accounted as per NFRS 16. At the inception of the lease, the Bank
recognizes right ofuse assets and lease liabilities. Right of use assets is measured at cost which comprisestheamount
of initialmeasurement of lease liabilities, any lease payments made at or before the commencement ofthe lease less
any incentives received, any initial direct cost incurred by the Bankand an estimated cost of dismantlingand removing
the underlying asset. The right of use assets is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right of use assets is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

Lease liability is measured at present value of lease payments that are not paid at the commencement ofthe lease. The
lease payments are discounted by incremental borrowing rate to determine the present value. The Bankdoesnot have
any borrowing during the year, so general refinance rate is taken as proxy of incremental borrowing rate of the Bank
Subsequently, the carrying amount of lease liability is increased to reflect the interest on lease liability, decreasedby
the amount of lease payments and adjusted for re-measurement of carrying amount to reflect any reassessmentorlease
modification.

The lease liability is re-measured when there is changes in future lease payments than the agreed amount or theBank
opts forthe extension of lease term. When the lease liability is re-measured, corresponding adjustment is made tothe
carrying amount ofthe right of use assets, oris recorded in income statement if the carrying amount of the rightofuse
assets has been reduced to zero.

Interest on lease liability is recognized in statement of net income. Interest amount is determined in each periodduring
the lease termat the amount that produce constant periodic rate of interest on outstanding lease liabilities. Variable
payments ifany thatis notincluded in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in statement of net income
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Investment Property
Investment property is property held eitherto earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both but notforsale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purpose.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Ateachreporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine where thereis
an indication of impairment. If such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The Bank
assesses whetherevents orchanges in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired, whetherthere
is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate
oftheasset’s recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount ofan asset exceeds its recoverable amount,theassetis
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The ‘recoverable amount’ of an assetisthegreater
ofits value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. “Value in use’ is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-taxdiscount rate that reflects current market assessnents ofthetimevalue
of money.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Net Income. Impairment loss is reversed only to the exentthatassets
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss has been recognized.

Inventories

Inventories ofthe Bankinclude gold and silver stock physically held for minting and processing purpose, coinstock,
metal and numismatic stockand dispensary stock. Inventories are initially measured at cost and it is carried at costor
net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost forgold and silveris determined on the basis of specific identification
method where as cost for other inventories is determined under the weighted average method. Other stores itensare
charged directly to Statement of Net Income.

Allowance is made for slow moving inventories. Numismatic and Medallion coins and Non-moving metals arewritten
down to zero as there is no any net realizable value of those assets in the normal course ofthe business. The loss is
recognized in Statement of Net Income. Carrying amount of inventories are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in the net realizable value below the costare recognized as
income/expenses in the Statement of Net Income.

Deposits and Borrowings

Deposits and borrowings (debt securities issued) are the source of funds ofthe Bank in addition to its reserves. The
Bank accepts interest free deposits from Government of Nepal (GON)since itacts as a banker of GON as per Nepal
Rastra Bank Act, 2058. Similarly, being the banker ofall banks, the Bankaccepts deposits fromthe banks andfinancial
institutions as well. Further, deposits fromotherinstitutions such as Public Entity, Foreign CentralBanks, Intemational
Banks and other International Organizations are also accepted by the Bank during the course of its operation. These
deposits are accounted for as Financial Liabilities.

Further, deposits and borrowings (including debts securities issued) are initially measured at fair value minus
incremental direct transaction cost and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest
method, except where the Bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

IMF Related Liabilities

IMF Related Liabilities include Special Drawing Rights (SDR) Allocation and Interest bearing loan under Rapid Credit
Facility (RCF) and Extended Credit facility (ECF). Interest needs to be paid on amount of loan provided by IMFwhere
as noany interest needs to be paid on deposit amount placed by IMF in NRB. Such liability is accounted at amortized
cost. Contractual interest rate is considered to be the effective interest rate foraccounting purposesincethereisnoany
other directly attributable cost incurred for this purpose.

The liability is derecognized when such liability is paid off or when IMF waives the right to receive the amount of
liability. Any difference in the book value and amount paid to settle the liability is recognized in Statement of Net
Income.

Currency in Circulation

Currency in circulation represents notes issued by the Bankas asole currency issuing authority in Nepal. Currency
notes issued by the Bank are legal tender under the Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058. This represents the liability of the
Bank towards the holder of the currency note. The liability for notes in circulation is recorded at face value inthe
balance sheet. These liabilities are secured by assets including foreign currency and foreign securitiesetc.as pemmitted
by Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058.

The Bankalso issues coins of various denominations for circulation. Currency in circulation liability does notinclude
the liability on account of coins in circulation, as allowed by the Act.
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3.17

3.18

3.19

The Bank offsets the cash at vault with the currency in circulation and presented the net amount of currency in
circulation as liabilities in Statement of Financial Position.

All costs incurred during circulation ofthe currency are expensed in statement of netincome. Any amount that has
been removed fromthe economy is accounted for as disposal of Financial Liabilities.

Transactions on Repurchase Obligations (Repo) and Reverse Repo
Repurchase Arrangements (Repo) and Reverse Repo of securities are recorded as follows:

a. Securities purchased under Repurchase Agreement (Repo) are recognized as loans and advances to BFIsunder
the heading of refinance and loan to banks. Interest income on Repo facility is recognized as per effectiveinterest
rate method. The difference between the purchase price and sale price is recognized as interest income overthe
tenure of the facility using effective interest rate.

b. Securities sold under Reverse Repurchase Agreement (‘Reverse Repo’) are recognized as short temmbomowings.
Interest expense on Reserve Repo is recognized as per effective interest rate method. The difference betweenthe
sale price and purchase price is recognized as interest expenses overthe tenure ofthe facility using effective
interest rate.

Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the statement of financial position.

Bills Payable and Bills Receivable

The Bank carries out the function of repayment of Government securities and interest thereon on behalf of the
Government of Nepal (GON). Bills Payable primarily represents the year end undisbursed or unadjusted amount of
payments received fromGON in respect of interest/repayment liabilities of such securities. The year-end balance of
Bills Purchased represents the amounts paid by the Bankto the security holders but the comesponding claimadjustrrent
with Bills Payable is pending.

Provisions

A provision is recognized ifas aresult ofa past event, the Bankhas a present legal or constructive obligationthatcan
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the pre-taxrate that reflects cumentmarket
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as finance cost. Where the Bank expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognizedas
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is probable to be received.

Employee Benefits
e  Short termemployee benefits

Short termemployee benefits are the benefits that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end ofthe annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services. Short term employee
benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be
paid ifthe Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a resultofpastserviceprovided
by the employees and obligation can be estimated reliably. These includes salary, overtime, various allowance,
staff Welfare etc.

e Post Employment Benefits
Post employment benefits are employee benefits that are payable after the completion of employment.
A. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays afed contribution
to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as employee benefit expenses in the Staterrentof
Net Income in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Pre-paid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future payments is
available. Contributions to adefined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months afterthe end of
the period in which the employees renderthe service are discounted at their present value. Followingarethe
defined contribution plan provided by the Bank to its employees:
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i. Contributory Retirement Fund

Allpermanent employees are entitled for participation in employee’s Provident Fund (RetirementFund)
wherein the employees contribute at various rates of their current drawn salaries. The Bank contributes
10% of basic salary (with grade) to this fund, which is separately administered as a defined contribution
plan as per Nepal Rastra Bank Staff By-Law, 2068: Rule 78, Sub-rule 1(a) & 1(c). The Bank's
obligations for contributions to the above Fund are recognized as an expense in StaterrentofNetIncorre
as the related services are rendered.

ii. Welfare Provident Fund

Certain amounts as prescribed by the Board ofthe Bankare annually transferred to this fund, which is
meant to be a defined contribution scheme forthe welfare ofthe employees, as per Nepal Rastra Bank
Staff By-Law 2068: Rule 78 Sub-rule 1(b) and 1(c). Contributions by the Bank are expensed in
Statement of Net Income as the related services are accounted.

Defined Benefits Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan otherthan a defined contribution plan. TheBank’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reportingdate
on corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Bank’s obligation and that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary usingtheprojected
unit credit method. The Bankrecognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising fromdefined benefit plans
immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income and allexpenses related to defined benefits
plans in employee benefit are expensed in Statement of Net Income.

Re-measurements ofthe net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return onplan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income. The Bank determines the net interest expenses (income)onthe
net defined liability (assets) forthe period by applying the discount rate used to measure the definedbenefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defin ed benefits liability (assets), takinginto
accountany changes in the net defined benefits liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefits payments. Net interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in personnel expenses in Statement of Net Income.

Following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Bank to its employees:
i. Gratuity and Pension Scheme

Gratuity and Pension Scheme is a defined benefit obligation under which employees having service
period of five years or more but less than twenty years are eligible for gratuity, which is based on last
pay scale of staff’s existing designation and completed years ofservice. Similarly, employees having
service period of twenty years or more are eligible for pension, which is based on last pay scakofstaff’s
existing designation and completed years of service. The Bank measures the obligation ofthis plan as
valued by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit method. Allexpenses related to definedbenefit
plans in employee benefit are expensed in Statement of Net Income.

ii. Staff Security Fund

Staff Security Fund is defined benefit plan underwhich all the permanent employees are entitledtostaff
security fund at the time of retirement, death or termination fromthe service by any other circunmstances
atthe predetermined factor prescribed by the Bank, which is based on last drawn salary and completed
years of service as per Nepal Rastra Bank Staff By -Law 2068: Rule 78 Sub-rule 1(e). Employees having
service period ofthirty years are eligible for maximumsixty three months salary. The Bank measures
the obligation of this plan as valued by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit method. All
expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit are expensed in Statement of Net Incone.
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e  Other long term employee benefits
Other long-termemployee benefits are all employee benefits other than short termemployee benefits, post-
employment benefits and termination benefits. The Bank’s net obligation in respect of long term employee
benefits is the amount of future benefits that employees earned in return for their service in the current and prior
period. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The present obligation on these liabilities is
determined by actuary adopting projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains/losses are recognized in
Statement of Net Income in the period in which they arise.

i. Leaw Encashment

As per Nepal Rastra Bank Staff By-Law, 2068: Rule 86, 87 and 91, the employees are entitled to en-cash
their un-utilized accumulated leave at the time of retirement orany other prescribed time as decided by the
management of the Bank. Home leave, Sick leave and Special Leave are defined benefit plans which are
recognized when the leave remains un-availed at the time of closing date. Provision is created for liabilityon
employees' leave based on obligation dischargeable to employees at balance sheet date.

ii. Staff Medical Fund

Employees are eligible for medical benefits based on the specified slabs as per medical rules, last drawn
salary and completed years of service, as per Nepal Rastra Bank Staff By -Law 2068: Rule 78 Sub-rule 1(d).
Incremental liability is provided forand transferred to this Fund.

e  Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee’s
employment as aresult ofeitheran entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of
employment. The termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of which the Bank can no longer withdrawnthe
offer ofthose benefits and when the Bankrecognizes costs forrestructuring. If benefits are not expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

Interest Income and Expenses

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow tothe
Bank and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Expenses are accounted on accrual basis.

Interest income/expenses is recognized in Statement of Net Income using the effective interest method when itis
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Bankand the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discount estimated future cash receipt or payment throughexpected
life of the financial instrument or where appropriate ashorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
and liability. While calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instruments but excluding future credit losses. The calculation includes all amount paid or
received by the Bankthat are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate of the financial instrument, including the
transaction costs and other premium or discounts.

Interest income on stage 1and stage 2 financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognized on gross carrying
amount. Interest income on stage 3 financial assets is recognized on net carrying amount.

Interest income on investments fromcertain banks and financial institutions which are declared as problematic and
receipt of interest fromwhich is not forthcoming are not recognized.

Non Interest Income

i.  Fees and Commission income
Fees and commission income is earned for currency exchange and government transactions and other services.
These are measured on accrual basis.

ii. Nettrading income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities and includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes.

iii. Netincome from financial instruments designated at fair value
Allgains and losses fromthe changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
are recognized through Net Income. Interest income and expenses and dividend income arising onthesefinancial
instruments are also included, except forinterest arising fromdebt securities issued by the Bank, andderivatives
managed in conjunction with those debt securities which is recognized in Interest expense.

9%9
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3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

Net income fromotherfinancial instruments at fair value through profit and loss related to non-trading derivatives
held forrisk management purposes that do not formpart ofthe qualifying hedge relationships are recognized
through statement of net income. It includes realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividend and
foreign exchange differences.

iv.  Other Income and Expenses
Otherincome and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis. The following incomes are recognized basedon
the recognition criteria explained here under.

« Balances unclaimed and outstanding for more than three clear consecutive accounting years in unclaimed
account is written back to income.

« Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive income is established.
« Penal income is accounted on cash basis.
» Profit/loss fromsale of precious metal and coins are recognized when the sale is made.

« Grant income is not recognized until there is reasonable certainty that the entity will comply with the
conditions attaching to it, and that the grant will be received. Grant that becomes receivable asconpensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or forthe purpose of giving immediate financial support with no
future related costs is recognized in statement of net income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

Gains and losses arising fromincidental activities to the main revenue generating activities and those arising
fromagroup of similartransactions which are not material are aggregated, reported and presented onanetbasis.

Note Printing Expenses

The Bank procures note printing service fromnote printing service providers outside fromthe country. Note printing
expenses include cost of printing notes and cost incurred to bring note to our premises. These costs include
transportation cost, transit insurance and loading/unloading expenses. Note printing expenses is recognized in
statement of net income at the time of receipt of the notes by the Bank.

Unclaimed Account

Unclaimed account under Sundry Liabilities represents amount that remained unclaimed and outstanding for more
than two years. Amount outstanding for more than three years in unclaimed account is transferred to miscellaneous
income in Statement of Net Income.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or
present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. All
outstanding letter of credit issued, capital commitments, litigation amount and unclaimed amount recognized as
income, which are not recognized as liabilities in Statement of Financial Position, are shown unde r respectiveheadings
disclosed as Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments items. Where applicable, such amounts are measuredat
best estimates.

Consolidation of Project Accounts

The Bank manages and implements various projects, which are helpful in attaining its objectives, on its own by
entering into project agreement with the funding agencies or subsidiary loan agreements with Government of Nepal
or on behalf of Government of Nepal (GON).

The projects forwhich the Bank has entered into separate subsidiary loan agreements with Government of Nepal or
has entered into separate project agreements with other funding agencies are consolidated with the Bank's account.
For projects which are implemented by the Bank on behalf of the GON, the accounts of these projects are not
consolidated with the Bank’s financial statements as the Bank has no obligation towards such projects orany other
counter party and there is no right ofthe Bank in assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses of such projects.
Disclosure of such projects is given in the notes.

Bwents Occurring after the Reporting Date
Allmaterial subsequent events afterthe reporting date have been considered and where appropriate adjustmentsor
disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the Financial Statements.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Cash and balances with banks

Foreign currency cash in hand

Balances with other central banks

Balances with foreign banks

Money at overnight placements with other central banks

Interest receivable
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total cash and balance with banks

IMF related assets

Special drawing right holding
Interest receivable
Less: Allowances for exprected credit loss

Total IMF related assets

Details disclosure regarding the financial position on IMF is provided in Note 5.14

Term deposit with foreign banks

Term deposit with maturity of 3 months or less
Term deposit with maturity of more than 3 months
Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total term deposit with banks

Investment in foreign securities

Investment measured at amortised cost

Treasury bills

Treasury Notes

Mid Term Instruments (MTI)

Coupon bonds

Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss
Investment measured at fair value through OCI

Treasury bills

Treasury Notes

Coupon bonds

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss
Investment measured at fair value through profit or loss

Treasury bills
Treasury Notes
Coupon securities
Coupon bonds

Total investment in securities

¥

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

23,999,547,422
100,360,702,752
71,165,317,087

23,678,678
(26,630,495)

25,243,089,889
51,280,897,155
55,123,027,468

35,000,282
(23,637,765)

195,522,615,444

131,658,377,029

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
23,405,205,370 23,791,069,016
146,908,474 200,734,132

23,552,113,844

23,991,803,148

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

274,000,000

558,266,487,853

3,720,024,798
(483,294,192)

43,819,360,000

551,169,998,743

3,975,886,250
(456,767,567)

561,777,218,459

598,508,477,426

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

788,813,338,556
611,778,943,853
164,166,295,695
95,421,600,620
8,892,112,518

(796,269,691)

473,540,602,653
425,622,066,365
126,282,230,415
96,453,226,913
6,425,308,468

(581,560,448)

1,668,276,021,551

1,127,741,874,366
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Other receivables

Receivable from Asian Clearing Union
Other receivable
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total interest and other receivable

Investment in Gold Certificates

Investment in paper gold
Trading gold
Interest receivable on paper gold

Total investment in gold certificates

Details disclosure regarding the investment in gold is provided in Note 5.1

Investment in Government securities

Investment in treasury bills

Investment in bond

Investment in Government bond issued for IMF related liabiliities
Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total investment in Government securities

Investment in bonds & term deposit

Investment in corporate bonds

Term deposit with Bank and Financial Institutions
Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total fixed deposit with Bank and Financial Institutions

Advances and receivables from Government

Overdraft provided to Government

Advance payment to Government

Receivable from Government - IMF Bond

Advance to project/fund operated by Government
Interest Receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total advance to Government

q40

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

117,904,935,071

288,594,240

82,431,302,171

891,131,047

118,193,529,311

83,322,433,218

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

245,398,000
11,781,247,570
3,023,415,618
135,209,121

20,362,590,200
2,438,302,023
246,260,755

15,185,270,309

23,047,152,978

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

6,789,800,000
59,180,047
(26,464,187)

7,284,800,000
122,829,432
(26,539,606)

6,822,515,860

7,381,089,826

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
- 1 ,460,000,(;00
260,548,220 262,837,718
. 223,820,5-60
260,548,2-20 1,946,658,2-78
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Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Standing liquidity facility

Refinance

Lender of last resort

Securities purchased under repurchase agreement
Other loans to BFls

Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Other loan and advances

Staff loans

Less: Amortization

Pension advance

Travelling advances to staff

Advance for construction

Staff endowment policy advance

Other advance

Interest receivable

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
118,247,542 118,423,040
g 26,553

(15,963) (15,992)
118,231,579 118,433,601
32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081

Total other loan and advances

11,224,100,867
(3,598,818,384)
1,440,611,864
12,670,020
13,640,139
4,659,850
45,508,067
2,355,769

11,257,077,314

(3,580,874,113)
1,652,831,031
5,062,201
14,950,303
5,854,850
42,140,288
2,699,983

Equity investment

9,144,728,192

9,399,741,857

Investment in equity instruments measured at fair value
through OCI

Cost price

Fair Value Changes

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Total equity investment

652,218,050
4,353,518,022

642,480,250
3,660,326,514

Details disclosure regarding the equity investment is provided in Note 5.6.5

Other receivables

5,005,736,072

4,302,806,764

Dividend receivable

Sundry debtors

Deposits

Other receivables

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total interest and other receivables

949

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
1,361,463 1,360,679
8,418,033 7,960,194

(7,715,968) (7,575,406)
2,063,528 1,745,467
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Nepal Rastra Bank
Notes to the financial statements
As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Gold and silver assets 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Gold held in reserve at cost 27,351,269 27,351,269
Silver held in reserve at cost 20,406,443 20,406,443

Changes in fair value 55,368,816,463 43,955,763,597

Total gold and silver assets 55,416,574,175 44,003,521,309

Details disclosure regarding the gold and silver assets is provided in Note 5.1

Current year Income available for distribution

Inventories 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Gold stock 1,653,930,869 1,092,816,617
Silver stock 90,358,947 81,897,402
Coin stock 172,971,329 270,083,340
Numismatic stock 3,778,067 3,778,067
Other metal stock 31,285,014 31,752,520
Dispensary stock 1,164,901 660,805

Gross inventories

1,953,489,127

1,480,988,751

Less: Write down of inventories to net realizable value

Coin stock
Other metal stock

(22,465,540)
(8,716,000)

(22,465,540)
(8,716,000)

Net inventories

1,922,307,587

1,449,807,211

4R
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4.18

Intangible Assets

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements
As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Please refer accounting policies in Notes 3.8. The details of balance are as follows:

Computer Software

¢ Usef ul Life . : Total Intangible
Particulars Defined by Other Useful Life Capital Work in Adsots
Contractual Progress
Agreements
Amortisation Rate 20% 10%

_ Balance as on 1st Sawan 2080 20,065,540 43,365,821 243,872,285 - 307,303,646

.E + |Addition during the Year 8,894,230 1,049,202 275,000 10,218,432

2 S |Disposal/Write Off/Adjustment - -

o Balance as on 31st Asar 2081 28,959,770 44,415,023 244,147,285 - 317,522,078
@ ofBalance as on 1st Sawan 2080 6,314,730 20,076,414 233,668,452 - 260,059,596
= E Depreciation for the Year 6,032,881 6,319,158 1,480,122 g 13,832,161
g t“; Disposal/Write Off/Adjustment 300,000 300,000
E’ - E Balance as on 31st Asar 2081 12,347,611 26,695,572 235,148,574 - 274,191,757

Net Book Value as on 31st Asar 2081 16,612,159 17,719,451 8,998,711 - 43,330,321

o Balance as on 1st Sawan 2081 28,959,770 44,415,023 244,147,285 317,522,078

2 4 [Addition during the Year 2,260,000 1,324,360 - 3,584,360

2 8 [Disposal/Write Off/Adjustment (7,845,815) - -

o Balance as on 32nd Asar 2082 23,373,955 45,739,383 244,147,285 - 321,106,438
v S|Balance as on 1st Sawan 2081 12,347,611 26,695,572 235,148,574 274,191,757
-‘g § Depreciation for the Year 3,881,891 6,253,982 1,487,208 11,623,081
g ‘g Disposal/Write Off/Adjustment (7,845,810) - - (7,845,810)
;d - E« Balance as on 32nd Asar 2082 8,383,692 32,949,554 236,635,782 - 277,969,028

Net Book Value as on 32nd Asar 2082 14,990,263 12,789,829 7,511,503 - 35,291,595
Other Assets

Particulars 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Deferred Employees Benefits 3,598,818,384 3,580,874,113
Project Assets = -
Prepaid expense 88,283,864 82,112,112
Other Assets
Total 3,687,102,248 3,662,986,225

¥
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4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Foreign Currency
Deposit of commercial banks

10,435,799,865

12,847,372,512

Deposit of development banks 57,787,555 21,482,583
Deposit of finance companies -
Deposit of microfinance financial institutions - -
Total foreign currency deposit 10,493,587,420 12,868,855,095

Local Currency
Deposit of commercial banks
Deposit of development banks
Deposit of finance companies
Deposit of microfinance financial institutions

353,411,871,330

26,061,323,480
6,362,021,232
2,800,336,398

259,450,328,603
23,529,331,854
5,548,059,069
2,190,549,872

Total local currency deposit

388,635,552,440

290,718,269,398

Total deposit of bank and financial institutions

IMF related liabilities

399,129,139,860

32 Asar 2082

303,587,124,493

31 Asar 2081

Foreign Currency

Special Drawing Right allocation
Interest bearing loans

Interest payable

40,980,517,183

257,224,193

38,627,474,746

325,914,569

Total foreign currency IMF related liabilities

41,237,741,376

38,953,389,315

Local Currency
IMF account no.1

12,461,652,312

11,855,996,232

IMF account no.2 3,163,724 3,009,977
Total local currency IMF related liabilities 12,464,816,036 11,859,006,209
Total IMF related liabilities 53,702,557,412 50,812,395,524

Details disclosure regarding the financial position on IMF is provided in Note 5.14

Deposit of Government

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Deposit of Central Government
Deposit of Province Government
Deposit of Local Authorities

(69,863,090,776)
56,884,247,107
83,815,942,843

(99,491,721,176)
69,227,910,373
94,217,201,812

Total deposit of Government

70,837,099,174

63,953,391,009

Deposit of other institutions

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Deposit of public enterprises

Deposit of Government for Interest Subsidy & Subsidies
Loan

LC margin deposit

Deposit of other organisations

2,554,758,886
2,023,587,721

5,986,549,456
1,937,159,193

2,249,194,159
8,811,688,206

8,445,825,910
556,487,795

Total deposit of other institutions

12,502,055,256

20,063,196,070

Currency in Circulation

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Currency Issued (Denomination)
1
2
5
10
20
25

44

160,974,635
185,078,660
3,762,508,930
5,845,712,010
7,678,744,540
57,020,075

160,997,039
185,151,436
3,640,451,885
5,867,673,450
7,524,263,040
57,047,200
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4.23.1

4.24

4.25

4.26

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

50 13,611,079,400 14,685,951,900
100 31,413,289,000 30,394,594,800
250 87,421,250 87,423,250
500 165,135,885,500 130,670,884,000
1000 533,472,286,000 446,805,562,000
Gross Amount of Currency in Circulation 761,410,000,000 690,150,000,000
Less: Cash at Vault of the Bank (11,297,577,846) (10,101,197,299)
Net Amount of Currency in Circulation 750,112,422,154 680,048,802,701

Reserve against currency in circulation

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Foreign Treasury Bills
Foreign Bank Balance (Including Term Deposits)

750,112,422,154

473,540,602,653
206,508,200,048

Total

750,112,422,154

680,048,802,701

Due to bank and financial institutions

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Holding of NRB bond issued
Deposit collection

Reverse repo liabilities
Standing Deposit Facility

377,450,000,000

276,600,000,000

950,000,000

354,500,000,000

Total due to bank and finanical institutions

654,050,000,000

355,450,000,000

Other liabilities

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Payable to Asian Clearing Union 178,096,167 130,217,162
Deposit & Earnest money 46,834,350 24,753,000
Unclaimed account 54,064,405 57,360,703
Unclaimed Deposit of Bank and Financial Institutions 49,019,517 24,119,003
Lease liabilities 68,016,924 93,310,222
Loan from Government for project operation - -
Provision for expense 86,315,071 2,765,845
Taxes payable 73,267,947 41,786,447
Payable to retired staff 324,807,634 334,754,908
Other liabilities 1,146,603,524 883,520,028
Total other liabilities 2,027,025,539 1,592,587,318

Pension and other employment benefits payable

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Pension and gratuity fund

Less: Plan Assets for pension and gratuity fund
Staff security fund

Less: Plan Assets for staff security fund

Leave encashment

Staff medical fund

Welfare Provident fund

24,368,286,017
(19,341,500,033)
3,157,721,143
(2,133,000,447)
1,742,473,465
2,123,902,027
880,789,315

20,674,784,248
(19,764,593,229)
2,810,347,436
(2,245,050,687)
1,404,336,645
1,628,982,456
854,383,075

Total pension and other employment benefit payable

10,798,671,487

5,363,189,944
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4.27

4.27 (a)

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

As at 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Reserve

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

General Reserve

Monetary Liabilities Reserve
Financial Stability Fund

Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund
Exchange Equalization Fund

Gold and Silver Equalization Reserve
Net Cumulative Surplus Fund
Development Fund

Banking Development Fund
Mechanisation Fund

Scholarship Fund

Mint Development Fund

Gold Replacement Fund

Rural Self Reliance Fund

Rural Self Reliance Fund (Administration Expense

Reimbursement Fund)

Actuarial Gain Reserve

Fair Value Reserve

Impact on Retained Earning due to ECL & Lease

103,645,754,705
22,906,904,338
19,709,390,340
23,337,077,181
266,843 ,486,049
139,249,215,401
3,971,688,506
77,595,989,244
1,601,941,806
1,891,316,414
61,594,504
1,097,712,943
5,606,163,443
253,400,000
50,912,107

(1,149,741,717)
4,353,518,021

87,394,781,104
18,882,771,816
15,685,257,818
12,863,593,549
221,813,526,867
92,362,529,636
2,169,130,410
76,595,989,244
1,601,941,806
1,891,316,414
61,594,504
1,097,712,943
4,799,085,589
253,400,000
51,087,606

2,634,091,770
3,660,326,514

Total Reserves

671,026,323,285

543,818,137,590

Appropriation of Net Profit/(Loss)

Particulars

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Net Income/(Expenditure) for the year
Less:

Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) - Unrealised
Net Gold and Silver Revaluation Gain/(Loss)
Transfer to Fair Value Reserve

Transfer to Actuarial Reserve

169,308,653,409

(45,029,959,182)

(46,886,685,765)

(693,191,508)
3,783,833,487

116,090,816,163

(14,995,429,467)
(26,596,033,683)
(635,186,270)
(101,846,034)

Current year Income available for distribution

80,482,650,441

73,762,320,709

Transfer from Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund

9,026,516,368

2,088,750,238

Surplus before appropriations

89,509,166,809

75,851,070,947

Less: Appropriations

General Reserve

Monetary Liability Reserve

Financial Stability Fund

Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund
Mint Development Fund

Mechanisation Fund

Banking Development Fund

Development Fund

Development Finance Project Mobilisation Fund
Gold Replacement Fund

Net Cumulative Surplus Fund

(16,250,973,601)
(4,024,132,522)
(4,024,132,522)

(19,500,000,000)

(1,000,000,000)

(807,077,854)
(1,902,850,310)

(11,274,655,157)
(3,688,116,035)
(3,688,116,035)

(12,755,571,674)

(6,000,000,000)

(1,091,153,478)
(129,638,007)

Balance Payable to Government of Nepal

42,000,000,000

37,223,820,561
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4.28

4.29

4.30

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Interest income on foreign currency financial
assets

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Interest income on term/demand deposit
Interest income on Foreign Securities
Interest income on fixed income securities

29,709,614,495
62,039,115,830
3,539,921,690

34,189,325,627
41,499,583,052
3,009,534,429

Interest income on SDR holdings 878,569,404 1,086,777,007
Other FCY interest income -
Total 96,167,221,419 79,785,220,115
Interest expense on foreign currency financial
liabilities 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081

Interest on SDR Allocation
Interest on interest bearing loans

1,328,096,568

1,578,272,946

40,726,734

Other interest expense 24,448,929
Total 1,352,545,497 1,618,999,680
Interest income on local currency financial assets

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Interest income on Treasury Bills 19,527,486 950,733,324
Interest income on Government bonds 925,940,294 1,247,100,940
Interest income on Refinance - 38,235,619
Interest income on Standing Liquidity Facility and 748,110
Repo
Other LCY interest income 681,898,478 1,099,527,672
Total 1,627,366,258 3,336,345,665
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4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Interest expense on local currency financial
liabilities

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Interest expense on Deposit Collection

5,155,464,319

1,186,248,874

Interest expense on Reverse Repo - 25,564,380
Interest expense on SDF 3,871,052,049 876,936,984
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 4,094,353 5,076,838
Other interest expense 101,723,566 92,206,976
Total 9,132,334,287 2,186,034,052
Fee and commission income 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Commission Income 5,213,115 109,794,706
Letter of credit commission 817,448 719,973
RTGS fee 12,132,308 10,199,844
Total 18,162,871 120,714,523
Income on Gold Certificates 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Income on Paper Gold 537,156,642 422,354,601
Gain or loss on revaluation of trading gold -

Total 537,156,642 422,354,601
Other income 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Income from Mint (Sale of Coin) 8,989 11,754
Gain from Sale of Precious Metals and Coins 269,921,211 668,798,876
Provisions written back 435,500 3,094,112
Fine/Penalty Charge 154,251,557 33,569,234
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Investment Securities - -
Profit/loss on Sale of Assets 4,029,006 8,014,435
Dividend Income 82,940,200 70,973,442
Project Income/(Loss) -

Grant Income - -
Miscellaneous income 485,486,172 136,204,055
Total Other Income 997,072,635 920,665,908
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4.35

4.36

4.37

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 32 Asar 2082
(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Fee and commission expense 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Agency commission and service charges 61,268,732 91,273,169
Other fee and commission expense - 1,171,000
Total 61,268,732 92,444,169
Allowance for ECL (loss)/gain on financial assets

32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Cash & Bank Balance (2,993,032) (4,882,970)
Investment in Securities (214,709,242) (279,927,987)
Term Deposit (26,451,205) 98,147,556
Loans and advances to BFls 28 209,222
Other Receivables (140,562) 601,302
Total (244,294,013) (185,852,877)
The details of movement and stagewise information on allowance for expected credit loss/gain is further disclused in note no.
5.6.1.2
Personnel expenses 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Salary 894,454,693 872,921,802
Allowances 1,082,426,058 1,046,533,648
Provident Fund Contribution 89,523,313 87,292,180
Staff Welfare Provident Fund Contribution 860,360,607 838,171,636
Pension & Gratuity Expense 481,309,569 335,718,660
Staff Security Expense 209,142,289 124,886,214
Staff Leave Compensation 493,848,189 229,012,600
Staff Medical Fund Contribution 655,151,572 97,919,671
Amortisation of deferred employees benefits 267,716,318 213,747,501
Others 29,429,299 26,831,069
Total 5,063,361,907 3,873,034,981
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4.38

4.39

Nepal Rastra Bank

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 32 Asar 2082

(all amounts in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Administrative expenses 32 Asar 2082 31 Asar 2081
Directors Fees and Expenses 9,433,127 8,469,162
Mint Expenses 166,874 229,119,535
Security charges 306,719,464 284,677,123
Fund Transfer Expense 50,839,078 37,631,575
Travelling Expenses 354,793,338 420,579,044
Insurance Charges 105,199,475 107,431,965
Repair & Maintenance 66,921,078 46,846,747
Banking Promotion 88,803,621 113,453,856
Audit Fees and Expenses 5,122,386 4,782,945
Utilities Expenses 68,668,357 68,187,976
Postal and Communication Expenses 27,677,843 21,905,615
House Rent 22,705,156 6,808,415
Training Seminar and Membership 45,957,623 34,884,917
Expenses on Miscellaneous Assets 17,290,637 10,938,545
Consumable Expenses 25,614,696 20,119,756
Books and Periodicals 13,591,425 13,404,873
Software Annual Maintenance Charges 137,227,601 118,351,956
Meeting Fee and Expense 41,779,487 48,731,202
Advertisement 8,547,123 9,585,335
Wages 108,702,905 95,707,153
Miscellaneous Expenses 156,926,254 114,137,289
Total 1,662,687,548 1,815,754,984

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

32 Asar 2082

31 Asar 2081

Depreciation on Property & Equipment 446,377,370 326,792,907
Impairment of Property & Equipment 1,560,618 2,470,755
Amortisation of intangible assets 11,623,080 13,832,163
Impairment of intangible assets - -
Depreciation on Right of Use Assets 25,613,001 39,620,298
Total 485,174,069 382,716,123
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5.2.

Significant Disclosures
Gold and Silver

The Bankhas been holding gold and silver forreserve purpose as wellas for minting purpose. The gold andsilver held
forreserve purpose, being the financial assets, has been measured at fair value and the gold and silver held forminting
purpose, being the inventories of the Bank, has been measured at lower of cost or net realizable value.

The gold and silver measured at fair value along with its quantity is as follows:

Particulars As on 32" Asar 2082 As on 31t Asar 2081
Weight (Kg) | Total Fair Value (NRs.) | Weight (Kg) | Total Fair Value (NRs.)
Investmentin Paper Gold 7,280.53 117,904,935,071 7,280.53 82,431,302,171
Trading gold - - - -
Gold held in reserve 1,953.66 32,159,231,828 1,953.66 24,605,397,318
Silver held in reserve 120,037.90 23,257,342,347 120,037.90 19,398,123,991
Total 173,321,509,246 126,434,823,480

Fair value for investment in papergold; and gold and silver held at reserve is determined based on the closing rate
prevailing in London Bullion and Metal Association; and Nepal Gold & Silver Dealer’s Association respectively.For
gold physically held with the Bank, the rate for Fine Gold (9999) has been considered for the purpose of fair value.

Mint Division ofthe Bank has held gold and silver for minting purpose and is treated as inventories kept for further
processing & minting. The inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realizable value. The gold and silver held
by the Bank as inventories which is measured at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower is as follows:

. As on 32 Asar 2082 As on 31t Asar 2081
Particulars - -
Weight (Kg) Value (NRs.) Weight (Kg) Value (NRs.)
Gold held in Stock 347.62 1,653,930,869 306.1465 1,092,816,617
Silver held in Stock 3505.89 90,358,947 3,660.35 81,897,402
Total 1,744,289,816 1,174,714,019

Year-end Exchange Rates

The year-end exchange rates of Nepalese Rupees formajor currencies used for reinstating the balances of foreign

currency assets and liabilities were as per below:

S.N. Currency Current Year (2081/82) Previous Year (2080/81)
1 US Dollar 137.00 133.36
2 UK Pound Sterling 184.19 173.29
3 Euro 159.91 145.46
4 Swiss Franc 171.93 149.14
5 | Australian Dollar 89.90 90.47
6 Canadian Dollar 100.08 97.82
7 Singapore Dollar 106.90 99.45
8 Japanese Yen 0.926 0.845
9 Chinese Yuan 19.10 18.39
10 | Saudi Arabian Riyal 36.53 35.56
11 | Qatari Riyal 37.59 36.57
12 | Thai Baht 4.22 3.69
13 | UAE Dirham 37.30 36.31
14 | Malaysian Ringgit 32.30 28.56
15 | South Korean Won 0.0993 0.097
16 | Swedish Kroner 14.20 12.71
17 | Danish Kroner 21.43 19.49
18 | Hong Kong Dollar 17.45 17.08
19 | Kuwait Dinar 448.40 436.39
20 | Bahrain Dinar 363.40 353.74
21 [SDR 187.57 176.8
22 | Indian Rupees 1.6 1.6
23 | Omani Rial 355.83 -
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5.3. Related Parties Disclosure
5.31. Key Management Personnel

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including the board members. The key management
personnel of the Bank include members of its Board of Directors and Special Class Officers (Executive Directors).

The key management personnel who are holding various positions in the Bank during the year are as follows:

S.N. Name Post Date Remarks
1 |Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel Governor 2082.02.06
2 |Mr. MahaPrasad Adhikari Governor 2076.12.24 | Discharge position w.e.f2081.12.24
3 [Mr. Madhu Kumar Marasini Finance Secretary | 2081.01.12 | Discharge position w.e.f2081.04.14
4 | Dr. Ram Prasad Ghimire Finance Secretary | 2081.04.17 | Discharge position w.e.f2081.10.28
5 |Dr. GhanshyamUpadhyaya Finance Secretary | 2081.11.01
6 |Dr. Neelam Dhungana (Timsina)| Deputy Governor | 2077.11.25
7 | Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra Deputy Governor | 2077.11.25
8 |Mr. Chinta Mani Siwakoti Board Member 2079.02.06
9 |Dr. ShankarPrasad Acharya Board Member 2079.02.06
10 |Dr. RavindraPrasad Pandey Board Member 2080.01.26
11 |Rishikesh Bhatta BExecutive Director | 2075.05.12
12 |PradeeprajPoudyal Executive Director | 2075.06.18
13 |Gunakar Bhatta Executive Director | 2075.07.06
14 | Naresh Shakya Executive Director | 2076.02.30
15 |RevatiPrasad Nepal Executive Director | 2076.10.13
16 |Ramu Paudel BExecutive Director | 2077.01.12
17 |Vishrut Thapa Executive Director | 2077.01.12
18 | Dayaram Sharma Executive Director | 2078.06.19
19 |Guru Prasad Paudel BExecutive Director | 2078.09.23
20 |Bimal Raj Khanal Bxecutive Director | 2078.12.01
21 |Kiran Pandit BExecutive Director | 2081.11.01
22 |Satyendra Timilsina Executive Director | 2081.12.04
23 | ChetPrasad Uprety Executive Director | 2081.12.31
24 | Roshan Kumar Shigdel Executive Director | 2081.12.31
25 |Ram Sharan Kharel Executive Director | 2081.12.31
26 |Dilli Ram Pokhrel Executive Director | 2082.02.13
27 |Dirgha Bahadur Rawal Executive Director | 2082.02.19
28 |Nishchal Adhikari BExecutive Director | 2082.03.27
29 |Dev Kumar Dhakal Executive Director | 2074.12.15 | Discharge position w.e.f. 2081.08.06
30 |Nephil Matangi Maskay Executive Director | 2074.10.25 | Discharge position w.e.f.2081.10.25
31 |Ram BahadurManandhar Executive Director | 2077.01.12 | Discharge position w.e.f.2081.12.02
32 | Suman Kumar Adhikari Executive Director | 2076.03.11 [ Discharge position w.e.f.2081.12.24
33 |Mukunda Kumar Chhetri Executive Director | 2074.12.28 | Discharge position w.e.f.2081.12.28
34 | Pitambar Bhandari Executive Director | 2074.12.28 | Discharge position w.e.f. 2081.12.28
35 |Prakash Kumar Shrestha Executive Director | 2076.03.11 | Discharge position w.e.f. 2082.02.10
36 |TulashiPrasad Ghimire BExecutive Director | 2078.06.19 | Discharge position w.e.f. 2082.02.17
37 |Ram Prasad Gautam Executive Director | 2081.08.16 | Discharge position w.e.f.2082.03.25

The transactions, if any, with director-related or key management personnel-related entities occurred in the normal
course of the Bank's operations were conducted as arm's length transactions.

i. Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to salaries, non-cash benefits (\Vehicle Facility) were provided to special class officers and the executive

board members. Furthermore, Governorand Deputy Governors are also entitled to post employee benefits. The data
relating to total compensation paid to key management personnel are as follows:

Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)

Short term employee benefits 123,613,219 94,829,399
Post-employment and other long termbenefits 146,977,767 5,140,976
Total 270,590,986 99,970,375
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532.

Othertransactions with the Key Management Personneland the status of yearend balances with themare presented

below:
Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Meeting Fees/Incidental Expenses to Directors 19,025,210 18,513,579
Loan Facilities 173,435,000 167,399,000
Total 192,460,210 185,912,579

Salary, Benefits and Other Facilities of Board Members

Members ofthe Bank's board are entitled to a meeting allowance of NRs. 9,000 per meeting. Additionally, executive
board members receive a salary along with various allowances. All board members are also entitled to benefits
including fuel, vehicle repair, telephone, newspaper, internet, driver services, and medical facilities. The details of
salaries, benefits, and other facilities provided to both executive and non -executive board members for the fis calyear

2081/82 are presented below:

Amountin NRs.

Board Other
S.N. Name Post Salary Meeting Allowances &
Allowance Facilities

1 | Prof. Dr. Biswo Nath Poudel Governor 250,065 117,000 316,538
2 | Mr. MahaPrasad Adhikari Governor 1,188,903 288,000 4,110,403
3 | Mr. Madhu Kumar Marasini Finance Secretary - 36,000 42,548
4 | Dr. Ram Prasad Ghimire Finance Secretary - 162,000 189,532
5 | Dr. GhanshyamUpadhyaya Finance Secretary - 225,000 116,040
6 | Dr. Neelam Dhungana (Timsina) Deputy Governor 1,460,400 369,000 4,608,731
7 | Mr. Bam Bahadur Mishra Deputy Governor 1,460,400 378,000 4,347,739
8 | Mr. Chinta Mani Siwakoti Board Member - 432,000 819,280
9 | Dr. ShankarPrasad Acharya Board Member - 369,000 813,120
10 | Dr. RavindraPrasad Pandey Board Member 414,000 871,280

TOTAL 4,359,768 2,790,000 16,235,210

Government of Nepal

The Bank, being the Central Bank of Nepal, was incorporated under Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2012 (currently replaced
by Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058) and the Government of Nepal (GON) s the controlling body of the Bank holding

100% of its capital.
Transactions with Government of Nepal

The transaction with GON and the status of year end balances with GON are as follows:

Particulars Current Year (NRs.) Previous Year (NRs.)
Transactions during the year
Commission Income received from GON - 105,997,589
e o A
Adjustmentof Receivable fromSurplus Payable ) )
to GON
Balances at the year end
Deposit fromGON 70,837,099,174 63,953,391,009
Advance to GON for Business Continuity Loan - 1,460,000,000
Investmentin Treasury Bills (GON) 245,398,000 -
Investmentin Bonds (GON) 11,795,993,188 18,887,992,223
Investmentin Saving Certificates (GON) 3,008,670,000 3,912,900,000
Interest and Commission Receivable 135,209,121 465,260,755
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54.

5.5.

5.6.

56.1.

Government of Nepal Treasury Position

Balance of Government of Nepal as of 32" Asar 2082 as per the records of the Bank is a surplus balance of NRs.
70,837,099,174 (PY NRs. 63,953,391,009). The Government transactions are being verified by the Comptroller
General’s Office of GON on regular interval.

Inter-Office Transactions

There is no any net balance at the end of the year on inter-office transactions.

Assets Received in Grant

The various assets received as grants underthe Financial Sector Restructuring Project (Phase land Phase I1) were
valued at NRs. 11,585,586, with a written-down balance of NRs. 7 (PY NRs. 7) at the end of the fiscal year. With the
technicaland financial assistance of the Department for International Development (DFID), a Disaster RecoverySite
was established in Biratnagar, valued at approximately NRs. 232,059,005 (comprising NRs. 89,344,232, USD
240,463, and GBP 646,544), which also had a written-down balance of NRs. 16 (PY NRs. 16) at year-end.
Additionally, under the auspices of the Financial, Commonwealth &

Development Office ofthe UK, the development of the Supervisory Information System(SIS) had been successfully
completed and handed over. The associated computer hardware and software for this systemwere valued at NRs.
141,820,115 with a written-down balance of NRs. 26 (PY NRs. 26) at the end of the fiscal year.

Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management— Overview

Risk Management Framework

The Bank's Board of Directors has the overallresponsibility for the establishment and oversight ofthe Bank’s Risk
Management Framework. The Board of Directors has formed the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible
fordeveloping and monitoring the Bank's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of
Directors about its activities.

The Bank's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the Bank, setappropriate
risk limits and control, and monitor risks and adherence to the limit. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect the changes in market conditions and the Bank's activities. The Bank through itstraining
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop adisciplined and constructive controlenvironment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank’s Audit Committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Bank’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management frameworkin relation to the risks facedby
the Bank. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit Department. Internal Audit
Department undertakes both regularand ad hoc review of risk management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Bank has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:
A. Credit Risk

B. Liquidity Risk

C. Market Risk

Credit Risk

Credit riskiis the risk of financial loss to a party ifa customer or counterparty to a financial instruments fails to meet
its contractual obligation. The Bank's credit risk in relation to the financial instruments is the risk that its customeror
counterparty fails to discharge its obligation in accordance with agreed terms and cause the Bankto incura financial
loss. The Bank's credit riskarises principally fromthe Bank's investment securities and receivable fromcustomers.
The credit riskin the Bank's foreign exchange reserve is monitored and reviewed by using credit limits basedoncredit
ratings by international rating agency.
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561.1.

Exposure to Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the year end is as follows:

a) By Nature of Assets

Amountin NRs.

Particulars As on 32.03.2082 As on 31.03.2081
Foreign currency financial assets
Cash and balances with banks 195,522,615,444 131,658,377,029
Derivative financial assets - -
IMF related assets 23,552,113,844 23,991,803,148
Term deposit with foreign banks 561,777,218,459 598,508,477,426
Investments in foreign securities 1,668,276,021,551 1,127,741,874,366

Otherreceivables

Total foreign currencyfinancial assets

2,449,127,969,298

1,881,900,531,969

Local currencyfinancial assets

Balances with Banks 8,394,919 6,144,630
Investmentin Government securities 15,185,270,309 23,047,152,978
Investmentin bonds & termdeposit 6,822,515,860 7,381,089,826
Advances and receivable fromGovernment 260,548,220 1,946,658,278
Loan and advancesto bankand financial institutions 118,231,579 118,433,601
Otherloan and advances 9,144,728,193 9,399,741,857
Equity investment 5,005,736,072 4,302,806,764
Otherreceivables 2,063,527 1,745,467
Total local currency financial assets 36,547,488,679 46,203,773,401
Total financial assets 2,485,675,457,977 | 1,928,104,305,370

b) By Geographical Region

Amountin NRs.

S. No. Particulars As on 32.03.2082 As on 31.03.2081

1 Bahrain 48,129,650,863 72,536,162,985
2 Canada 10,159,543,778 -
3 China 96,905,378,890 97,660,618,707
4 Hongkong 72,373,258,126 138,904,228,300
5 India 595,736,218,184 440,434,524,707
6 Spain 33,354,843,338 33,183,659,335
7 Qatar 68,625,118,470 55,208,255,724
8 Singapore 167,396,278,723 152,053,436,239
9 Switzerland 284,457,288,934 274,939,735,484
10 UAE 44,158,615,152 -
11 USA 833,588,723,278 486,359,861,475
12 Nepal 232,130,931,869 177,919,920,028

Total 2,487,015,849,605 1,929,200,402,984

Less: Expected Credit Loss (1,340,391,627) (1,096,097,614)

Grand Total 2,485,675,457,977 1,928,104,305,370
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561.2.

c) By Nature of the Entity

Amountin NRs.

S. No. Particulars As on 32.03.2082 As on 31.03.2081

1 Bank for International Settlements 230,047,639,841 190,384,661,635
2 Central Banks 99,838,855,452 48,888,735,996
3 Foreign Commercial Banks 570,317,800,607 593,991,005,341
4 International Monetary Fund 23,552,113,844 23,991,803,148
5 Foreign Government 1,502,678,206,508 1,000,463,201,741
6 Domestic Banks and Fls 6,967,227,589 9,209,899,586
7 Government of Nepal 15,445,818,529 23,309,990,695
8 Equity Instruments 5,005,736,072 4,302,806,764
9 Other Parties 33,162,451,163 34,658,298,078

Total 2,487,015,849,604 1,929,200,402,984

Less: Expected Credit Loss (1,340,391,627) (1,096,097,614)

Grand Total 2,485,675,457,977 1,928,104,305,370

d) By CreditRating

Particulars As on 32.03.2082 As on 31.03.2081
Amount (NRs.) | % Amount (NRs) | %

ForeignCurrency
AAA 22,567,769,943 0.91% 79,418,855,976 4.12%
AA+ 886,060,955,225 35.65% 489,284,457,268 25.38%
AA 4,429,075,859 0.18% 787,265,923 0.04%
AA- 124,876,766,692 5.02% 122,582,793,801 6.34%
A+ 235,443,913,675 9.47% 240,559,963,528 12.46%
A 195,498,498,387 7.87% 148,377,995,062 7.70%
A- 47,519,134,047 1.91% 47,029,622,346 2.42%
BBB+ 1,669,818,488 0.07% 1,481,525,453 0.08%
BB+ - 0.00% - 0.00%
BB - 0.00% - 0.00%
BBB- 654,745,251,574 26.34% 514,018,022,894 26.64%
Other* 277,622,979,784 11.17% 239,421,995,501 12.42%
Total 2,450,434,163,673 | 98.58% 1,882,962,497,752 | 97.60%
Less: Expected Credit Loss (1,306,194,375) (1,061,965,783)
XZ;Z‘:SFOM'Q” currency Financial 2,449,127,969,298 1,881,900,531,969
Local Currency
Other* 36,581,685,931 1.47% 46,237,905,232 2.40%
Less: Expected Credit Loss (34,197,252) (34,131,831)
Total Financial Assets 2,485,675,457,977 100% 1,928,104,305,370 100%

All of the above ratings are as per S&P.

*Rating not available or rating not required as per NRB’s Investment Policy

Loss Allowances for Expected Credit Loss

The Bank had recognized the allowances forimpairment based on Incurred Loss modelas per the requirementofNAS
39: Financial Instruments- Recognition and Measurement. From the fiscal year 2078-79, the Bank has changed its
accounting policy to recognize allowance for impairment based on Expected Credit Loss modelas per the requirerment
of NFRS 9: Financial Instruments. The change in models ofaccounting forallowances for impairment has resulted
into the changes in accounting policy and has been required by NFRS 9. Impairment on financial asset is measuredat
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5.61.3.

the end of each reporting period and the movement in the allowances for impairment of financial assets duringtheyear

is as follows:
AmountinNRs.
Allowances for Expected Credit Loss for
Particulars Bank [Investment in . Loans and Other
Balance Securities Term Deposits advaBnlgless to Receivable Total
Balance as on 31t
Acar 2080 18,755,626 | 301,632,462 | 581,454,728 | 225213 | 8,176,708 | 910,244,737
'ergzgm:gmss 4,882,970 | 279,927,783 : ] ] 284,810,752
Amount Written Off - - - - - -
'Ifﬁ;)’ ersalol - - (98147,556) | (209222) | (601302) |(98,958,079)
t
Balanceas on 31 | 53 590 596 | 581,560,245 | 483307172 | 15991 | 7575406 |1,096,097,410
Asar 2081
IFQ?:%E%EE LosS | 2093033 | 214709445 | 26451204 : 140562 | 244294245
Amount Written Off - - - - - -
Reversal of
Impairment Loss i . - 27) - (27)
Balance as on 32™
Acar 2082 26,631,629 | 796,269,690 | 509,758,377 | 15,963 7,715,968 |1,340,391,627

Credit Exposure Mowement- ECL Stage wise

Amountin NRs.

Balance as on 32" Asar 2082 Balance as on 315t Asar 2081
Allowances for _ — _ —
Expected Credit o = = 5 = = = 5
Loss for g > > o & = =2 o
= P 3 [ ] = i -
()] N N (7] N D
Bank Balance 22,197,229 | - | 4,434,400 | 26,631,629 | 19,204,196 | - | 4,434,400 23,638,596
Investmentin 796,269,690 | - 796,269,690 | 581,560,245 | - - 581,560,245
Securities
Term Deposits 484,211,250 | - | 25,547,126 | 509,758,377 | 457,760,046 | - | 25,547,126 | 483,307,172
Loanandadvances | g 59 ; 15,963 15,991 ; . 15,991
to BFlIs
Other Receivables 2,428,716 - | 5,287,252 7,715,968 2,288,052 - | 5,287,354 7,575,406
Total 1,312,897,757 | - | 35,268,778 |1,340,391,627 [1,060,828,529 | - | 35,268,881 |[1,096,097,410

Financial assets are written off (either in full or partially) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a
financialasset in its entirety ora portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Bank determinesthattheborrower
does not have assets orsources ofincome that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjecttothe

write-off.
Credit Quality

The credit quality of counterparty ofthe financialassets is assessed based on the credit policy (InvestrrentDirectives)
formed by the Board of Directors. Investment is made in the foreign counterparty whose credit rating is within the
acceptable standard. In case of domestic investment, investment is made in the counterparty who meets theminimum
standard level set by the credit policy. An analysis of credit quality of financial assets not impaired is as follows:

Amountin NRs.

Counterparties As on 32.03.2082 | As on 31.03.2081
External Credit Rating at least AAA/BBB- from credit rating agency 570,294,121,929 594,188,564,514
Non Rated Counterparties 24,023,226,099 25,045,530,718
Central Banks 99,838,855,452 48,888,735,996
Bank for International Settlement 230,047,639,841 190,384,661,635
Foreign Government 1,502,678,206,508( 1,000,463,201,741
International Monetary Fund 23,552,113,844 23,991,803,148
Government of Nepal 15,445,818,529 23,309,990,695
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5.61.4.

562.

562.1.

562.2.

Financial Assets with Other Counterparties:
Party with Normal Risk 21,074,641,551 22,866,688,686
Party with High Risk 61,225,851 61,225,851
Total 2,487,015,849,604| 1,929,200,402,984
Less: Expected Credit Loss (1,340,391,627) (1,096,097,614)
Grand Total 2,485,675,457,977| 1,928,104,305,370

Collateral held and other credit enhancement

The Bankholds collateraland other credit enhancements against certain of its credit exposures. The following table
sets out the principal types of collateral held against different types of financial assets.

% of Exposure subject to collateral
Type of Credit Exposure requirement Principal type of collateral held

Ason 32.03.2082 | As on 31.03.2081

Securities purchased under Resale

110 110 Government Securities
Agreement
Refinance to BFls 100 100 Good Loans of BFIs
Standing Liquidity Facilities 110 110 Government Securities

Land and Buildings, Insurance Policies,
Loans to Staff 100-125 100-125 Retirement Fund Balance, and Accrued
Retirement Benefits.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Bank willencounter difficulty in meeting the obligation associated with the financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Bank’s approach to managing liquidityrisk
is to ensure as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, provide
finance to maintain liquidity in financial market and provide for foreign exchange to finance import of the country
underboth the normaland stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damagetotheBank's
reputation. In order to control liquidity risk, the Bank has maintained sufficient balance in the currentaccount with
othercentral banks, demand and call deposits with foreign banks and investment in highly liquid securities. TheBank
maintains cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securities in excess of expected cash flows on
financial liabilities and other obligations.

Further, the Bank has credit arrangement for Rapid Credit Facilities (RCF) and Extended Credit Facilities (ECF)
provided by the International Monetary Fund in case of stressed condition like deficit of balance of payment ofthe
country.

Assets Heldfor Managing Liquidity Risk

The Bankholds adiversified portfolio of cash, balances with foreign banks and high -quality highly-liquid securities
to support payment obligations and contingent funding in a stressed market environment. The Bank’s assets held for
managing liquidity risk comprise:

Cash and balances with foreign banks in the form of demand and call deposit
Balance with foreign central banks and Bank for International Settlement

Investment in Government of Nepal and foreign governments'bonds and other securities thatarereadily acceptable
in repurchase agreements with central banks; and

e A secondary source of liquidity in the form of highly liquid instruments in the Bank's trading portfolios
Maturity Profile of Financial Assets andFinancial Liabilities

The Bank's remaining contractual maturities and other forms of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are shown in the table 1.
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The contractual maturities and other forms of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 32.03.2082

Table 1

(Current Year Figures (NRs.)

Contractual and Other Cash Flows

Particulars Carrying Amount | uptolmonth | 1-3 months [ 3-12months | 1 -3 Years | More than 3 Years
Foreign currency financial assets
Cash and balances with banks 195,549,245,938 195,549,245,938
Derivative financial assets -
IMF related assets 23,552,113,844 23,552,113,844
Term deposit with foreign banks 562,260,512,651 3,857,024,798 137,000,000 558,266,487,853 - -

Investmentsin foreign securities

1,669,072,291,241

259,128,452,711

275,051,793,440

625,853,289,486

488,565,022,509

20,473,733,093

Other receivables

Total foreign currency financial assets

2,450,434,163,674

482,086,837,292

275,188,793,440

1,184,119,777,339

488,565,022,509

20,473,733,093

Local currency financial assets

Balances with banks 8,396,052 8,396,052

Investment in government securities 15,185,270,309 1,579,970,947 245,398,000 4,545,660,797 2,996,572,780 5,817,667,785
Investment in bonds & term deposit 6,848,980,047 334,780,047 747,700,000 5,766,500,000

Advances and receivable from Government 260,548,220 260,548,220

!_oa_n ar_ld advances to bank and financial 118,247 542 118,247 542

institutions

Otherloan and advances

Staff loan 11,224,100,867 349,069,537 662,221,951 1,346,892,104 1,571,374,121 7,294,543,153
Pension advance 1,440,611,864 44,803,029 84,996,100 172,873,424 201,685,661 936,253,650
Travellingadvances to staff 12,670,020 12,670,020

Staff endowment policy advance 4,659,850 4,659,850

Other advance 45,508,067 45,508,067

Interest receivable 2,355,769 2,355,769

Equity investment

5,005,736,072

5,005,736,072

Total local currency financial assets

40,157,084,678

2,642,761,538

1,740,316,051

11,950,173,867

4,769,632,562

19,054,200,661

Total financial assets

2,490,591,248,353

484,729,598,830

276,929,109,492

1,196,069,951,206

493,334,655,071

39,527,933,754

Foreign currency financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

10,493,587,420

10,493,587,420

IMF related liabilities

41,237,741,377

41,237,741,377

Total foreigncurrency financial liabilities

51,731,328,797

41,237,741,377

10,493,587,420

Local currency financial liabilities

Bills payable

54,245,636

54,245,636

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

388,635,552,439

77,727,110,488

38,863,555,244

272,044,886,707

Deposit of government

70,837,099,174

14,875,790,827

17,000,903,802

22,667,871,736

16,292,532,810

Deposit of other institutions

12,502,055,255

3,000,493,261

2,875,472,709

6,626,089,285

IMF related liabilities

12,464,816,037

12,464,816,037

Other liahilities

2,027,025,538

2,027,025,538

Total local currency financial liabilities

486,520,794,079

108,122,456,248

21,903,402,049

68,157,516,265

288,337,419,517

Total Financial Liabilities

538,252,122,876

149,360,197,625

32,396,989,469

68,157,516,265

288,337,419,517

Net Financial Assets Position

1,952,339,125,476

335,369,401,205

244,532,120,023

1,127,912,434,941

204,997,235,554

39,527,933,754
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Previous Year Figures (NRs.)

Contractual and Other Cash Flows

Particulars

Carrying Amount

up to 1 month

1-3 months

3-12 months

1-3 Year

More than 3 Year

Foreign currency financial assets

Cash and balances with banks

131,682,014,794

131,682,014,794

Derivative financial assets

IMF related assets

23,991,803,148

23,991,803,148

Term deposit with foreign banks

598,965,244,993

199,652,085,522

365,293,366,089

34,019,793,382

Investmentsin foreign securities

1,128,323,434,814

179,363,087,651

255,777,281,123

229,984,198,515

458,606,037,574

4,592,829,951

Other receivables

Total foreigncurrency financial assets

1,882,962,497,749

534,688,991,115

621,070,647,212

264,003,991,897

458,606,037,574

4,592,829,951

Local currency financial assets

Balances with banks 6,145,460 6,145,460
Investment in government securities 23,047,152,978 246,260,755 8,581,342,630 5,591,045,600 8,628,503,993
Investment in bonds & term deposit 7,407,629,432 148,429,432 7,259,200,000

Advances and receivable from Government

1,946,658,278

1,946,658,278

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

118,449,593

118,449,593

Otherloan andadvances

Staff loan 11,257,077,314 350,095,104 664,167,562 1,350,849,278 1,575,990,824 7,315,974,546
Pension advance 1,652,831,031 48,749 1,804,119 39,287,057 280,883,383 1,330,807,723
Travellingadvances to staff 5,062,201 5,062,201
Staff endowment policy advance 5,854,850 5,854,850
Other advance 55,588,947 55,588,947
Interest receivable 2,699,983 2,699,983
Equity investment 4,302,806,764 4,302,806,764
Total local currency financial assets 49,807,956,831 2,766,843,759 665,971,681 17,349,128,558 7,447,919,807 21,578,093,026

Total financial assets

1,932,770,454,580

537,455,834,874

621,736,618,893

281,353,120,455

466,053,957,381

26,170,922,977

Foreign currency financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

12,868,855,095

12,868,855,095

IMF related liabilities

38,953,389,315

38,953,389,315

Total foreigncurrency financial liabilities

51,822,244,410

38,953,389,315

12,868,855,095

Local currency financial liabilities

Bills payable

111,732,583

111,732,583

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

290,718,269,398

58,143,653,879

29,071,826,940

203,502,788,579

Deposit of government

63,953,391,009

13,430,212,112

15,348,813,842

20,465,085,123

14,709,279,932

Deposit of other institutions

20,063,196,070

4,815,167,057

4,614,535,095

10,633,493,918

IMF related liabilities

11,859,006,209

11,859,006,209

Other liabilities

1,592,587,319

1,592,587,319

Total local currency financial liabilities

388,298,182,588

88,359,771,840

21,555,936,256

60,170,405,981

218,212,068,511

Total Financial Liabilities

440,120,426,998

127,313,161,155

34,424,791,351

60,170,405,981

218,212,068,511

Net Financial Assets Position

1,492,650,027,582

410,142,673,719

587,311,827,542

221,182,714,474

247,841,888,870

26,170,922,977
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5.63.

5.63.1.

Market Risk

Market riskis the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
and otherassets'prices may affect the Bank’s income or the value of’its holding of financial instruments. Market risk
arises fromopen position in interest rates, currency and equity products allof which are exposed togeneralandspecific
market movement and changes in the level of volatility of the market rates or interest rates, foreign exchangeratesand
equity prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within the
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency Risk

Currency riskis the risk, where the value of financial instruments may fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Foreign currency activities result mainly fromthe Bank's holding of foreign currency assets under its foreign
exchange reserves management function. The investment committee reviews the currency composition ofthereserve
and monitors the Bank's compliance with the limits established for foreign currency positions by the Bank's board.
The major holding of foreign currency assets are denominated in USD, CNY, CAD, JPY, AUD, GBP, EURO and
INR.

The summary quantitative data about the Bank's exposure to currency risk at the reporting period is shown in the
table 2.
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Table 2

The summary quantitative data about the Bank's exposure to currency risk at the reporting period
Current Year Figures (NRs.)

Particulars usD CNY GBP CAD AUD SAR JPY EUR XDR
% of Net Total
Financial Position 60.84% 7.96% 3.81% 0.13% 0.99% 0.13% 0.08% 1.48% -0.74%
Exposure
Foreign Currency Financial Assets
Cash and balances 116,466,817,834| 40,148,050,381| 3,267,407405| 407,506008| 443,810023| 3,073.876.181| 3,631,218862 | 16,191,620,662 ;

with banks

Derivative financial
assets

IMF related assets

23,552,113,844

Term deposit with
foreign banks

390,375,681,937

53,858,974,654

72,419,991,774

2,758,418,753

23,217,008,493

19,630,437,039

Investments in
foreign securities

960,696,080,312

96,905,378,890

15,734,613,855

Other receivables

Total foreign
currency financial
assets

1,467,538,580,083

190,912,403,926

91,422,013,034

3,165,924,761

23,660,818,516

3,073,876,181

3,631,218,862

35,822,057,701

23,552,113,844

Foreign Currency Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial
liabilities

Deposit of bank and

. L 8,127,802,825 - 125,823,563 - 10,765,346 - 1,771,836,061 | 295,363,547 -
financial institutions

IMF related liabilities - - - - - - - - 41,237,741,376
Total foreign

currency financial 8,127,802,825 - 125,823,563 - 10,765,346 - 1,771,836,061 | 295,363,547 | 41,237,741,376

liabilities

Net Foreign
Currency Exposure

1,459,410,777,258

190,912 403,926

91,296,189,471

3,165,924,761

23,650,053,170

3,073,876,181

1,859,382,801

35,526,694,154

(17,685,627,532)
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Previous Year Figures (NRs.)

Particulars

(UN1D)

CNY

GBP

CAD

AUD

SAR

JPY

EUR

SDR

% of Net Total
Financial Position
Exposure

62.16%

9.73%

1.81%

0.15%

1.22%

0.13%

0.04%

1.23%

-0.79%

Foreign Currency Financial Assets

Cash and balances with
banks

109,066,430,119

17,533,822,872

3,329,414,473

382,689,890

1,150,265,212

2,446,357,758

6,517,443,295

12,895,158,849

Derivative financial
assets

IMF related assets

23,791,069,016

Term deposit with
foreign banks

502,467,145,392

66,454,967,646

2,505,448,962

17,355,482,992

10,195,102,302

Investments in foreign
securities

555,210,576,325

97,660,618,707

30,560,471,704

4,433,464,948

Other receivables

Total foreign
currency financial
assets

1,166,744,151,837

181,649,409,224

33,889,886,177

2,888,138,852

22,939,213153

2,446,357,758

6,517,443,295

23,090,261,151

23,791,069,016

Foreign Currency Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial
liabilities

Deposit of bank and

liabilities

. S L 6,678,280,117 - 125,001,872 - 97,913,227 - 5,713,145652 | 206,534,238 -
financial institutions

IMF related liabilities - - - - - - - - 38,627,474,746
Total foreign

currency financial 6,678,280,117 - 125,001,872 - 97,913,227 - 5,713,145652 | 206,534,238 | 38,627,474,746

Net Foreign
Currency Exposure

1,160,065,871,720

181,649,409,224

33,764,884,305

2,888,138,852

22,841,299,926

2,446,357,758

804,297,643

22,883,726,913

(14,836,405,730)

Besides above currency exposures, the Bank’s net foreign currency exposure also consists ofmajor portion of Indian currency (INR)which stands 25.03% (PY
23.98%) of total net financial position exposure. Since, the exchange rate of Nepalese rupee is pegged to INR, the net exposure position of INR has not been
presented in above table. Net foreign currency exposure denominated in currencies other than stated above and INR, has amount ed to 0.3% (PY 0.34%)ofthetotal
foreign currency reserve.
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5.63.2.

5.63.3.

Sensitivity Analysis of Currency Risk

A strengthening (weakening) of USD, AUD, EUR, GBP, CNY, CAD, SDR, JPY and SAR against Nepalese rupee
at the end of reporting period would have affected the value of financial instruments denomin ated in a foreign
currency and increased (decreased) in profit or loss by the amount shown below. This analysis is based on foreign
exchange rate variances that the Bank considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. This

analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignoreany inpactofforecast
cash flows.

AmountinNRs.

Impact on Profit or Loss
In case of Strengthening or Weakening of Currency by 10%
Currency
For the Year Ended 2082 For the Year Ended 2081

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
uUsbD 145,941,077,726 (145,941,077,726) 116,006,587,172 (116,006,587,172)
AUD 2,365,005,317 (2,365,005,317) 2,284,129,992 (2,284,129,992)
EUR 3,552,669,415 (3,552,669,415) 2,288,372,691 (2,288,372,691)
GBP 9,129,618,947 (9,129,618,947) 3,376,488,430 (3,376,488,430)
CNY 19,091,240,393 (19,091,240,393) 18,164,940,922 (18,164,940,922)
CAD 316,592,476 (316,592,476) 288,813,885 (288,813,885)
SDR (1,768,562,753) 1,768,562,753 (1,483,640,573) 1,483,640,573
JPY 185,938,280 (185,938,280) 80,429,764 (80,429,764)
SAR 307,387,618 (307,387,618) 244,635,776 (244,635,776)
Total 179,120,967,419 (179,120,967,419) 141,250,758,059 (141,250,758,059)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate riskis the risk that the value of financial assets will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rate. Cash
flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Banktakes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its
fairvalue and cash flowrisks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce losses inthe
eventthat unexpected movements arise. The Bank's board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interestrate repricing
which is monitored daily by the Bank's treasury.

The Bank has kept substantial investments on short-termloans thereby controlling the interest rate risk to significant
extent. The interest rate profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments is as below:
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Amount inNRs.

Particulars

Weighted Awverage
Interest Rate %

As on 32.03.2082

As on 31.03.2081

Interest Sensitive Financial Assets

Balances with Other Banks 3.51% 171,526,019,838 106,403,924,623
GOl Treasury Bills 5.83% 595,736,218,184 440,434,524,707
US Government Treasury Bills 4.29% 193,077,120,372 33,106,077,946
Time Deposit (less than 3months) 4.08% 274,000,000 43,819,360,000
IMF Related Assets: SDR Holdings 2.93% 23,405,205,370 23,791,069,016
General Refinance - -
Special/BExport Refinance - -
Zero Interest Loan - -
Loanto MSME - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Loan to Employees

House loan Uninsured 1.00% 350,000 375,000
House Repair Loan Uninsured 1.00% 1,739,419,054 2,209,273,639
Vehicle Loan Uninsured 3.00% - 161,000
Staff Loan Uninsured 2068 1.00% 708,605,748 744,840,020
US Government Treasury Notes/Bonds 4.01% 611,778,943,853 425,622,066,365
Government Treasury Notes/Bonds (CNY) 2.11% 95,421,600,620 96,453,226,913
Investmentin Mid-termInstruments 4.23% 164,166,295,695 126,282,230,415
Time Deposit- Investment 4.08% 558,266,487,853 551,169,998,743
Fixed Deposit with Bank & Financial Institutions 3.73% 6,789,800,000 7,284,800,000
Government Treasury Bills (GON) 245,398,000 -
Saving Certificates (GON) 9.49% 3,008,670,000 3,912,900,000
Total Interest Sensitive Financial Assets 2,426,144,134,586( 1,861,234,828,387
Interest Sensitive Financial Liabilities

IMF Related Liabilities 2.93% 53,445,333,220 50,486,480,955
Short Term Borrowings

Total Interest Sensitive Financial Liabilities 53,445,333,220 50,486,480,955
Net Interest Sensitive Financial Position 2,372,698,801,365( 1,810,748,347,432

5.6.3.4. Other Market Prices Risk

Equity price risk arises from investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as well as
investment measured at fair value through profit or loss. The Bank monitors the mixof debt and equity securities in
its investment portfolio based on the market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on
individual basis. The objective for investment in equity instruments is to promote overall financial system of the
country. These investments are made under the specific directives or policies ofthe Government of Nepaland other
relevant statutes. At the end ofreporting period, the Bank holds equity instruments ofthe various institutions.Allthe

5.6.4.

investments are measured at fair value.

Classification and Fair Value of financial assets

The fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities together with the carrying amounts as at the year-end are showninthe

table 3.
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Table 3

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities together with the carrying amounts as at the year end

AmountinNRs.

Particulars

Fair Value
through OCI

Amortized Cost

Cash &
Balances with
banks

Financial Liabilities

Total Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Foreign currency financial assets

Cash and balances with banks

195,522,615,444

195,522,615,444

195,522,615,444

Derivative financial assets

IMF related assets

23,552,113,844

23,552,113,844

23,552,113,844

Term deposit with foreign banks

561,777,218,459

561,777,218,459

561,777,218,459

Investments in foreign securities

1,668,276,021,551

1,668,276,021,551

1,668,276,021,551

Other receivables

Total foreign currency financial assets

2,253,605,353,854

195,522,615,444

2,449,127,969,298

2,449,127,969,298

Local currency financial assets

Balances with banks 8,394,919 8,394,919 8,394,919
Investment in government securities 15,185,270,309 15,185,270,309 15,185,270,309
Investment in bonds & term deposit 6,822,515,860 6,822,515,860 6,822,515,860
Advances and recelvable from government 260,548,220 260,548,220 260,548,220
Loan and advances tobank and financial 118,231,579 118,231,579 118,231,579
institutions

Other loan and advances 9,144,728,192 9,144,728,192 9,144,728,192
Equity investment 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072
Other receivables 2,063,528 2,063,528 2,063,528
Total local currency financial assets 5,005,736,072 31,533,357,688 8,394,919 - 36,547,488,679 36,547,488,679

Total financial assets

5,005,736,072

2,285,138,711,542

195,531,010,363

2,485,675,457,977

2,485,675,457,977

Foreign currency financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

10,493,587,420

10,493,587,420

10,493,587,420

IMF related liabilities

41,237,741,376

41,237,741,376

41,237,741,376

Total foreign currency financial liabilities

51,731,328,796

51,731,328,796

51,731,328,796

Local currency financial liabilities

Bills payable

54,245,636

54,245,636

54,245,636

Deposit of bank and financial institutions

388,635,552,440

388,635,552,440

388,635,552,440

Deposit of government

70,837,099,174

70,837,099,174

70,837,099,174

Deposit of other institutions

12,502,055,256

12,502,055,256

12,502,055,256

Currency in circulation

750,112,422,154

750,112/422,154

750,112,422,154

Due to bank and financial institutions 654,050,000,000 654,050,000,000 | 654,050,000,000
IMF related liabilities 12,464,816,036 12,464,816,036 12,464,816,036
Surplus payable to government 42,000,000,000 42,000,000,000 42,000,000,000

Other liabilities

2,027,025,539

2,027,025,539

2,027,025,539

Total local currency financial liabilities

1,932,683,216,235

1,932,683,216,235

1,932,683,216,235

Total Financial Liabilities

1,984,414 545,031

1,984,414 545,031

1,984,414,545,031

Net Financial Assets Position

5,005,736,072

2,285,138,711,542

195,531,010,363

(1,984,414,545,031)

501,260,912,946

501,260,912,946
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5.65.

57.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fairvalue measurements have been classified using a "fair value hierarchy" that categorizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fairvalue. The fairvalue hierarchy has three different levels and gives the highest
priority to the quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservableinputs. Thedifferent
levels are defined as follow.

Level 1inputs are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets foridenticalassets and liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2inputs are inputs otherthan quoted market prices included within Level 1that are observable forthe assetsor
liabilities, either directly or indirectly, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Allthe financial assets are measured at amortized cost except for the Equity Investment which has been recognizedat
fairvalue through other comprehensive income. The details showing the carry ing amounts of financial assetsthatare
measured at fair value using the "fair value hierarchy" and segregating fairvalue to Level 1-3 inputs are presented
below:

Current Year Figures (NRs.)

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewvel 3
Equity investment 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072
Total financial assets at fair value 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072 5,005,736,072
Previous Year Figures (NRs.)
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value Lewvel 1 Lewel 2 Lewvel 3
Equity investment 4,302,806,764 4,302,806,764 4,302,806,764
Total financial assets at fair value 4,302,806,764 4,302,806,764 4,302,806,764

Employees Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans

The Bank currently offers two defined benefit post-employment plans to its employees, based on the lengthofservice
and amount of compensation. These post-employment benefit plans are ‘Gratuity or Pension Plan’ and ‘StaffSecurity
Plan’. The Bankalso offers two otherlong termbenefits: “StaffMedical Fund” and “Leave Encashment”. A defined
benefit plan is post—employment benefit plan otherthan a defined contribution plan. The Bank's net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately foreach plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior period; and the benefit is discountedtodetermine
its present value. The Bank determines the net interest expenses (income) on the net defined benefit liability (assets)
forthe period by applying discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of theperiod
to the net defined liability (assets). The obligation under ‘Gratuity or Pension Plan’ and ‘Staff Security Plan’ is
calculated by a qualified actuary every yearusing projected unit credit method. The discount rate used is the yieldat
the reporting date on high quality government bond having maturity dates approximating the terms of the obligations
and are denominated in the Nepalese rupee in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The ‘Gratuity or Pension Plan’ and ‘Staff Security Plan’ are funded plan wherein the Bank makes earmarked
investment out of fund created forthese plans. ‘Leave encashment’ and “StaffMedical Fund” are not a funded plan.

There are no plan amendments and curtailments during the reporting period.

The details ofthe net liabilities based on actuarial valuation of obligation for the defined benefit plans, viz, Gratuity
or Pension Plan and Staff Security Plan are as follows:

Amount Recognizedin the Statement of Financial Position
Amount in NRs.

As on 32™ Asar 2082 As on 315 Asar 2081
Particulars Pension or . Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Staff Security Plan Gratuity Plan Plan
Present Value of Obligations 24,368,286,017 3,157,721,143 20,674,784,248 2,810,347,437
Fair Value of Plan Assets/Current
Balance of Provision Account (19,341,500,033) (2,133,000,447) (19,764,593,229) (2,245,050,688)
Net Liability/ (Assets) 5,026,785,984 1,024,720,696 910,191,019 565,296,749
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Changes in Fair Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

Amount in NRs.

As on 32M Asar 2082

As on 315t Asar 2081

Particulars Pension or Staff Security Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Plan Gratuity Plan Plan

Opening Obligation 20,674,784,248 2,810,347,437 19,799,326,845 2,781,136,386
Transfer in/(out) obligation 10,000

Current Service Cost 481,309,569 209,142,289 335,718,660 124,886,214
Interest Cost 1,797,850,925 242,591,101 1,781,939,416 250,302,275
Actuarial Losses (Gains) 2,870,915,461 134,189,169 205,985,660 -272,504,513
Losses (Gains) on Curtailments - - - -
Benefits Paid (1,456,574,186) (238,558,853) (1,448,186,333) (73,472,925)
Closing Obligation 24,368,286,017 3,157,721,143 20,674,784,248 2,810,347,437

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

As on 32 Asar 2082

As on 315t Asar 2081

Pension or Staff Security Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Plan Gratuity Plan Plan
Opening Fair Value 19,764,593,229 2,245,050,688 | 19,433,209,385 2,122,731,894
Investmentadjustment - - - -
BExpected Return 1,737,592,664 201,125,796 1,748,988,845 191,045,870
Actuarial Gains (Losses) (704,111,674) (74,617,183) 30,581,332 4,745,849
Contribution by Employer - - - -
Benefits Paid (1,456,574,186) (238,558,854) (1,448,186,333) (73,472,925)
Closing Fair Value 19,341,500,033 2,133,000,447 | 19,764,593,229 2,245,050,688

Amount Recognizedin the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amount in NRs.

As on 32" Asar 2082

As on 31t Asar 2081

Particulars Pension or Staff Security Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Plan Gratuity Plan Plan
ﬁgggd to Statement of 541,567,830 250,607,594 368,669,231 184,142,619
Actuarial Income/(Loss)
Resoaned oo (3575027,135) | (208,806,352) (175,404,328) 277,250,362
Total Employee Benefit (3,033,459,305) 41,801,242 193,264,903 461,392,981

Income /(Expense)

Major Categories of Plan Assets as a Percentage of Total Plans

Particulars

As on 32" Asar 2082

As on 315t Asar 2081

Pension or Staff Security Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Plan Gratuity Plan Plan

Government of Nepal
Securities 0% 0% 0% 0%
High quality corporate bonds 0% 0% 0% 0%
Equity shares of listed
Companies 0% 0% 0% 0%
Property 0% 0% 0% 0%
Fixed Deposit of banks and Fls 100% 100% 100% 100%
Others - - - -

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
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5.8.

5.9.

Principal Actuarial Assumption at the end of the Reporting Period

As on 32™ Asar 2082 As on 31t Asar 2081
Particulars Pension or Staff Security Pension or Staff Security
Gratuity Plan Plan Gratuity Plan Plan
Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50% 9% 9%
BExpected Return on Plan Asset 7.50% 7.50% 9% 9%
Future Salary Increase 10.00% 10.00% 10% 10%
Future Pension Increase 6.67% - 6.67% -
Withdrawal Rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

The Sensitivity of the Defined Benefit Obligations to Changes in Principal Assumptions

As on 32" Asar 2082 As on 31t Asar 2081
Particulars Change Pension or Staff Pension or Staff Security

Gratuity Plan | SecurityPlan | Gratuity Plan Plan

. -1% 14.65% 9.16% 12.64% 7.92%

Discount Rate

1% -11.73% -7.80% -10.36% -6.85%

Sa|ary & Pension -1% -11.43% -71.70% -10.18% -6.85%
Increment Rate 1% 13.98% 8.84% 12.20% 8%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumptionwhile holding all other assumptions constant.

Expected benefit payments to be paid out by the plans in the coming five years

Amount in NRs.

Years Pension or Gratuity Plan Staff Security Plan
2026 1,418,602,385 249,316,944
2027 1,558,164,977 965,462,055
2028 1,619,057,291 276,503,045
2029 1,672,326,713 107,589,680
2030 1,717,125,122 92,059,462

2031-2035 9,207,888,695 903,513,866

Employees Benefits — Other Long Term Benefit Plan

The Bankcurrently offers accumulated leave as other long termbenefit plan. The Bank's net obligation in respect of
other long termbenefit plans is calculated separately foreach plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return fortheirservice in current and prior period; and the benefit is discountedtodetermine
its present value. The Bank determines the net interest expenses (income) on the net other long termbenefit liability
(assets) forthe period by applying discount rate used to measure the other long termbenefit obligationatthebeginning
of'the period to the net other long term benefit liability (assets). The obligation under ‘Accumulated Leave’ is
calculated by a qualified actuary every yearusing projected unit credit method. The discount rate used is the yieldat
the reporting date on high quality government bond having maturity dates approximating the terms of the obligations
and are denominated in Nepalese rupee in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

‘Leave encashment’ is not a funded plan. Same assumptions are taken for measurement of the leave liabilities as
adopted for defined benefit liabilities.

There are no plan amendments and curtailments during the reporting period. Actuarial gains/los ses in otherlongterm
benefit plans are charged to statement of net income.

Other Employee Benefits

«  Staff Welfare Fund: The Bank provides 12% of basic salary as staff welfare fund each year. During the year, the
Bank has provided NRs. 107,417,807 (PY NRs. 104,666,745) as staff welfare fund.

«  Staff Welfare Provident Fund: Each year, an amount as approved by the board of directors of the Bank, with an
increment not exceeding 10% ofamount approved by the board in previous yearis provided in Staff Welfare
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5.10.

5.10.1.

5.10.2.

Provident Fund. Total expenses under this heading amounts to NRs. this year 752,942,800 (PY NRs.
733,504,891).

«  TheBankprovides staff medical fund facility to the staff, of which payments are made as perthe eligible medical
claimwhile rest amount is paid at the retirement time. NRs. 197,539,804 (PY NRs. 129,821,324) is expensed as
staff medical fund this year.

Reserves

The Bank has maintained different reserves and funds. Some of the reserves are statutory and maintained as perthe
requirement of the Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058. Section 41 of the Act has prescribed the sequences of the
appropriation of the net income. As per the section, Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain/Loss, Gold and Silver
Revaluation Gain/Loss, and Securities Revaluation Gain/Loss shall be appropriated to the Foreign Exchange
Equalization Reserve and respective Revaluation Reserves maintained by the Bank. The Bankshall also appropriate
10%, 5% and 5% of net income available for appropriation to General Reserve, Monetary Liability Reserve and
Financial Stability Reserve respectively. In addition,an amount equalto the capital expenditure included in annual
budget shallbe appropriated to General Reserve and the amount decided by the Bank's board will be maintained in
Net Cumulative Surplus Reserve. The purpose ofthese funds is specified in the Act and they shall be utilized for the
said purpose. Besides these statutory funds, different otherreserves and funds are maintained and a certainamountis
annually allocated by the Bank's board, out of each year's net income to those reserves and funds. Theimpacts resulting
fromothercomprehensive income are directly transferred to respective reserves. The Bank's board is authorized by
Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058 to allocate a part of net income to those reserves and funds. The details of statutoryand
other reserves and funds are as follows:

Statutory Reserwes
a) Monetary Liability Reserve

This reserve is maintained as persection 41 (1) (kha) ofthe Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058 and as per the provision of
the section, an amount equals to 5percent of the net income available forappropriation shall be allocated each year
and kept in such reserve. This year, NRs. 4,024,132,522 (PY NRs. 3,688,116,035) is appropriated to this fund.

b) Financial Stability Reserve

This reserve is maintained as persection 41 (1) (kha) ofthe NRB Act and as perthe provision of the section,anamount
equals to 5percent ofthe netincome available forappropriation shall be allocated each yearand kept in such reserve.
This year, NRs. 4,024,132,522 (PY NRs. 3,688,116,035) is appropriated to this fund.

c) General Reserwe

This reserve is maintained as persection 41 (1) (kha) ofthe NRB Act and as perthe provision of the section,anamount
prescribed by the Bank's board not less than 10 percent ofthe net income available for appropriation shallbeallocated
in this general reserve fund each year. While allocating an amount in the general reserve, an additionalamount shall
be appropriated to cover the capital expenditure referred to in the annual budget of the Bank. Accordingly, NRs.
16,250,973,601 (PY NRs. 11,274,655,157) is appropriated in general reserve during the year.

d) NetCumulative Surplus Fund

This reserve is maintained as persection 41 (1) (kha) ofthe NRB Actand as per the provision of the section,anamount
as decided by the Bank's board shall be allocated and kept in such reserve. This year, NRs. 1,902,850,310 (PY NRs.
129,638,007) is appropriated to this fund. This fund is introduced after the amendments in NRB Act in 2073 BS.

e) Exchange Equalization Fund

This fund has been maintained as persection 41 (1) (ka) of the NRB Act and as perthe provision ofthe section, the
amount equals to the revaluation profit shall be kept in the revaluation reserve fund. It re presents net exchangegains
on various foreign currency assets and liabilities. An amount of NRs. 45,029,959,182 (PY NRs. 14,995,429,467) which
is equivalent to net exchange gain is appropriated to this fund during the year.

f)  Gold and Silver Equalization Reserve

This fund has also been maintained as persection 41 (1) (ka) of the NRB Act. This reserve represents the gain orloss
ontherevaluation ofgold and silver. Any appreciation or depreciation on revaluation of gold and silveris takento/from
this reserve out of net income of the year. Accordingly, an amount of NRs. 46,886,685,765 (PY NRs. 26,596,033,683)
which is equivalent to net revaluation gain on revaluation of gold and silver is appropriated to this fund.

Other Reserwes and Funds

The Board of Directors ofthe Bank s authorized by section 41 (1) (ga) of the NRB Act to appropriate the remaining
netincome in other funds as may be necessary and pay the remaining amount to Government of Nepal. Accordingly,
the Bank has maintained different reserves and funds as per Accounts Directives of the Bank andthe Board ofDirectors
appropriate some part ofthe netincome available for distribution to these reserves and funds annually. The amount
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kept under these reserves and funds shallbe utilized forthe purpose of the reserves or funds as mentioned in the
Account Directives. The following reserves and funds have been maintained:

a) Dewlopment Fund

This is the specific fund created as per monetary policy ofthe Bankto provide support for loan and refinancetobanks
and financial institutions. The Board of Directors ofthe Bankannually appropriates a part of net income to this fund.
Accordingly, an amount of NRs. 1,000,000,000 (PY NRs. 6,000,000,000) has been allocated to this fund during the

year.
b) Banking Dewelopment Fund

This fund is created to meet the expenses relating to banking promotion, research and development work. The Board
of Directors of the Bank annually appropriates a part of net income to this fund. No amount (PY NRs. -) has been
allocated to this fund during the year. Earmarked investment of this fund has been made.

¢) Mechanization Fund

This fund is created to meet the amount required to develop and install modern software, hardware and allied
mechanization system. An amount as required for mechanization is allocated by the Board of Directors of the Bankto
this fund annually. No amount (PY NRs.-) has been allocated to this fund during the year. Earmarked investment of
this fund has been made.

d) ScholarshipFund

This fund is created to meet the amount required fromtime to time for the development of skilled manpower by way
of providing training and higher studies to the employees of the Bank. No amount (PY NRs.-) has been allocated to
this fund during the year. Earmarked investment of this fund has been made.

e) Mint Dewelopment Fund

This fund is created to meet the heavy capital expenditure required from time to time for construction of factory
building and installation of machinery for minting activities. No amount (PY NRs.-) has been allocated to this fund
during the year. Earmarked investment of this fund has been made.

f) Open Market Operation Stabilization Fund

This fund is created to ensure the adequacy of fund forthe expenses related to various monetary instruments issued
forliquidity management. The Board of Directors ofthe Bankannually appropriates a part of net income to this fund.
Accordingly,an amount of NRs. 19,500,000,000 (PY NRs. 12,755,571,674) has been allocated to this fund during this
fiscal year.

g) Gold Replacement Fund

This fund has been created forreplacing the gold/silversold during the year. An amount equals to income/profitfrom
gold and silveris appropriated to this fund annually and the amount kept under this fund is utilized for replacermentof
gold. Accordingly, an amount of NRs. 807,077,854 (PY NRs. 1,091,153,478) has been allocated to this fund during
the year. Earmarked investment of this fund has been made.

h) Rural Self Reliance Fund (GS Kosh)

This fund is created as perthe Monetary Policy ofthe Bank to provide wholesale credit forlending purpose to the
deprived sectorthrough MFIs, corporate and NGOs and refinancing in tea, cardamomplantation and production as
well as construction of cold storages etc. No amount has been appropriated to this fund during the year.

i) Rural Self Reliance Fund (Administration Expense Reimbursement Fund)

This fund is created out of the surplus fund amounting to NRs.61,390,949 received while transferring the RSRF
Programto Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. The fund is utilized to provide reimbursement of
the administrative expenses subsidy as claimed by the cooperative societies in case of the loanandadvances disbursed
and approved till the date of transfer of RSRF programto Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited.
Accordingly, the administrative expenses subsidy amounting to NRs.-(PY Rs.-) has been reimbursed in the current
year fromthis fund.

j) Actuarial Reserwe

This reserve is created out of the actuarial gain in defined benefit retirement schemes recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). Any actuarial loss in defined benefit retirement schemes recognized in OCI shallbe
expensed through this reserve. An amount of NRs. -3,783,833,487 (PY NRs. 101,846,034) has been transferred to
Actuarial Gain Reserve in this year.
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511.

5.12.

k) Fair Value Reserve

Fair Value Reserve in the Bankis created for maintaining the gain of investment in equity instruments classified as
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. A gain of NRs. 693,191,508 (PY NRs.
635,186,270) has been transferred to this reserve from other comprehensive income during the year.

Foreign Exchange Reserve

As per section 66 of Nepal Rastra Bank Act, 2058, the Bank shall maintain a foreign exchange reserve. As perthe
provision ofthe section, such reserve shall be denominated in the respective foreign exchange and shall consists of
gold and other precious metals, foreign currencies and securities denominated in foreign currency, special drawing
rights, bill of exchange, promissory note, certificate of deposit, bonds, and other debt instruments payable in
convertible foreign currencies etc. The Bankalso maintains record of the foreign exchange reserve heldbythelicensed
banks and financial institutions. The gross foreign exchange reserve holding of the banking system ofNepalattheend
of the reporting period is as follows:

(in NRs. billion)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Foreign Exchange Reserwe
(a) Held by Nepal RastraBank
Convertible Foreign Currency 1,814.26 1,400.98
Non-Convertible Foreign Currency 600.38 447.58
Gold Reserve 117.90 82.43
Special Drawing Rights 23.40 23.79
Sub Total 2555.94 1,954.78
(b) Held by Banks and Financial Institutions
Convertible Foreign Currency 279 201.36
Non-Convertible Foreign Currency 8.90 9.29
Sub Total 287.90 210.65
Total Foreign Exchange Reserwe of Banking System 2843.84 2,165.43

Instrument-wise Investment of Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Banking System in terms of percentage of total
reserve is as follows:

Particulars Current Year (in %) Previous Year (in %)

US Treasury Bills 8 181
Indian Treasury Bills 22.9 23.28
BIS FIXBIS 2.59 3.3
Bonds/Notes 20.48 28.71
Mid Term Instrument 6.86 6.9
Call Deposits 5.24 3.07
Time Deposit (Currency) 20.70 29.45
Gold Deposit 423 3.48
Special Drawing Rights
Balance with NRB and BFIs

Total 100 100

Projects’ Assets and Liability

The Government of Nepal, represented by the Ministry of Finance (MOF), and Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) signed
financing and separate agreements with KFW underthe Project “Sustainable Economic Development in Ruraland
Semi-Urban Areas — MSME Finance” (SEDRA) in three separate phases under German Government Financial
Cooperation with Nepal. The Project implies a financial contribution to the Government of Nepal to the totalamount
of EUR 20 million channeled to NRBacting as the Project-Executing Agency, which willuse it exclusively to provide
loans in Nepalese Rupees to Partner Financial Institutions (PFIs) for further on-lending to local MSMEs (micro,smell
and medium-sized enterprises) in defined ruraland semi-urban areas. The disbursements for the fistandsecond phases
of SEDRA have been completed, and the disbursement for the third phase is currently in the pipeline.
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As part ofthe Project, the MOF and NRB shall establish a financing vehicle (Revolving Fund, RF), through which
accumulated principaland interest payments fromProject PFls and RF partner banks shallbe used to grant newloans
to selected local banks with the objective to support expanding their lending to the underserved “missing middle”
segment, i.e. NepaliMSMEs demanding loans within the ticket size up to NPR 5million which has been at the core

of the SEDRA Project.

The Financial Position and Income Statements of these projects are as below:

Statement of Financial Position

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

As on 32 Asar 2082

As on 31st Asar 2081

KFW

KFW

Equity

Capital Contribution

Surplus

421,924,321

363,157,272

Financial Risk Fund

Long- term Liabilities

Loan from ADB - Non-Current Portion

Current Liabilities and Provision

Loan from ADB - Current Portion

Service Charge due on Loan from ADB

Loan From GON

1,996,891,651

1,713,792,715

Loan Loss Provision

Accounts Payable

Total Equity & Liabilities

2,418,815,973

2,076,949,988

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Loan to PFI- Non Current Portion

Investment

Current Assets

Interest Receivables

1,162,351

9,811,811

Loan to PFI- current portion

1,724,066,374

1,568,611,149

Cash and cash equivalents

693,587,247

498,527,027

Total Assets

2,418,815,973

2,076,949,988

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

As on 32™ Asar 2082

As on 31st Asar 2081

KFW

KFW

A. Income

Interest Income

58,767,049

82,927,957

From Loan to PFls

58,767,049

82,927,957

On deposit with Banks

On Investment

Other Income

Loan Loss Provision Written back

Total Incomes

58,767,049

82,927,957

B. Expenditure

Administrative Expenses

Provision for Service Charge

Loan Loss Provision

Depreciation

Total Expenses

Surplus (Deficit) (A-B)

58,767,049

82,927,957
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5.13.

5.13.1.

5.13.2.

Interest in other entities

The Bank has invested in quoted and unquoted equity securities of nine different entities as presented below:

Investment in unquoted securities

The Bank has investment in unquoted equity securities of the following entities:

Amount in NRs.

No of Shares Investment at cost Investn\w/;meat Fair
Particulars %
32-03-2082 |131-03-2081 | 32-03-2082 | 31-03-2081 | 32-03-2082 | 31-03-2081

Agricultural Project
Services Centre Pvt. 62.5 5,000 5000 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -
Ltd.
Rastriya Jeevan Beema | o oo 1,005,667 | 1,005,667 1,000,000| 1,000,000 | 373,144324| 383,500672
Company Limited
t't%paIStOCkB@hange 9.51 950,637 950,637| 3,321,005  3,321,005| 677,984802 | 588,339,733
National Productivity
and Economic 3152 25,000 25000| 2,500,000 2,500,000 - -
Development Centre
Ltd.
Deposit & Credit 10 | 10,000000| 10,000,000 607,594,000| 607,594,000|3,326,911427 |2,784,984577
Guarantee Fund
tlt%paICIearmg House | g 5 1,006,637 | 1,006,637| 15,000,000\ 15,000,000 278,104,000 241,170,092
(éLerggulnformatlon 95 414,287 414287 3,315,096| 3,315,006 | 319,788.135| 284,076,596
National Banking 95 285,000 187,631| 14,487,950 4,750,150 29,803.384| 20,735,094
Institute

Total 652,218051| 642,480 .251|5,005,736,072 | 4,302,806,764

Fair Value ofthe share investment in unquoted equity securities has been arrived based on thelatestavailableunaudited
financial statements of respective entities.

Allofthe equity holdings are promoter shares which are not traded freely in the market. Hence, fair value oftheshares
is assumed same as the net worth per share.

Significant Interest in entities

The Bankhas significant interest in the following entities. The details regarding interest in those entities areasunder:

Paid up Investment % of Principal
Name of Entity capital at Face share Principal Activity Place of
(NRs.) Value (NRs.) Business
Agricultural Project Provides services related to Singhadurbar,
Services Centre Pvt. Ltd. 8,000,000 5,000,000 62.50 agricultural activity Kathmandu
RastriyaJeevan Beema | 141 550 000| 100,566,667 55.56 | Life insurance service Ramshahpath,
Company Limited Kathmandu
Provides research and consultancy
National Productivity services, offers socio-economic, Balaiu
and Economic 7,932,500 2,500,000 31.52 | productivity, management, policy U,
Development Centre Ltd. planning, and energy conservation | <athmandu
consultancy services.

Significant interest in above three entities is because of the investment in equity instruments (promotershares)ofsuch
entities which were made under specific directives or policies of the Government of Nepaland other relevantstatutes.
The Bankis inthe process of divestment ofsuch investment by selling the shares that the Bank holds. Thecostandits
carrying amounts of assets recognized in the financial statements on such entities are as follows:
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5.13.3.

5.14.

Amount in NRs.

Carrying Amounts
) Investment at cost -
Particulars (Investment at Fair value)
32-03-2082 31-03-2081 32-03-2082 31-03-2081
Agricultural Project Services Centre 5,000,000 5,000,000 ) )
Pvt. Ltd.
Rastiya Jeevan Beema Company 1,000,000 1,000,000 383,500,672 383,500,672
National Productivity and Economic _ B
Development Centre Ltd. 2,500,000 2,500,000
Total 8,500,000 8,500,000 383,500,672 383,500,672

In the absence ofaudited financial statements of Agricultural Project Services Centre Private Limited and National
Productivity & Economic Development Centre Limited, the Bankis not able to estimate the fairvalue ofinvestment
in such entities. Therefore, the Bank has made impairment by fullamount forthe investment in Agricultural Project
Service Centre Private Limited and National Productivity & Economic Development Centre Limited and has not
expected for its recovery. In addition, Agricultural Project Service Centre Private Limited is in the process of
liquidation since long time.

The carrying amount of NRs. (PY NRs. 383,500,672) as shown in above table has been included under Equity
Investment in the Statement of Financial Position. Being all the above entities as limited liability company, this is the
maximum exposure to the loss fromits significant interest in such entities.

Transactions with the Entities having Significant Interest

The Bank has done some transactions with the entities having significant interest of the Bank. Such transactionsare
occurred in the normal course of the Bank's operations and conducted as arm's length transactions. Thedetails ofsuch
transactions are as follows:

Amount in NRs.

Entity Nature of Transaction FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81
Rastriya Jeevan Beema . .
Company Limited InsurancePremium paid by the Bank 356,458,094 220,444,309

Transaction with the International Monetary Fund (IMF)

The Banktransacts with the IMF as an agent ofthe Government of Nepal in respect of quota where in case of Special
Drawing Rights (SDRs), loans etc. fromthemit transacts in its own right. The IMF revalues quotaat the end of April
every year and gains orlosses arising fromsuch revaluation relating to the quota are borne by the Government of
Nepal. In case of othertransactions, such gains/losses are borne by the Bank. The basic policies followedbytheBank
on such accounts are as follows:

e Country's quotawith the IMFis recorded by the Bank as depository of the Government of Nepaland exchange
gains/losses arising on quota are borne by the Government.

e Exchange gains orlosses in respect of borrowings under ECF and other facilities of the IMF, allocation of SDRs
and holding of SDRs are recognized in the income statement of the Bank.

The position of the Bank and Nepal Government's account with the IMF account is presented as below:

As on 32™ Asar 2082 As on 31%tAsar 2081
Particulars .
Ry | qnalens | (NRey | SDR Esialents
1. For Transactionwith Nepal Rastra Bank
Special Drawing Rights
Net cumulative allocation 40,980,517,183 218,481,192 38,627,474,746 218,481,192
Holdings 23,405,205,370 124,781,177 23,791,069,016 134,564,870
2. For Transactionwith Nepal Government
Outstanding Purchases & Loans
RCF Loans 30,098,420,050 160,465,000 29,630,796,000 167,595,000
ECF Arrangements 41,209,129,000 219,700,000 33,291,440,000 188,300,000
Other Information Pe(gﬁ%?; of Per cent of Quota
Quota 100 156,900,000 100 156,900,000
Currency Holding 89.81 140,918,351 89.81 140,918,351
Reserve Tranche Position 10.2 15,988,749 10.2 15,998,749
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5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

The SDR is converted into Nepalese rupees at conversion rate of NRs. (PY NRs.176.8) per SDR.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
The Bank has following amounts of contingent liabilities and capital commitments.

As on Asar 32,2082

As on Asar 31, 2081

PARTICULARS
NRs. NRs.
Note Printing Commitments 2,516,423,298 327,963,057
Unclaimed Account Transferto P/L Account 166,582,326 163,307,652
Capital Commitments 39,240,812 660,711,257
Total 2,722,246,436 992,079,568

Contingent liabilities in respect of note printing commitments are determined on the basis of LCs opened for
procurement of bank notes. The capital commitments include costs for the consultancy service for interior designof
newly constructed Baluwatar and Thapathali building; costs for interior design, furniture & Fixtures of
Siddharthanagar Guest house; preparation of masterplan with detailed A/Edesign and cost estimationforconstruction
of physical infrastructure and Supervision at Surkhet office; preparation of masterplan, cost estimate, BOQ and
specification of proposed new Building at Biratnagar office; consultancy service for drawing, designandcostestimate
of Pokhara Guest House as perthe contract agreements less payments made till the end of the reporting period; which
are expected to be settled overthe period of the buildings construction. Likewise, capital commitments also include
letter of credits opened for procuring Banknote Shredding and Briquetting System (BSBS) and Currency Verification
and Processing System (CVPS).

Lease liabilities
The Bank has entered with the lease agreement with different counterparties foravailing office space for conduct of
its operation. The Bankaccounted the present value of lease assets as lease liabilities and right to use assets. Lease
payments on short term leases are recognized as expenses on straight line basis. The maturity analysis of lease
liabilities is present here:

Amount in NRs.

Period FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81
Less than one year 7,531,544 20,510,674
One yearto five years 38,848,217 39,733,966
More than five years 21,637,163 33,065,582
Total Lease Liabilities 68,016,924 93,310,222

Monetary Operations and Refinance

The Bank conducts open market operations to manage liquidity in banking sector. The Bankusually injects money
through inter day liquidity facility, standing liquidity facility, reverse repurchase agreement and lender of the last
resort. Loan amount provided underthe open market operation is fully secured with collateral (110 percent of loan
amount) of Nepal Government securities. The Bank absorbs excess liquidity from market through reverse repo &
deposit collection.

Besides these, the Bankalso provides refinance facility to banks and financial institutions for providing the loan to
borrowers. The loan under refinance facility is fully secured with good loan (100 percent of loan amount) of bankand
financialinstitutions. The year-end outstanding balances and other details of monetary operations and refinanceare
given below:
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5.18.

5.109.

5.20.

5.21.

5.22.

5.23.

Amount in NRs.

; Value Ir!terest FV o_f collateral
Particulars (min/max) received
As on Asar 32,2082

1. Monetary Operations

Assets

Standing liquidity facility

Lenderof lastresort

Securities purchased under repurchase
agreement

Inter-day liquidity facility

Liabilities

Deposit Collection 377,450,000,000 2.8007-3%

Reverse Repo

Standing Deposit facility 276,600,000,000 3%

2. Refinance

As on Asar 31, 2081

1. Monetary Operations

Assets

Standing liquidity facility

Lenderof lastresort -

Securities purchased under repurchase
agreement

Inter-day liquidity facility -

Liabilities

Deposit Collection 950,000,000 0.7048-3.1853%

Reverse Repo -

Standing Deposit facility 354,500,000,000 3%

2. Refinance -

Claims and Litigations against the Bank

There are 194 pending cases (PY 238) filed in the court involving the Bank, either as plaintiff or defendant. It is
anticipated that the Bank will not incur significant monetary liabilities in cases other than those initiated by its
employees. However, the Bankmay incurthe loss to the extent of salaries and benefits owed to the 2employeeswho
have instituted legal suit against the Bank, contingent upon the court’s decision. The estimated amountofcontingent
liability is Rs. 14,418,034.

Prior Period restatement

Prior period restatement as presented in Statement of Changes in equity amounting to Rs.100,292,215relates to prior
period excess interest booking on Government Bonds.

Number of Employees
The number of employees holding office at the year-end is 1,200 (PY 1,142).
Presentation (Regrouping/Rearrange ment)

The presentation of some of the line items of previous yearfinancial statements have been changed (regrouped or
rearranged) to align the financial statements.

Bwents after the Reporting Period

In addition to above, there is no material events occurred after the reporting period that requires adjustments or
disclosure in the financial statements.

Sustainability Reporting

In the global context, an understanding is gradually emerging that central banks and financial supervisors ought to
address climate risks and support sustainable finance. Nepal Rastra Bank, being central bankas well as supervisorof
the banks and financial institutions (BFIs) in Nepal, has also started to consider howto integrate climate and other
environmental considerations into our policy frameworks, or to encourage financial institutions to incorporate
environmental, socialand governance (ESG) standards in lending and investment and to adopt environmentaland
social risk management (ESRM) practices.

Foraforementioned purpose, NRB has issued a Guideline on Environmental & Social Risk Management (ESRM) for
the Banks and Financial Institutions on 2018. The guideline is revised in 2022. Additionally, Unified Directivesissued
by NRB mandates implementation ofthe above guidelines. Accordingly, Directive 2, clause (29) requires th e BFIsto
ensure, before disbursement of loans, in case to projects for which Initial Environmental Examination
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(IEE)/Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is required for obtaining license/approval prior to establishment of
project,such reports are approved fromrelevant authorities and in other cases, shall performenvironmentassessments
on their own, before disbursement of loans. The BFIs are required to formulate their own policy for assessment of
environmental and social risk in accordance with Environment Protection Act, 2076, Environment Protection
Niyamawali, 2077, Labour Act, 2074, Guideline on Environmental & Social Risk Management (ESRM) for Banks
and Financial Institutions, 2022 and relevant laws and regulations and incorporate environment and social risk
assessment while making credit assessments, risk monitoring and reporting based on such policies. Also,theBFlsare
required to submit reports to NRB in formats and frequency prescribed in Guideline on Environmental & Social Risk
Management (ESRM) for Banks and Financial Institutions, 2022.

In addition to above, various provisions in Unified Directives, mentioned hereafter, also facilitate and encourage
adoption ofenvironment friendly measures by the BFls. Directive No. 3, clause 12 (7) has prescribed loan to value
ratio for personal electric vehicle loan at maximum80 percent, as compared to maximum limit of 50 percent for other
vehicle loans. Directive No. 5, clause (10) requires that the BFIs shall identify and assess the environment, socialand
climate change riskin addition to AML/CFT risk, legal risk, and they have to formulate adequate policyandprocedures
to manage such risks. Directive No. 6, clause 16 permits the BFIs to utilize the corporate social responsibility fund,
created in accordance with the same directive, in activities relating to environment protection, social awareness
programs and waste management. Directive No. 17 issued by the Bank has mandatory requirement forthe BFIs to
provide at least 5 percent of their total loan and advances to the deprived sectorand such deprived sector loansshall
also include loan of maximum2 lakh per family provided foracquisition of renewable energy technology likedomestic
solar power system, solar cooker, solar water pump, biogas, improved water boiler, improved stove loan. Also,
Directive No. 17 have mandated commercial banks to lend, by the end of FY 2026-27, at least 15 percent of theirtotal
credit in agriculture sector, at least 10 percent in energy sector and at least 15 percent in micro, cottage, smalland
medium scale industry.

In line with the Monetary Policy for 2022/23, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has developed a Green Finance Taxonomy
aimed at promoting the flow of domestic green finance. This initiative seeks to support the issuance of green bonds,
climate risk reporting, and address the capital needs of the financial sector. The taxonomy provides a standardized
framework for classifying economic activities, helping to enhance the sustainable finance sectorand mobilize green
investments more effectively. The Bank has also issued reference document on Nepal Green Finance Taxonomy.

The bank is also acquiring electric vehicles to enhance sustainability, reduce carbon emissions, and support its
commitment to environmentally responsible practices. Further, to hear the grievances related to consumerprotection,
sustainable finance and otherissues fromthe stakeholders, grievance handling portalis available on thewebsiteofthe
Bank.
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